
1 

AGENDA 
Mason Transit Authority Board 

Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 

Mason Transit Authority 
to be held at the following location: 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

OPENING PROTOCOL 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 003: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the December 17, 2019
 MTA regular Board meeting. 

2. Pg. 007: Financial Reports: December, 2019
3. Pg. 014: Check Approval: December 12, 2019 – January 16, 2020

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg.  024: Strategic Plan for Approval – Resolution No. 2020-01 – ACTIONABLE 

 (Danette) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 038: LMTAAA Contract – ACTIONABLE (LeeAnn)
2. Pg. 093: Change Order #1 – Roundabout Project – INFORMATIONAL (Danette)
3. Pg. 097: Salary Compensation and Wage Matrix – Resolution No. 2020-02 –

   ACTIONABLE (LeeAnn) 
4. Pg. 101: Capital Grant Agreement PTD005 – Resolution No. 2020-03 –

   ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
5. Pg. 120: Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board - ACTIONABLE 

   (Danette) 

INFORMATIONAL 
Reports 
1. Pg. 125: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg. 127: Management Reports
3. Pg. 134: Operational Reports

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 1



2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 

 
MTA Board Meeting 

 
Mason Transit Authority 

Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
December 17, 2019 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:02 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Randy Neatherlin, Chair; Wes Martin, 
Vice Chair; John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Deb Petersen, Don Pogreba, Kevin Shutty, 
Sandy Tarzwell and Sharon Trask. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [None.] 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Greg Heidal, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Robert Johnson, Legal Counsel; 
Danette Brannin, General Manager; LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; 
Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager and Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities 
Manager.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the December 17, 2019 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be amended to reflect the Informational Presentation would not be made until the 
January 21, 2020 meeting. Shutty/Martin. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None – no public in attendance. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of 
November 19, 2019. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for 

November 2019 as presented. 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 3



2 

 

               

3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of 
November 14, 2019 through December 11, 2019 financial obligations on checks 
#33450 through #33551, as presented for a total of $642,939.67. 

 
Shutty/Trask. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. 2020 Budget for Approval – Danette Brannin, General Manager, brought the Board’s 

attention to the increase in wages that are included in the budget as a result of the wage 
analysis completed.  Additionally, LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, added 
that even with increasing the wages, some positions are still at the lower end of the wage 
range. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-30, 
adopting the 2020 Budget with Gross Operating Revenues of $7,889,988 and Total 
Operating Expenses of $7,889,988 with Net Income from Operations of $0. Trask/Martin. 
Motion carried. 

2. Final View of 2020 Regular Meeting Calendar – Tracy Becht, Board Clerk, indicated 
that she had researched information requested by the Board at October meeting and that 
the meeting room for the Mason County Fire District #1 was available for the April meeting. 
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-32 establishing 
the 2020 schedule of regular MTA Authority Board meetings. Shutty/Petersen. Motion 
carried. 

3. Strategic Plan – Ms. Brannin described the evolution of the strategic plan from its 
beginning, which was more of a work plan back then and now in its present state, is a set of 
static goals and objectives. Moving forward, the annual work plans will be developed around 
those identified goals and objectives. After further refinements, Ms. Brannin will bring the 
proposed Strategic Plan to the Board for approval. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Service Animal and Pets Policy (POL-508) – Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager, 

described the need for the policy and that it had been reviewed by the Policy Committee and 
legal counsel. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-
33 and the attached Service Animal and Pets Policy (POL-508).  Shutty/Trask. Motion 
carried. 

2. No Show Policy (POL-509) – Mr. Ringgenberg described to the Board that this policy 
addresses riders that schedule service and repeatedly do not use the trip they scheduled 
with MTA. This policy has also been reviewed by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. 
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-34 and the 
attached No Show Policy (POL-509). Campbell/Martin. Motion carried. 

3. Public Records Request Policy (POL-205) – Ms. Becht shared with the Board that MTA 
had previously approved a public records request policy in an outdated format which was 
attached as Exhibit A to Resolution No. 2014-07. This new version has been updated to be in 
better alignment with federal and state laws and the Public Records Act. This policy has also 
been reviewed and approved by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-35 and the attached Public 
Records Request Policy (POL-205). Shutty/Petersen. Motion carried. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 4



3 

 

               

4. Records Management Policy (POL-206) – Ms. Becht described to the Board the need to 
have a policy relating to records management so that all employees would understand the 
need for and process of managing records for MTA. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority 
Board approve Resolution No. 2019-36 and the attached Records Management Policy 
(POL-206). Trask/Dorcy. Motion carried. 

5. MTA Ridership Incentive Policy (POL-201) – Ms. McNulty shared with the Board the 
updates to the policy and new standards that would apply, as well as confirmed that the 
policy had been reviewed by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. Moved that the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-37 and the attached MTA Ridership 
Incentive Policy (POL-201). Shutty/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 

6. Paid Family & Medical Leave (PFML) Policy (POL-311) – Ms. McNulty said that the 
policy was necessary as it would be in coordination with the upcoming law beginning in 
2020. The policy template was provided by Summit Law and was also reviewed by the Policy 
Committee and legal counsel. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve 
Resolution No. 2019-38 and the attached Paid Family & Medical Leave Policy (POL-311). 
Campbell/Trask. Motion carried. 

7. Update to Shared Leave Policy (POL-200) – Ms. McNulty indicated that the updates to 
this policy were to bring it in alignment with the Paid Family & Medical Leave (PFML) Policy 
and in conformity with other regulations. Once all of the current collective bargaining 
agreements have expired, this policy will be rescinded. This policy also had been reviewed 
by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board 
approve Resolution No. 2019-39 and the attached Shared Leave Policy (POL-200). 
Shutty/Trask. Motion carried. 

8. Employee Recognition Policy (POL-302) – Ms. McNulty informed the Board that this 
policy is being updated to provide for an Employee Engagement Committee and its function, 
as well as update recognition events, employee appreciation days and the annual WSDOT 
Wall of Fame annual recognition program. She also indicated there would no longer be a 
General Manager award and instead, an Employee of the Year award. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-40 and the attached Employee 
Recognition Policy (POL-302). Campbell/Petersen. Motion carried. 

9. Surplus Computer Equipment – Ms. Brannin shared with the Board that the surplus 
computer equipment was no longer needed as a result of the upgrade performed earlier this 
year and recommends that the equipment be surplused. Moved that the Mason Transit 
Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-41 regarding the disposal of the assets as set 
forth in Exhibit A to that resolution.  Tarzwell/Shutty. Motion carried. 

10. Park & Ride Project – Change Orders – Ms. Brannin described for the Board the 
threshold of the current parameters of her authority for change orders and that the size and 
scope of the Park & Ride project will have change orders that are significantly above that 
threshold. In an effort to keep this project on track without costly slowdowns or wait time, 
she is requesting that the Board provide her with the authority to approve up to $120,000 
per change order. The authority requested by Ms. Brannin relates only for the current 
contract with Active Construction Inc. to construct the roundabout and preliminary site 
preparation or through June 30, 2020, whichever is earlier. Moved that the Mason Transit 
Authority Board approve the General Manager to approve change orders up to $120,000 
relating to the current contract with ACI, through completion of the roundabout and 
preliminary site preparation or until June 30, 2020, whichever date is earliest. 
Petersen/Progreba. Motion carried.  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 5



4 

 

               

11. Update to Procurement Policy (POL-407) – Ms. McNulty informed the Board that MTA 
has been continuing to recognize the existing $3,000 micro-purchase threshold, and in the 
past year has found it to be more cumbersome than necessary when making purchases. This 
is due to having to include federal stipulations for purchases between $3,000 and $10,000 
when not required by the FTA but MTA’s existing policy. The proposed changes to the policy 
have been reviewed by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. Moved that the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-42 and the attached Procurement 
Policy (POL-407). Trask/Shutty. Motion carried. 

 
INFORMATIONAL 
Ms. Brannin spoke to the Board about the possibility of a lobbyist being hired to assist with the 
upcoming legislative session and that the $20,000 cost has been included in the 2020 budget. 
Additionally, Ms. Brannin went over the MTA 2019 Accomplishments Report. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
No additional comments. 
 
COMMENTS BY THE BOARD 
Board member Campbell commented that MTA had made great progress last year and even 
more this year.  
 
The Board Chair commented that the Park & Ride project is good for North Mason County as 
well as for MTA. 
 
Board member Dorcy indicated that the EPA study on the Pear Orchard property has been 
completed. He expressed hope that he would hear about the parking lot at the City Council 
meeting being held later that evening. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – [None - no public in attendance]. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:24 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
MTA Board Meeting 

 
Mason Transit Authority 

Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 6



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 7



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 8



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 9



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 10



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 11



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 12



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 13



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 14



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 15



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 16



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 17



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 18



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 19



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 20



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 21



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 22



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 23



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Strategic Plan   
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
At our December meeting, the first draft of our proposed Strategic Plan was distributed 
to solicit comments and feedback. No edits were made to the content other than 
correcting one word as suggested by Board Member Campbell. Over time content will 
be added as appropriate and necessary to improve MTA’s Strategic Plan and through 
input given by staff and the public. 

 
 
 
Summary: Approve Strategic Plan. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-01 to approve 
the Strategic Plan. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 24



 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
 

 

 
 

 
Draft Presentation: December 17, 2019 
     and 
    January 21, 2020 
 

 

  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 25



 

Table of Contents 
INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

LEADERSHIP ............................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Mason Transit Authority Board: ......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Non-voting Authority Board: .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

Mason Transit Authority Executive Management Team: ................................................................................................... 2 

WHO WE ARE .......................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

WHAT WE DO ......................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

CORE VALUES .......................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

VISION, MISSION, GUIDING PRINCIPLES and TEAM CULTURE .............................................................................................. 4 

MISSION: ......................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

VISION: ............................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES: ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

TEAM CULTURE: .............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

LONG-RANGE STRATEGIC VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES ................................................................................................ 6 

Strategic Goals: ................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Safe and Secure ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Effective Transportation Services ................................................................................................................................... 7 

Financial Stewardship ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Community Partnerships and Responsibility ................................................................................................................. 8 

Workplace Culture ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 

WORK PLAN ............................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

KEY ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

MONITORING, EVALUATION AND PLANNING ....................................................................................................................... 9 

MOVING FORWARD ............................................................................................................................................................... 9 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 26



 

P a g e  | 1 

INTRODUCTION 
 

We are excited to present the first edition of Mason Transit Authority’s Strategic Plan. The desire and 
goal is that this plan would guide MTA’s decisions, set direction and be a growing document that is 
actively used along with our Mission, Vision, and Guiding Principles to ensure long-range stability of 
the Authority as well as provide quality service to our customers and community. 
 
The Strategic Plan was prepared with the assistance of two citizens and the MTA Leadership Team. 
Goals were established based on our Mission Statement to provide transportation choices that 
connect people, jobs, and community, increasing the quality of life in Mason County. Each team 
contributed to the foundation of the goals and objectives as well as the work plan by year. In the 
coming years, work plans will be reviewed for feasibility and set according to available resources. We 
anticipate that our Strategic Plan will grow and change as needed to reflect the changes in Mason 
County, the needs of riders and the capacity of MTA.  
 
The Leadership Team will update the plan every year during the budget preparation process to align 
the strategic goals and objectives for the year as well as relevancy. In addition, with the yearly 
review, a report to the Authority Board will be given to track and report on Agency progress and 
performance. It is planned that future updates will also include input from a variety of sources and 
partnerships within Mason County through community forums, public meetings and surveys. 
 
We look forward to adopting policies, budgets, projects and programs that will successfully deliver 
MTA’s Strategic Plan. For the Leadership Team it means placing transit first so by improving our 
service to meet riders’ needs within the capacity of funding and available resources. It also means 
developing partnerships within the community as well as other transit agencies to share information 
and resources for better efficiency and effectiveness.  
 
This document will guide decisions regarding how we move forward. When faced with challenges or 
competing interests, we will use the Strategic Plan to look beyond the isolated situation and focus on 
the impact to MTA as a whole and the quality of service provided to the riders and the community. 
We anticipate there will be challenges to right-size MTA’s capacity so long-range sustainability with a 
level of service that best serves Mason County will be ensured. 
 
We know we cannot realize a successful Strategic Plan alone. It will take partnerships, both external 
and internal to reach the vision of excellent transportation services and choices throughout Mason 
County and beyond. 
 
 
 
 
 
Danette Brannin 
General Manager

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 27



 

Page | 2 

LEADERSHIP 
Mason Transit Authority Board: 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair, Mason County Commissioner 
Wes Martin, Vice Chair, Grapeview School District 
John Campbell, North Mason School District 
Kevin Dorcy, City of Shelton Council Member 
Deborah Petersen, Hood Canal School District 
Kevin Shutty, Mason County Commissioner 
Sharon Trask, Mason County Commissioner 
Sandy Tarzwell, Shelton School Distric 
Vacant – One position (at time of publication) representing District 3 of Mason County. 
 
Non-voting Authority Board: 
Greg Heidel, Bargaining Unit Business Representative, IAM and AW District 160 
John Piety, Citizen Advisor to the Board 
 
Mason Transit Authority Executive Management Team: 
Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board/Public Records Officer 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager    
Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager    
Marshall Krier, Vehicle and Facilities Manager   

WHO WE ARE 
 
Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason Transit Authority (MTA), is a 
Public Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA) Authority, authorized in Chapter 36.57A RCW, located in Mason 
County, Washington. The service was approved by Mason County voters in November 1991, and MTA began 
providing public transportation in December 1992.  The service area is all of Mason County, if road access is 
available, with connections to adjacent counties. 
 
The proposition imposing a sales and use tax of two-tenths of one percent (0.2%) to fund public 
transportation was also passed in November 1991. These actions created the first extensive bus service ever in 
the county to be operated by either a public or a private provider, and it would be provided as a prepaid fare 
(fares paid through sales & use taxes) service. After the elimination of Motor Vehicle Excise Tax funds in 1999, 
voters approved a sales & use tax increase of four-tenths of one percent (.4%). This officially raised the taxing 
base to six-tenths of one percent (.6%) effective January 1, 2002. Mason Transit Authority then began to 
charge a fare for routes going out-of-county. The taxing structure remains the same today. Additional funding 
comes from federal and state grants, rental income and sales of maintenance services. 
 
The Authority began with five wheelchair accessible body-on-chassis type buses that provided service on a 
general public Dial-a-Ride system. In May 1993, MTA decided to move ahead to a mix of routed and Dial-A-
Ride services. Today, this mix of services is still in effect with other services added such as Worker/Driver 
Commuter Program, Vanpool and Volunteer Driver Program. 
  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 28



 

Page | 3 

WHAT WE DO 
 
MTA provides transportation services consisting of Fixed Route (local and regional deviated fixed routes, 
Worker/Driver commuter service to Puget Sound Naval Shipyard (PSNS) Demand Response, Vanpools and 
volunteers using private cars.  
  
Hours of operation of the transportation service are 5:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 6:00 
a.m. to 8:30 p.m. on Saturday.  There is no service on Sunday, and either no service or reduced service on 
observed holidays.  MTA operates ten (10) Fixed Routes on weekdays and eight (8) routes on Saturdays that 
allow minimal deviated service to persons traveling off designated routes.  Dial-A-Ride service operates in rural 
areas where there is no fixed route service or where deviations are not possible as well as in populated areas 
of Mason County for people who have difficulty using the routed service.  All Dial-A-Ride service is open to the 
general public.  Riders using Dial-A-Ride can make a trip request from two (2) hours before to two (2) weeks 
prior to the preferred pick-up time.  All vehicles in MTA scheduled service are equipped with bike racks and are 
accessible to persons with disabilities. 
 
Facilities include the Johns Prairie main base, the downtown Shelton Transit-Community Center and rented 
satellite office in Belfair. MTA supports a network of park and ride facilities that are located throughout the 
County by managing and providing routine maintenance for locations owned by Washington State Department 
of Transportation (“WSDOT”), the County or others.   

CORE VALUES 
 
We will strive to provide the best possible transportation experience for our users and improve mobility 
throughout Mason County, reaching to connect around the region, aiming to enhance the quality of life 
through opportunities in Mason County. 
 
Our core values or competencies for our team include: 
 
Inspirational Leadership – Takes initiative; acts decisively; creates an environment that motivates and 
challenges others; adapts to a variety of situations; develops fresh ideas that provide solutions to all types of 
workplace challenges; shares information, plans, develops, and implements our vision; promotes MTA’s 
mission and values and models ways to achieve them. 
Informed Decision Making – Researches data to grasp issues, draw conclusions, and solve problems resulting 
in sound solutions that, when judged over time, are aligned with MTA’s vision and mission; commits to action, 
even in uncertain situations, to accomplish organizational goals; identifies, assesses and manages risk while 
striving to attain objectives. 
Transparency & Accountability – Builds trust and respect through consistently honest and professional 
interactions; uses public funds and resources appropriately; approaches each situation with a clear perception 
of organizational and political realities; recognizes the impact of alternative courses of action; assures that 
effective controls are developed and maintained to ensure the integrity of the organization and its mission; 
seeks and builds strategic alliances and collaborative arrangements through partnerships to advance the 
mission of the organization; actively communicates decisions with stakeholders. 
Respectful Relationships – Helps create a work environment that embraces and appreciates diversity; treats 
others fairly without regard to race, sex, color, religion, or sexual orientation; recognizes differences as 
opportunities to learn and grow by working together; establishes and maintains constructive relationships; 
works to preserve the self-confidence and self-esteem of others; focuses on the situation, issue or behavior, 
not the person; takes initiative to make things better; models appropriate behaviors for others. 
Personal Responsibility – Demonstrates integrity, honesty and ethical behavior; personally acknowledges and 
accepts responsibility for meeting expectations and correcting mistakes; exhibits self-control and responds to 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 29



 

Page | 4 

feedback non-defensively; executes principles of workplace safety; complies with all safety policies and 
procedures; takes responsibility for efficient, effective use of time, equipment, and resources. 
Outstanding Customer Service – Provides accurate and timely information; understands and is responsive to 
our customers’ objectives and needs; is accessible, provides timely and responsive replies to customer 
requests, emails, phone messages and mail; handles customer inquiries and complaints in a prompt, courteous 
and professional manner while adhering to rules and regulations; anticipates, assesses, responds to changing 
customer needs; consistently provides products and services that meet or exceed the expectations of the 
customers. 

STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK  
 
MTA will attempt to integrate the Strategic Plan into all planning documents as a way to create consistency 
throughout all areas.  
 
The framework for this Strategic Plan focuses on goals and objectives that will assist in achieving the vision 
and mission of the Agency and contribute to long-range planning and sustainability. The elements of this 
Strategic Plan are defined as follows: 

• Mission: What we do 
• Vision: What we want to be 
• Guiding Principles: Guides the Agency’s daily actions 
• Team Culture: Drives our guiding principles through leadership, teamwork and excellence 
• Goals: Goals set for the Agency that support the mission and vision 
• Objectives: Specific ways the Agency can accomplish the goals 

VISION, MISSION, GUIDING PRINCIPLES and TEAM CULTURE 
 

MISSION: We provide transportation choices that connect people, jobs, and community, increasing the 
quality of life in Mason County. 
 
VISION: Driving Our Community Forward 

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES: We believe that public transportation and personal mobility are essential to 
the economic vitality, environmental stability and quality of life in Mason County. Our core values guide our 
actions each day. 

• Service Excellence:  We go beyond the expectations of our customers and provide inspirational 
leadership to deliver safe, comfortable and reliable service; we see today’s best service as our 
motivation to make tomorrow’s even better. 

• Safety: We provide and enforce a safe and secure environment for our customers, community and 
teammates through awareness, consistent training, and allocation of resources. 

• Professionalism:  We conduct our work transactions with integrity, fiscal responsibility in the 
allocation of resources, and transparency. We engage the community in our decision making by sharing 
information and encouraging public involvement. 

• Teamwork: We achieve our greatest success as a team. We embrace diversity, support and treat 
each other with respect, and use meaningful communication. 

• Partnerships:  We explore and build collaborative alliances with partners and community members to 
promote and advance our mission. 

• Innovation: We constantly explore ways to improve. We celebrate inspiration, creativity, initiative and 
couragein all things to promote an expectional customer service experience. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 30



 

Page | 5 

TEAM CULTURE: Our Team Culture drives our Vision, Mission and Guiding Principles through Leadership, 
Teamwork and Excellence. It is our belief culture is needed to provide guidelines on how people work together 
towards a common goal and how people treat each other. Team Culture is important in supporting each team 
member to feel they are part of something bigger than themselves and to feel engaged and satisfied with the 
work they do. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 31



 

Page | 6 

LONG-RANGE STRATEGIC VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
MTA’s long-range strategic vision is to provide safe and accessible transit services to the community 
that will enhance the quality of life in Mason County. We see MTA as a partner in the community 
providing transportation to essential services, jobs and social activities. Our commitment is to not 
only provide safe and accessible services but to provide services that are usable and meet the needs 
of customers. We know we must change as the community changes and we dedicate ourselves to 
that effort by understanding what our customers need and want then adjust where feasible. In 
addition, our strategic vision includes financial stewardship so we can continue the level of service 
our community has grown accustom.  This requires MTA to operate efficiently and effectively by 
using our resources responsibly.  
 
Strategic Goals: 

Safe and Secure 
Effective Transportation Services 
Financial Stewardship 
Community Partnerships 
Workplace culture of excellence 
 
Safe and Secure  

Objectives: 

 Emphasize safety of our riders, citizens and employees in all aspects of our operations. 
 Ensure training for a safe and secure experience for all and to eliminate preventable accidents. 
 Provide technology and resources to support secure movement of buses. 
 Proactive approach to safety throughout the agency to increase and improve security 

throughout the service area. 
 Enforce transit rules and establish consistency of service to riders in a safe, accessible manner. 

2020 Work Plan: 

• Quarterly Driver training and refresher training as required. 
• Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation. 
• Change from flag stops to fixed stops in urban area of Shelton. 
• Curbs or bollards in parking area next to building at Johns Prairie. 
• Purchase rain jackets for employee safety. 
• Have a manager or supervisor on duty during service hours by moving Ops office to the 

T-CC. 
• Ensure L & I safety compliance through training. 
• Review WSTIP Best Practices for safety. 
• Define Safety Committee’s purpose and direction. 

 
 
 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 32



 

Page | 7 

Effective Transportation Services 

Objectives: 

 Creating a positive transportation experience within all modes of MTA services that is reliable, 
accessible, equitable, safe, secure and comfortable for all users. 

 Establish a culture of customer service and deliver services that are responsive to community 
needs. 

 Strive to look for ways to improve service through a variety of tools including outreach, 
community meetings, service review and passenger amenities.   

 Seek new opportunities to enhance the riders’ experience through better route planning and 
additional services when feasible.  

 
2020 Work Plan 

• Review Dial-a-Ride services and hours to ensure efficiency and availability of resources.  
• Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am – 5:00pm. 
• Seek pilot route opportunities. 
• Continue review of the Comprehensive Service Review suggestions to improve services. 
• Conduct outreach for all service changes.  
• Improve passenger amenities by providing apps and on-line scheduling. 
• Plan for 2021 service 
• Benchmark route performance and discontinue or adjust low performing routes. 

Financial Stewardship 

 Objectives: 

 Operate an efficient, cost-effective system. 
 Maintain internal controls and compliance over public resources. 
 Provide current, accurate and transparent financial data. 
 Strive for a 5-year sustainability plan. 
 Plan for future operational and capital needs through maintaining financial reserves. 
 Proficiency in regulatory requirements through continuing education. 
 Manage key financial indicators. 

 
2020 Work Plan: 

• Procurement training for Public Works projects, prevailing wage requirements and 
Federal Transit Administration compliance. 

• Prepare for I-976 impacts. 
• Identify needed financial policies or manual to outline financial objectives. 
• Ensure compliance of 2019-2021 grant contracts. 
• Review 5-year sustainability plan and adjust as needed.  
• Complete the competitive purchases analysis for FTA compliance. 
• Review and renew leases for T-CC and Johns Prairie tenants. 
• Continued work in records management. 

 
 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 33



 

Page | 8 

Community Partnerships and Responsibility 

Objectives: 

 Cultivate partnerships throughout the community.  
 Participate in outside committees, regional planning organizations and boards. 
 Participate in mentorship programs at local schools and colleges. 
 Exemplify exceptional customer service that goes above and beyond. 
 Provide transportation choices and support travel that uses less energy, produces fewer 

pollutants and reduces greenhouse gases in the region. 
 Support efforts to mitigate traffic congestion throughout the region. 
 Cooperative relationships with T-CC tenants and events. 

2020 Work Plan: 
• Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input regarding MTA services. 
• Participate in community events such as Business Expo, job fairs, Allyn Days and 

Oysterfest. 
• Promote City and County partnerships on projects, communication and support. 
• Promote Volunteer Driver Program for additional drivers and riders. 
• Continue Park & Ride project. 
• Brand vehicles with MTA logo and promotion of services. 
• Continue progress toward inclusion of electric vehicles. 

 

Workplace Culture 

Objectives: 

 Provide an atmosphere where employees are valued and respected. 
 Develop and empower employees. 
 Support the philosophy of team culture. 
 Promote healthy dialogue on important issues. 
 Encourage an active and engaged environment including Board of Directors. 
 Be an employer of choice in Mason County. 

2020 Work Plan:  

• Improve communications through established methods and monitor outcome through a 
survey. 

• Incorporate strategies for work/life balance in MTA’s wellness program and encourage 
participation. 

• Promote skills and job knowledge through webinars, conferences and training. 
• Bargain contracts for the Driver and Comm Center Collective Bargaining Units. 
• Continue the Employee Engagement Committee for seeking opportunities to improve 

the work environment. 
• Enhance meaningful employee recognition 
• Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight. 
• Prepare a policy review schedule. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 34



 

Page | 9 

WORK PLAN  
 
An annual Work Plan that serves as a “to-do” list of what the agency expects to accomplish for the 
year will be included in the Strategic Plan. Work Plan items will tie to an objective to ensure we are 
moving in a direction that supports our objectives and desired outcomes. Staff will monitor progress 
throughout the year and report to the Board on a quarterly basis the progress of each Work Plan 
item.  

KEY ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES 
 
The Agency will look for key issues and opportunities that may impact the goals of the Agency. 
Issues may be such things as funding, demographic changes, ridership decline or employee shortage. 
In looking at current issues impacting the Agency, Leadership will look for ways to minimize the 
impact and strategize ways to meet the strategic goals and objectives. Opportunities will often be 
present when issues arise. Leadership will look for new opportunities to improve services and 
enhance the community along with striving to meet each objective in the Strategic Plan.   

MONITORING, EVALUATION AND PLANNING  
 
The Agency will set key performance indicators to measure how well the agency is performing with 
respect to the Strategic Plan goals and objectives. These indicators such as safety, ridership, financial 
stewardship will be measured and evaluated on a regular basis to ensure the Agency is moving in the 
direction expected. 
 
The Strategic Plan will be reviewed quarterly by the Executive Team to assess progress on the year’s 
work plan. A quarterly report will be given to the Board following the review and revisions, if 
necessary, will be discussed. On an annual basis, a summation of what was accomplished during the 
prior year will be presented. 
 
As part of the annual budget process, the Leadership Team will set the next year’s goals and bring 
the work plan to the Board for input and suggestions when the draft budget is presented. The work 
plan will also be part of the public meetings on the budget. 
 
Discussion of the Transportation Development Plan (TDP) will be part of the process of updating the 
annual work plan; the TDP will then be reviewed and updated when it is due. In all planning 
documents MTA prepares, the Strategic Plan will be incorporated where applicable. 

MOVING FORWARD 
 
We are excited to move forward with implementing this Strategic Plan in the hope that transportation 
options will continue to grow and be a viable choice throughout Mason County. Staff will use the 
Strategic Plan as a moving document to assist with bringing multimodal travel into the future to 
improve the quality of life for the citizens and to connect our community with surrounding 
communities whether it is for work or pleasure.  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 35



Resolution No. 2020-01 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING A STRATEGIC PLAN. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board desires to have a strategic plan 
that specifies goals and objectives of Mason Transit Authority as well as provide a 
framework for the evaluation of future work plans and goals to be designed with 
measurable outcomes; and 

WHEREAS; the Board has been provided with a draft version on which to make 
comments and suggestions; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that attached Strategic Plan dated January 21, 2020 is hereby approved. 

 
Adopted this 21st day of January, 2020. 

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  [Vacant], Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 36



Resolution No. 2020-01 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 37



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The contract with Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging (LMTAAA) for 
transportation services under the Older Americans Act is being renewed for a one-year 
period. This revenue funds a substantial portion of Mason Transit Authority’s Volunteer 
Driver Program. 
 
 
 
Summary:  Renewing contract for a one-year period. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Maximum Contract Award:  $38,910 revenue 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the Chair to execute the Lewis-
Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contrack Number 18-1120-0041-06(3) for the 
provision of volunteer transportation services. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 38



LEWIS-MASON-THURSTON AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
2404 Heritage Court SW, Suite A, Olympia, WA 98502 

Contractor: Mason County Public Transportation 
Benefit Area dba Mason Transit Authority 

Agreement Number: 18-1120-0041-06(3) 

Contractor Address: 790 E Johns Prairie Road 
Shelton, WA 98584 

Contractor Telephone: (360) 426-9434 

Service: Transportation Period of Performance: Jan 1, 2020 – Dec 31, 
2020 

Maximum Award: $38,910 
Unit Rate(s): $.575 per mile  

Effective Date: January 1, 2020 

Funding Source: Older Americans Act, SCSA IRS Tax ID Number: 91-1554133 
Contract Type: 

  Fee for Service    Cost Reimbursement 
  Set Rate/Fixed Price/Lump Sum   Performance Based 

Is the Contractor a Subrecipient for Purposes of This Agreement?  Yes    No 
Subrecipient Data Universal Numbering 
System: (DUNS) No.: 83-254-4217 

CFDA Number(s): 93.044 
CFDA Name(s): Special Programs for the Aging, Title 
IIIB, Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers  

Federal Awarding Agency: Department of Health 
and Human Services, Administration for Community Living 
Total Amount of Federal Award: $664,448 

Federal Award ID Number: 17AAWAT3SS 
Federal Award Date: December 5, 2019 

Is this award for Research & Development? 
Yes    No 

Indirect cost rate for the Federal award:  
 N/A 

Contractor Contact Person: LMTAAA Contact Person: 
Haley Dorian Lisa K. Jolly 

The terms of this Agreement are set out in and governed by the following, which are incorporated 
herein by reference: 

  General Terms and Conditions, Exhibit A   Staffing Plan, Exhibit E 
  Statement of Work, Exhibit B   RFQ/RFP Response (on file), Exhibit F 
  Special Terms and Conditions, Exhibit C   Program Standards (on file), Exhibit G 
  Budget, Exhibit D   Service Definitions (on file), Exhibit H 

In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and any applicable statute 
or rule, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence, in the following order, to (1) Applicable 
federal and state law, regulations and rules; (2) Exhibit C, Special Terms and Conditions; (3) Exhibit B, 
Statement of Work; (4) Exhibit A, General Terms and Conditions; and (5) Any other document incorporated by 
reference. 

This Agreement, including all Exhibits and other documents attached or incorporated by reference, contains all 
of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other understandings or representations, oral or 
otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind the parties. 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: FOR LEWIS-MASON-THURSTON 
AREA AGENCY ON AGING: 

Contractor Signature Date LMTAAA Signature Date 

Title Title January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 39



1 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
 

Agreement #:    18-1120-0041-06(3)  
Contractor:      MTA 
Service:       Transportation 

       Effective Date:  January 1, 2020 
 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS – EXHIBIT A 
 

LEWIS-MASON-THURSTON AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
 

AND 
 

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORATION PUBLIC BENEFIT AREA 
dba 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW, is made and entered into by and 
between the Lewis-Mason-Thurston Council of Governments, as Grantee for the Lewis-
Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging, hereinafter referred to as "LMTAAA," and 
Mason Transit Authority, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor." 
 
THE PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT is to establish General Terms and Conditions 
for this Agreement between LMTAAA and the Contractor. 
 
1. Definitions.  As used throughout the Agreement, the following terms shall have 

meaning as set forth below: 
 

a. “Agreement” means this Agreement, including all documents attached or 
incorporated by reference. 
 

b. “ALTSA” means Aging and Long Term Support Administration, a division of 
the State of Washington Department of Social and Health Services. 
 

c. “Allocable costs” are those costs which are chargeable or assignable to a 
particular cost objective in accordance with the relative benefits received by 
those costs. 
 

d. “Allowable costs” are those costs necessary and reasonable for proper and 
efficient performance of this Agreement and in conformance with this 
Agreement.  Allowable costs under federal awards to local or tribal 
governments must be in conformance with Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal 
Governments; allowable costs under federal awards to non-profit 
organizations must be in conformance with OMB Circular A-122, Cost 
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations. 
 

e. “Assignment” means the act of transferring to another the rights and 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 40



2 

f. “Authorized User(s)” means an individual or individuals with an authorized 
business requirement to access DSHS Confidential Information. 
 

g.  “Business Associate” means the “Contractor” and generally has the same 
meaning as the term “Business Associate” as defined in 45 CFR 160.103 
which means a Business Associate who performs or assists in the 
performance of an activity for or on behalf of the Covered Entity that involves 
the use or disclosure of protected health information (PHI). Any reference to 
Business Associate under this Agreement includes Business Associate’s 
employees, agents, officers, subcontractors, third party contractors, 
volunteers, or directors.  
 

h.  “Business Associate Agreement” means the HIPAA Compliance section of 
the Agreement and includes the Business Associate provisions required by 
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights.  
 

i. “Breach” means the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected 
Health Information in a manner not permitted under the HIPAA Privacy Rule 
which compromises the security or privacy of the Protected Health 
Information, with the exclusions and exceptions listed in 45 CFR 164.402. 
 

j. “CARE” means Comprehensive Assessment and Reporting Evaluation. CARE 
is the tool used by case managers to document a client’s functional ability, 
determine eligibility for long-term care services, evaluate what and how much 
assistance a client will receive, and develop a plan of care.  
 

k. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations.  All references in this Agreement 
to the CFR shall include any successor, amended, or replacement regulation. 
 

l. “Client” means an individual who is eligible for or receiving services provided 
by the Contractor in connection with this Agreement. 
 

m. “Contractor” shall mean the entity that is a party to this Agreement, and 
includes the entity’s officers, directors, trustees, employees and/or agents 
unless otherwise stated in this Agreement.  For purposes of this Agreement, 
the Contractor or agent shall not be considered an employee of LMTAAA. 
 

n. “Covered Entity” means DSHS or LMTAAA, a Covered Entity as defined in 45 
CFR 160.103, in its conduct of covered functions by its health care 
components.  
 

o. “Debarment” means an action taken by a Federal official to exclude a person 
or business entity from participating in transactions involving certain federal 
funds. 
 

p. “Designated Record Set” means a group of records maintained by or for the 
Covered Entity that is:  the medical and billing records about Individuals 
maintained by or for a covered health care provider; the enrollment, payment, 
claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems 
maintained by or for a health plan; or used in whole or part by or for the 
Covered Entity to make decisions about Individuals. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 41



3 

 
q. “Disclosure” means the release, transfer provision of, access to, or divulging 

in any other manner of information outside the entity holding the information. 
 

r. “Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number” means– a unique nine-
digit identification number provided by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B). It is used by 
the Federal government to identify related organizations that are receiving 
funding under grants and cooperative agreements, and to provide consistent 
name and address data for electronic grant application systems. 
 

s. “DSHS” or “the Department” means the State of Washington Department of 
Social and Health Services and its employees and authorized agents. 
 

t. “Electronic Protected Health Information (EPHI)” means Protected Health 
Information that is transmitted by electronic media or maintained in any 
medium described in the definition of electronic media at 45 CFR 160.103.  
 

u. “Equipment” means tangible, nonexpendable, personal property having a 
useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5000 or more per 
unit.  
 

v. “HIPAA” means the Health Information Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996, Pub. L. 104-191, as modified by the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”), Sec. 13400 – 13424, H.R. 1 (2009) 
(HITECH Act), and as codified at 42 USCA 1320d-d8.    
 

w. “HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and 
Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Parts 160 and Part 164. 
 

x. “Individual(s)” means the person(s) who is the subject of PHI and includes a 
person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.502(g). 
 

y. “Minimum Necessary” within the HIPAA section of this Agreement, means the 
least amount of PHI necessary to accomplish the purpose for which the PHI is 
needed.   
 

z. “Older Americans Act” refers to P.L. 106-501, 106th Congress, and any 
subsequent amendments or replacement statutes thereto. 
 

aa. “Personal Information” means information identifiable to any person, including 
but not limited to, information that relates to a person’s name, health, 
finances, education, business, use or receipt of governmental services or 
other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers, 
driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial 
identifiers. 
 

bb. “Protected Health Information (PHI)” means individually identifiable health 
information created, received, maintained or transmitted by Business 
Associate on behalf of a health care component of the Covered Entity that 
relates to the provision of health care to an Individual; the past, present, or 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 42



4 

future physical or mental health or condition of an Individual; or the past, 
present, or future payment for provision of health care to an Individual. 45 
CFR 160.103. PHI includes demographic information that identifies the 
Individual or about which there is reasonable basis to believe can be used to 
identify the Individual. 45 CFR 160.103. PHI is information transmitted or held 
in any form or medium and includes EPHI. 45 CFR 160.103. PHI does not 
include education records covered by the Family Educational Rights and 
Privacy Act, as amended, 20 USCA 1232g(a)(4)(B)(iv) or employment records 
held by a Covered Entity in its role as employer. 
 

cc. “Provider One” means Provider One payment system. Provider One is used to 
provide authorization and payment processing for services delivered to DSHS 
clients.   
 

dd. “RCW” means the Revised Code of Washington.  All references in this 
Agreement to RCW chapters or sections shall include any successor, 
amended, or replacement statute. Pertinent RCW chapters can be accessed 
at http://slc.leg.wa.gov/.  
 

ee. “Real Property” means land, including land improvements, structures, and 
appurtenances thereto, excluding movable machinery and equipment. 
 

ff. “Regulation” means any federal, state, or local regulation, rule, or ordinance. 
 

gg. “SAW” means SecureAccess Washington. SAW is a single sign-on 
application gateway created by Washington State’s Department of Information 
Services to access government services accessible via the Internet. 
 

hh. “Security Incident” means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, 
use, disclosure, modification or destruction of information or interference with 
system operations in an information system.  
 

ii. “SSPS means Social Service Payment System. SSPS is used for payment 
data history. 
 

jj. “Subcontract” means any separate agreement or contract between the 
Contractor and an individual or entity (“Subcontractor”) to perform all or a 
portion of the duties and obligations that the Contractor is obligated to perform 
pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

kk. (1) “Subcontractor” means an individual or entity (including its officers, 
directors, trustees, employees, and/or agents) with whom the Contractor 
contracts to provide services that are approved by LMTAAA in accordance 
with this Agreement. 
 
(2) “Subcontractor” as used in the HIPAA Compliance section of the 
Agreement (in addition to definition kk.(1)) means a Business Associate that 
creates, receives, maintains, or transmits Protected Health Information on 
behalf of another Business Associate. 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 43

http://slc.leg.wa.gov/


5 

ll. “Subrecipient” means a non-federal entity that expends federal awards 
received from a pass-through entity to carry out a federal program, but does 
not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such a program. A 
Subrecipient may also be a recipient of other federal awards directly from a 
federal awarding agency. 
 

mm. “Supplies” means all tangible personal property other than equipment as 
defined herein. 
 

nn. “TCARE” is a caregiver assessment and referral protocol designed to assist 
care managers who work with family caregivers who care for their older adult 
relatives.  
 

oo. “Unique User ID” means a string of characters that identifies a specific user 
and which, in conjunction with a password, passphrase or other mechanism, 
authenticates a user to an information system.  
 

pp. “Use” means, with respect to individually identifiable health information, the 
sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis of PHI 
within an entity that maintains such information.  
 

qq. “User” means the Contractor employee who has registered or approved 
access to a system listed in this Agreement.  
 

rr. “WAC” means the Washington Administrative Code.  All references in this 
Agreement to WAC chapters or sections shall include any successor, 
amended, or replacement regulation. Pertinent WAC chapters or sections can 
be accessed at http://slc.leg.wa.gov/.  

 
2. Agreement Types.  LMTAAA may use four types of contracts for purchasing 

services: 
 

a. Fee for Service 
 

 The Contractor is reimbursed a negotiated fixed rate of pay based on 
performance of a defined unit of service. The unit rate is determined by a 
line item budget approved by LMTAAA. If a staffing plan is submitted, it 
may not be changed without LMTAAA approval. The actual cost to the 
Contractor may be more or less than the amount provided under the 
Agreement. 

 
 Payment is made for each specified unit of service delivered and an upper 

limit is placed on the maximum consideration allowed (e.g., total number of 
services delivered). Typically, payment is made monthly based on a report 
of the number of service units delivered. 

 
b. Cost Reimbursement 

 
 The Contractor is reimbursed for actual costs up to the maximum 

consideration allowed in the contract. A line-item budget negotiated and 
contained in the Agreement must be adhered to or amended with prior 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 44

http://slc.leg.wa.gov/


6 

approval from LMTAAA. 
 

 Payment is made for actual cost incurred for performing at a certain level 
of effort, regardless of the level of output achieved.  Reimbursement is 
made for actual expenditures within the specified line-item budget 
categories. Billings must be accompanied by a line-item expenditure 
report. It is possible to reimburse Contractors for an agreed upon amount 
per a unit or service provided. 

 
c. Set Rate/Fixed Price/Lump Sum 

 
 The Contractor is reimbursed a set fixed amount or lump sum payment 

based on terms established in the Agreement; a negotiated lump sum for 
completion of the agreed upon performance. As with Fee for Service, the 
cost to the Contractor may be more or less than the Agreement provides. 
Unlike Fee for Service, the lump sum contract does not pay a rate for each 
repeated unit of service. 

 
 Payment is made for a specified amount of delivered service or product. 

Typically, payment is tied to completion of agreed upon performance 
achievements. Other payment arrangements are possible, such as 
progress payments made to compensate for activities conducted over the 
specific period of the contract. LMTAAA will not pay if the specific terms in 
the contract are not met. 

 
d. Performance Based 

 
 These Agreements are based on attainment of specific outcomes (e.g., 

placement of a client into unsubsidized employment for six months). 
 

 The rate of payment is generally negotiated based on cost information 
provided by the Contractor. In some cases, the rate may be set by 
LMTAAA policy or other means. LMTAAA will not pay if the specific terms 
in the contract are not met. 

 
3. Amendment.  This Agreement, or any term or condition, may be modified only by 

a written amendment signed by both parties. Only personnel authorized to bind 
each of the parties shall sign an amendment. 

 
4. Amendment Clause Exception. The only exception to the General Term and 

Condition Amendment clause (Clause 3.) is when an amendment must be 
processed to distribute federal funds to the Contractor and the funds must be 
obligated in a Short Timeframe. Short Timeframe means the Contractor is unable 
to follow their standard contract execution procedures in order to timely obligate 
the federal funds. By execution of this Contract, the Contractor prospectively 
agrees to the terms of the federal fund distribution amendment, which shall be 
limited to only adding funds to the Contractor’s Budget. The Contractor’s 
designated point-of-contact shall also email LMTAAA its acceptance of the 
amendment prior to final signing of the amendment.   

 
5. Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the Contractor shall not 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 45



7 

assign rights or obligations derived from this Agreement to a third party without 
the prior, written consent of LMTAAA and the written assumption of the 
Contractor’s obligations by the third party.   

 
6. Background Checks. The Contractor shall ensure that hiring practices for staff 

who will have unsupervised access to clients are in accordance with RCW 
43.20A.710.  A Washington State Patrol criminal history background check is 
required every two years for all service providers who will have unsupervised 
contact with vulnerable adults. This applies to individual contractors, as well as 
employees and/or volunteers of a contracting entity. LMTAAA will complete 
background checks on all individual Contractors. Contracting entities are 
responsible to complete required background checks on their own employees, 
volunteers, and subcontractors. Background checks must be conducted through 
Washington State Patrol’s Washington Access to Criminal History (WATCH) 
system, DSHS’s Background Check Central Unit (BCCU), or a company 
accredited by a national association of background screeners. Those who have 
disqualifying crimes or negative actions per RCW 43.20A.710 cannot have 
unsupervised access to vulnerable adults served through this contract. 

 
7. Billing Procedure.  LMTAAA shall pay to the Contractor all allowable and 

allocable costs incurred as evidenced by proper invoice by the Contractor 
submitted to LMTAAA as set forth in the attached Special Terms and Conditions 
(Exhibit C) and in accordance with the Budget (Exhibit D), which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein. The Contractor shall request payment using 
forms as designated by LMTAAA. 

 
8. Certification Regarding Ethics.  If the Contractor is a Municipality, defined as a 

county, city, town, district, or other municipal corporation or quasi municipal 
corporation organized under the laws of the state of Washington, by signing this 
Agreement the Contractor certifies that the Contractor is in compliance with 
Chapter 42.23 RCW and shall comply with Chapter 42.23 RCW throughout the 
term of this Agreement. 

 
9. Client Abuse.  The Contractor shall report all instances of suspected client 

abuse to DSHS, in accordance with RCW 74.34. 
 
10. Client Grievance.  The Contractor shall establish a system through which 

applicants for and recipients of services under this Agreement may present 
grievances about the activities of the Contractor or any Subcontractor(s) related 
to service delivery. The client grievance procedure shall be formalized with 
clearly and concisely written procedures for hearing grievances, documenting 
information taken, referring the grievance to the next level and/or resolving the 
grievance. The Contractor shall record and maintain in writing all complaints and 
the action taken to resolve them. 

 
11. Compliance with Applicable Law.  At all times during the term of this 

Agreement, the Contractor and LMTAAA shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, regulations and rules, including but not limited to, 
nondiscrimination laws and regulations. 

 
12. Confidentiality. The parties shall use Personal Information and other confidential 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 46



8 

information gained by reason of this Agreement only for the purpose of this 
Agreement. LMTAAA and the Contractor shall not otherwise disclose, transfer, or 
sell any such information to any other party, except as provided by law or, in the 
case of Personal Information except as provided by law or with the prior written 
consent of the person to whom the Personal Information pertains. The parties 
shall maintain the confidentiality of all Personal Information and other confidential 
information gained by reason of this Agreement and shall return or certify the 
destruction of such information if requested in writing by the party to the 
Agreement that provided the information.  

 
13. Data Security. The Contractor shall perform the services as set forth in 

accordance with Appendix 1, Data Security Requirements.  
 
14. Debarment Certification.  The Contractor, by signature to this Agreement, 

certifies that the Contractor is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in this 
Agreement by any Federal department of agency. The Contractor also agrees to 
include the above requirement in all subcontracts into which it enters resulting 
directly from the Contractor’s duty to provide services under this Agreement.  

 
15. Disputes.  In the event of a dispute between LMTAAA and the Contractor, every 

effort shall be made to resolve the dispute informally and at the lowest level. If a 
dispute cannot be resolved informally, the Contractor shall follow the LMTAAA 
Grievance Procedure and, in writing: 

 
1. State the disputed issues;  

 
2. State the relative positions of the parties; 

 
3. State the Contractor's name and address; and 

 
4. LMTAAA must receive the documentation within thirty (30) days after the 

party could reasonably be expected to have knowledge of the issue that is 
being disputed. 

 
The LMTAAA Director shall review the written dispute. The Director’s decision will 
be documented and mailed to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of the receipt.  
The decision of the Director shall be final and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) 
days from the date of mailing of the Director’s decision, the Contractor mails to 
LMTAAA a written appeal addressed to the Chairman of the LMTAAA Council of 
Governments.   
 
An appeal date will be set within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the request.  All 
parties required to participate in the appeal will be notified in writing of the appeal 
date at least ten (10) days prior to the appeal.  A written response to all parties 
will be made within fifteen (15) days after the appeal.  
 
If the Contractor is dissatisfied with the LMTAAA Council of Governments’ 
decision, the Contractor has the right to appeal through the Department of Social 
and Health Services, Aging and Long Term Support Administration (ALTSA).  
The appeal must be in writing and filed with ALTSA within thirty (30) days of the 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 47



9 

date the LMTAAA mailed the complaint resolution determination to the 
Contractor.  A copy of the appeal must also be sent to the LMTAAA.  The appeal 
shall: 
 

1. State specifically the issue or issues and regulation or regulations involved 
in the basis for considering the LMTAAA’s determination to be in error.  
 

2. Include any supporting documentation. 
 

3. Include a copy of the complaint and LMTAAA’s determination that is being 
appealed.  

 
Upon receipt of an appeal from the Contractor, ALTSA has forty-five (45) days to 
review and issue a final determination on the appeal.  Final determination will be 
mailed to the Contractor and to the LMTAAA. 
 

16. Drug-Free Workplace.  The Contractor shall maintain a work place free from 
alcohol and drug abuse.   

 
17. DUNS Number. In accordance with the Federal Funding Accountability and 

Transparency Act (FFATA, Public Law 109-282) implemented on October 1, 
2010, the Contractor must provide their DUNS Number for this Agreement. The 
Contractor’s DUNS Number is listed on Page 1 of this Agreement. If the DUNS 
Number listed on Page 1 of this Agreement changes, the Contractor must 
immediately notify the DSHS Contact listed on Page 1 of this Agreement and 
provide the correct DUNS Number. “Data Universal Number System (DUNS) 
Number” means- a unique nine-digit identification number provided by Dun & 
Bradstreet (D&B). It is used by the Federal government to identify related 
organizations that are receiving funding under grants and cooperative 
agreements, and to provide consistent name and address data for electronic 
grant application systems.  

 
18. Emergency Plan.  The Contractor shall have a plan for serving currently 

authorized clients during periods when normal services may be disrupted. This 
may include earthquakes, floods, snowstorms, pandemic flu, etc. The plan needs 
to include the maintenance of lists, including the identification of those clients 
who are at most risk, as well as emergency provisions for service delivery. 

 
19. Employee Whistleblower Rights.  For those Contracts over the simplified 

acquisition threshold of $150,000 as described in 48 CFR 2.101: 
 

a. This Agreement and employees working on this Agreement will be subject to 
the whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor 
employee whistleblower protections established at 41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 
828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. 

b.  
b. The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant 

language of the workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections 
under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section 3.908 of the Federal 
Acquisition Regulation. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 48



10 

 
The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this 
paragraph (c), in all subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold of 
$150,000 as described in 48 CFR 2.101.  
 

20. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all documents attached to or 
incorporated by reference, contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by 
the parties. No other understandings or representations, oral or otherwise, 
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, shall be deemed to exist or bind 
the parties. 

 
21. Governing Law and Venue.  The laws of the State of Washington govern this 

Agreement. In the event of a lawsuit by the Contractor against LMTAAA involving 
this Agreement, venue shall be proper only in Thurston County, Washington. In 
the event of a lawsuit by LMTAAA against a Contractor involving this Agreement, 
venue shall be proper only as provided in RCW 36.01.050. 

 
22. HIPAA Compliance.  This section of the Agreement is considered the Business 

Associate Agreement as required by HIPAA. 
 

a. Compliance  
 
Business Associate shall perform all Contract duties, activities and tasks in 
compliance with HIPAA, the HIPAA Rules, and all attendant regulations as 
promulgated by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of 
Civil Rights.  

 
b. Use and Disclosure of PHI  

 
Business Associate is limited to the following permitted and required uses or 
disclosures of PHI:  

 
(1) Duty to Protect PHI. Business Associate shall protect PHI from, and shall 

use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 
164 (Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health 
Information) with respect to EPHI, to prevent the unauthorized Use or 
disclosure of PHI other than as provided for in this Contract or as required 
by law, for as long as the PHI is within its possession and control, even 
after the termination or expiration of this Contract.  

 
(2) Minimum Necessary Standard. Business Associate shall apply the HIPAA 

Minimum Necessary standard to any Use or disclosure of PHI necessary 
to achieve the purposes of this Contract. See 45 CFR 164.514 (d)(2) 
through (d)(5).  

 
(3) Disclosure as Part of the Provision of Services. Business Associate shall 

only Use or disclose PHI as necessary to perform the services specified in 
this Contract or as required by law, and shall not Use or disclose such PHI 
in any manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 (Privacy of 
Individually Identifiable Health Information) if done by Covered Entity, 
except for the specific uses and disclosures set forth below.  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 49



11 

 
(4) Use for Proper Management and Administration. Business Associate may 

Use PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business 
Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business 
Associate.  

 
(5) Disclosure for Proper Management and Administration. Business 

Associate may disclose PHI for the proper management and 
administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal 
responsibilities of the Business Associate, provided the disclosures are 
required by law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances 
from the person to whom the information is disclosed that the information 
will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by 
law or for the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the 
person notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is 
aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been Breached.  

 
(6) Impermissible Use or Disclosure of PHI. Business Associate shall report to 

LMTAAA in writing all uses or disclosures of PHI not provided for by this 
Contract within one (1) business day of becoming aware of the 
unauthorized Use or disclosure of PHI, including Breaches of unsecured 
PHI as required at 45 CFR 164.410 (Notification by a Business Associate), 
as well as any Security Incident of which it becomes aware. Upon request 
by LMTAAA, Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, 
any harmful effect resulting from the impermissible Use or disclosure.  

 
(7) Failure to Cure. If LMTAAA learns of a pattern or practice of the Business 

Associate that constitutes a violation of the Business Associate’s 
obligations under the terms of this Contract and reasonable steps by 
LMTAAA do not end the violation, LMTAAA shall terminate this Contract, if 
feasible. In addition, If Business Associate learns of a pattern or practice of 
its Subcontractors that constitutes a violation of the Business Associate’s 
obligations under the terms of their contract and reasonable steps by the 
Business Associate do not end the violation, Business Associate shall 
terminate the Subcontract, if feasible.  
 

(8) Termination for Cause. Business Associate authorizes immediate 
termination of this Contract by LMTAAA, if LMTAAA determines that 
Business Associate has violated a material term of this Business 
Associate Agreement.  LMTAAA may, at its sole option, offer Business 
Associate an opportunity to cure a violation of this Business Associate 
Agreement before exercising a termination for cause.  
 

(9) Consent to Audit. Business Associate shall give reasonable access to PHI, 
its internal practices, records, books, documents, electronic data and/or all 
other business information received from, or created or received by 
Business Associate on behalf of LMTAAA, to LMTAAA for use in 
determining compliance with HIPAA privacy requirements.  

 
(10) Obligations of Business Associate upon Expiration or Termination. Upon 

expiration or termination of this Contract for any reason, with respect to 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 50



12 

PHI received from LMTAAA, or created, maintained, or received by 
Business Associate, or any Subcontractors, on behalf of LMTAAA, 
Business Associate shall:  

 
(i) Retain only that PHI which is necessary for Business Associate to 

continue its proper management and administration or to carry out its 
legal responsibilities;  

 
(ii) Return to LMTAAA or destroy the remaining PHI that the Business 

Associate or any Subcontractors still maintain in any form;  
 

(iii) Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with Subpart C of 
45 CFR Part 164 (Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information) with respect to Electronic Protected 
Health Information to prevent Use or disclosure of the PHI, other than 
as provided for in this Section, for as long as Business Associate or any 
Subcontractors retain the PHI;  

 
(iv) Not Use or disclose the PHI retained by Business Associate or any 

Subcontractors other than for the purposes for which such PHI was 
retained and subject to the same conditions set out in the “Use and 
Disclosure of PHI” section of this Contract which applied prior to 
termination; and  

 
(v) Return to LMTAAA or destroy the PHI retained by Business Associate, 

or any Subcontractors, when it is no longer needed by Business 
Associate for its proper management and administration or to carry out 
its legal responsibilities.  

 
(11) Survival. The obligations of the Business Associate under this section shall 

survive the termination or expiration of this Contract.  
 

c. Individual Rights 
 

(1) Accounting of Disclosures.  
 

(i) Business Associate shall document all disclosures, except those 
disclosures that are exempt under 45 CFR 164.528, of PHI and 
information related to such disclosures.  
 

(ii) Within ten (10) business days of a request from LMTAAA, Business 
Associate shall make available to LMTAAA the information in Business 
Associate’s possession that is necessary for LMTAAA to respond in a 
timely manner to a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI by 
the Business Associate. See 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(G) and 
164.528(b)(1).  

 
(iii) At the request of LMTAAA or in response to a request made directly to 

the Business Associate by an Individual, Business Associate shall 
respond, in a timely manner and in accordance with HIPAA and the 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 51



13 

HIPAA Rules, to requests by Individuals for an accounting of 
disclosures of PHI.  

 
(iv) Business Associate record keeping procedures shall be sufficient to 

respond to a request for an accounting under this section for the six (6) 
years prior to the date on which the accounting was requested.  

 
(2) Access  

 
(i) Business Associate shall make available PHI that it holds that is part of 

a Designated Record Set when requested by LMTAAA or the Individual 
as necessary to satisfy LMTAAA’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.524 
(Access of Individuals to Protected Health Information).  

 
(ii) When the request is made by the Individual to the Business Associate 

or if LMTAAA asks the Business Associate to respond to a request, the 
Business Associate shall comply with requirements in 45 CFR 164.524 
(Access of Individuals to Protected Health Information) on form, time 
and manner of access. When the request is made by LMTAAA, the 
Business Associate shall provide the records to DSHS within ten (10) 
business days.  

 
(3) Amendment.  

 
(i) If LMTAAA amends, in whole or in part, a record or PHI contained 

in an Individual’s Designated Record Set and LMTAAA has 
previously provided the PHI or record that is the subject of the 
amendment to Business Associate, then LMTAAA will inform 
Business Associate of the amendment pursuant to 45 CFR 
164.526(c)(3) (Amendment of Protected Health Information).  
 

(ii) Business Associate shall make any amendments to PHI in a 
Designated Record Set as directed by LMTAAA or as necessary to 
satisfy LMTAAA’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.526 (Amendment 
of Protected Health Information).  

 
d. Subcontracts and Other Third Party Agreements 

 
In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii), 164.504(e)(1)(i), and 
164.308(b)(2), Business Associate shall ensure that any agents, 
Subcontractors, independent contractors or other third parties that create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on Business Associate’s behalf, enter into a 
written contract that contains the same terms, restrictions, requirements, and 
conditions as the HIPAA compliance provisions in this Contract with respect to 
such PHI. The same provisions must also be included in any contracts by a 
Business Associate’s Subcontractor with its own business associates as 
required by 45 CFR 164.314(a)(2)(b) and 164.504(e)(5) .  

 
e. Obligations 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 52



14 

To the extent the Business Associate is to carry out one or more of LMTAAA’s 
obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 (Privacy of Individually 
Identifiable Health Information), Business Associate shall comply with all 
requirements that would apply to LMTAAA in the performance of such 
obligation(s).  

 
f. Liability 

 
Within ten (10) business days, Business Associate must notify LMTAAA of 
any complaint, enforcement or compliance action initiated by the Office for 
Civil Rights based on an allegation of violation of the HIPAA Rules and must 
inform DSHS of the outcome of that action. Business Associate bears all 
responsibility for any penalties, fines or sanctions imposed against the 
Business Associate for violations of the HIPAA Rules and for any imposed 
against its Subcontractors or agents for which it is found liable.  

 
g. Breach Notification 

 
(1) In the event of a Breach of unsecured PHI or disclosure that compromises 

the privacy or security of PHI obtained from LMTAAA or involving LMTAAA 
clients, Business Associate will take all measures required by state or 
federal law.  
 

(2) Business Associate will notify LMTAAA within one (1) business day by 
telephone and in writing of any acquisition, access, Use or disclosure of 
PHI not allowed by the provisions of this Contract or not authorized by 
HIPAA Rules or required by law of which it becomes aware which 
potentially compromises the security or privacy of the Protected Health 
Information as defined in 45 CFR 164.402 (Definitions).  

 
(3) Business Associate will notify the LMTAAA Contact shown on the cover 

page of this Contract within one (1) business day by telephone or e-mail of 
any potential Breach of security or privacy of PHI by the Business 
Associate or its Subcontractors or agents. Business Associate will follow 
telephone or e-mail notification with a faxed or other written explanation of 
the Breach, to include the following: date and time of the Breach, date 
Breach was discovered, location and nature of the PHI, type of Breach, 
origination and destination of PHI, Business Associate unit and personnel 
associated with the Breach, detailed description of the Breach, anticipated 
mitigation steps, and the name, address, telephone number, fax number, 
and e-mail of the individual who is responsible as the primary point of 
contact. Business Associate will address communications to the LMTAAA 
Contact. Business Associate will coordinate and cooperate with LMTAAA 
to provide a copy of its investigation and other information requested by 
LMTAAA, including advance copies of any notifications required for 
LMTAAA review before disseminating and verification of the dates 
notifications were sent.  
 

(4) If LMTAAA determines that Business Associate or its Subcontractor(s) or 
agent(s) is responsible for a Breach of unsecured PHI:  

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 53



15 

(i) requiring notification of Individuals under 45 CFR § 164.404 
(Notification to Individuals), Business Associate bears the responsibility 
and costs for notifying the affected Individuals and receiving and 
responding to those Individuals’ questions or requests for additional 
information;  
 

(ii) requiring notification of the media under 45 CFR § 164.406 (Notification 
to the media), Business Associate bears the responsibility and costs for 
notifying the media and receiving and responding to media questions 
or requests for additional information;  
 

(iii) requiring notification of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services Secretary under 45 CFR § 164.408 (Notification to the 
Secretary), Business Associate bears the responsibility and costs for 
notifying the Secretary and receiving and responding to the Secretary’s 
questions or requests for additional information; and  

 
(iv) LMTAAA will take appropriate remedial measures up to termination of 

this Contract.  
 

h. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

(1) Regulatory References. A reference in this Contract to a section in the 
HIPAA Rules means the section as in effect or amended. 
 

(2) Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Contract shall be interpreted to permit 
compliance with the HIPAA Rules. 

 
23. Incorporations.  All rights and obligations of the parties to this Agreement shall 

be subject to and governed by: 
 

a. All the applicable federal and state laws and regulations are incorporated by 
reference herein.  
 

b. All policies and procedures in the “Policies and Procedures for Area Agency 
on Aging Operations Manual,” as existing and as hereafter revised, are 
incorporated by reference herein. 
 

c. All DSHS Aging and Long Term Support Administration Management 
Bulletins, guidelines, standards, and policies and procedures, as existing and 
as hereafter revised, are incorporated by reference herein.  

 
24. Independent Status.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 43. 

Subcontracting, below, for purposes of this Agreement, the Contractor 
acknowledges that the Contractor is not an officer, employee, or agent of 
LMTAAA, DSHS, or the State of Washington. The Contractor shall not hold out 
itself or any of its employees as, nor claim status as, an officer, employee, or 
agent of LMTAAA, DSHS or the State of Washington.  The Contractor shall not 
claim for itself or its employees any rights, privileges, or benefits, which would 
accrue to an employee LMTAAA or the State of Washington.  The Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold harmless LMTAAA from all obligations to pay or withhold 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 54



16 

federal or state taxes or contributions on behalf of the Contractor or the 
Contractor’s employees.   

 
25. Information Requirements.  The Contractor shall provide to LMTAAA the 

following documents, as applicable: 
 

a. The Contractor's liability insurance; 
 

b. Signature Authorizations Forms; 
 
c. Roster of Board of Directors, Board of Trustees, and/or Advisory Board 

members; 
 
d. Licenses and certifications;  
 
e. Budget; 
 
f. Staffing plan; 
 
g. Personnel policies and procedures; 
 
h. Job descriptions; 
 
i. By-laws; and 
 
j. Articles of Incorporation. 
 
All documents listed above must be submitted annually and/or as changes occur 
throughout the term of this Agreement, with any changes made from previous 
documents on file with LMTAAA indicated with an asterisk, along with the date 
changes were formally adopted. All of the above documents are subject to review 
and approval by LMTAAA. Should such changes affect the scope of this 
Agreement, LMTAAA reserves the right to amend or terminate this Agreement. 
 

26. Inspection.  Either party may request reasonable access to the other party’s 
records and place of business for the limited purpose of monitoring, auditing, and 
evaluating the other party’s compliance with this Agreement and applicable laws 
and regulations. During the term of this Agreement and for one (1) year following 
termination or expiration of this Agreement, the parties shall, upon receiving 
reasonable written notice, provide the other party with access to its place of 
business and to its records which are relevant to its compliance with this 
Agreement and applicable laws and regulations. This provision shall not be 
construed to give either party access to the other party’s records and place of 
business for any other purpose. Nothing herein shall be construed to authorize 
either party to possess or copy records of the other party. 

 
27. Insurance.  The Contractor certifies that it is self-insured, is a member of a risk 

pool, or maintains the types and amounts of insurance identified below and shall, 
prior to and throughout the term of this Agreement, provide certificates of 
insurance to that effect to LMTAAA. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 55



17 

Commercial General Liability Insurance (CGL) – to include coverage for bodily 
injury, property damage, and contractual liability with the following minimum 
limits: Each Occurrence - $1,000,000; General Aggregate - $2,000,000.  The 
policy shall include liability arising out of premises, operations, independent 
Contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury, advertising injury, 
and liability assumed under an insured Contract.  The State of Washington, 
DSHS and LMTAAA shall be named as additional insureds. 

 
Business Automobile Coverage – The Contractor shall maintain Business 
Automobile Liability insurance on all vehicles used to transport clients, including 
vehicles hired by the Contractor or owned by the Contractor’s employees, 
volunteers or others, with the following minimum limits: $1,000,000 per accident, 
combined single limit.  The Contractor’s carrier shall provide DSHS and LMTAAA 
with a waiver of subrogation or name DSHS and LMTAAA as an additional 
insured. 
 

28. Maintenance of Records.  During the term of this Agreement and for six (6) 
years following termination or expiration of this Agreement, both parties shall 
maintain records sufficient to: 

 
a. Document performance of all acts required by law, regulation, or this 

Agreement; 
 

b. Demonstrate accounting procedures, practices and records that sufficiently 
and properly document the Contractor’s invoices to LMTAAA and all 
expenditures made by the Contractor to perform as required by this 
Agreement. 
 

a. For the same period, the Contractor shall maintain records sufficient to 
substantiate the Contractor’s statement of its organization’s structure, tax 
status, capabilities, and performance. 

 
29. Medicaid Fraud Control Unit (MFCU).  As required by federal regulations, the 

Health Care Authority, the Department of Social and Health Service, and any 
contractors or subcontractors, shall promptly comply with all MFCU requests for 
records or information. Records and information includes, but is not limited to, 
records on micro-fiche, film, scanned or imaged documents, narratives, computer 
data, hard copy files, verbal information, or any other information the MFCU 
determines may be useful in carrying out its responsibilities. 

 
30. Order of Precedence.  In the event of an inconsistency in the Agreement, unless 

otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving 
precedence, in the following order, to: 

 
a. Applicable federal and State of Washington statutes and regulations; and 

 
b. This Agreement. 

 
31. Ownership of Client Assets.  The Contractor shall ensure that any client for 

whom the Contractor or Subcontractor is providing services under this Agreement 
shall have unrestricted access to the client’s personal property.  For purposes of 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 56



18 

this paragraph, client’s personal property does not pertain to client records.  The 
Contractor or Subcontractor shall not interfere with the client’s ownership, 
possession, or use of such property.  Upon termination of this Agreement, the 
Contractor or Subcontractor shall immediately release to the client and/or 
LMTAAA all of the client’s personal property. 

 
32. Ownership of Material.  Material created by the Contractor and paid for by 

LMTAAA as a part of this Agreement shall be owned by LMTAAA and shall be 
“work made for hire” as defined by Title 17 USCA, Section 101. This material 
includes, but is not limited to: books; computer programs; documents; films; 
pamphlets; reports; sound reproductions; studies; surveys; tapes; and/or training 
materials.  Material which the Contractor uses to perform this Agreement but is 
not created for or paid for by LMTAAA is owned by the Contractor and is not 
“work made for hire”; however, LMTAAA shall have a license of perpetual 
duration to use, modify, and distribute this material at no charge to LMTAAA, 
provided that such license shall be limited to the extent which the Contractor has 
a right to grant such a license. 

 
33. Ownership of Real Property, Equipment and Supplies Purchased by the 

Contractor.  Title to all property, equipment and supplies purchased by the 
Contractor with funds from this Agreement shall vest in the Contractor.  When 
real property, or equipment with a per unit fair market value over $5,000, is no 
longer needed for the purpose of carrying out this Agreement, or this Agreement 
is terminated or expired and will not be renewed, the Contractor shall request 
disposition instructions from LMTAAA.  If the per unit fair market value of 
equipment is under $5,000, the Contractor may retain, sell, or dispose of it with 
no further obligation.   

 
When supplies with a total aggregate fair market value over $5000 are no longer 
needed for the purpose of carrying out this Agreement, or this Agreement is 
terminated or expired and will not be renewed, the Contractor shall request 
disposition instructions from LMTAAA.  If the total aggregate fair market value of 
equipment is under $5000, the Contractor may retain, sell, or dispose of it with no 
further obligation. 

 
Disposition and maintenance of property shall be in accordance with 45 CFR 
Parts 92 and 74. 

 
34. Ownership of Real Property, Equipment and Supplies Purchased by 

LMTAAA.  Title to property, equipment and supplies purchased by LMTAAA and 
provided to the Contractor to carry out the activities of this Agreement shall 
remain with LMTAAA. When real property, equipment or supplies are no longer 
needed for the purpose of carrying out this Agreement, or this Agreement is 
terminated or expired and will not be renewed, the Contractor shall request 
disposition instructions from LMTAAA. 

 
Disposition and maintenance of property shall be in accordance with 45 CFR 
Parts 92 and 74.   

 
35. Payment.  LMTAAA shall pay the Contractor upon acceptance by LMTAAA of 

properly-completed invoices and approval of required reports. LMTAAA shall pay 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 57



19 

the Contractor an amount not to exceed the maximum consideration of this 
Agreement for the satisfactory performance of all work set forth in the Statement 
of Work (Exhibit B). If this Agreement is terminated, LMTAAA shall only pay for 
performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
  If the Contractor claims and is reimbursed for costs under this Agreement which 

LMTAAA later finds were claimed in error or not allowable costs under the terms 
of this Agreement, LMTAAA shall recover those costs and the Contractor shall 
fully cooperate during such recovery. 

 
  The Contractor shall not charge or accept additional payment from any client or 

relative, friend, guardian, or attorney of the client, or any other person for services 
provided under this Agreement. In the event that this provision is violated, 
LMTAAA shall have the right to assert a claim against the Contractor on its own 
behalf and/or on behalf of the client. 

 
  LMTAAA shall not make any payments in advance or anticipation of the delivery 

of services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. Unless otherwise specified 
in this Agreement, LMTAAA shall not pay any claims for payment for services 
submitted more than forty-five (45) days after completion of the Agreement 
period. The Contractor shall not bill LMTAAA for services performed under this 
Agreement, and LMTAAA shall not pay the Contractor, if the Contractor has 
charged or will charge the State of Washington, LMTAAA or any other party 
under any other contract or agreement for the same services. 

 
36. Program Income.  All program income derived from the provision of services 

described in this Agreement (i.e. client donations), and/or derived or generated 
through program fundraising activities supported by funds authorized through this 
Agreement, shall be used by the Contractor to provide increased levels of service 
or improve the quality of services as set forth in the Statement of Work (Exhibit 
B). The Contractor shall report all program income to LMTAAA when it is 
received. The Contractor shall use program income prior to funds authorized 
through this Agreement. If actual program income received is significantly higher 
than what was projected in the budget, the Contractor shall notify LMTAAA and 
request LMTAAA approval as to how such program income will be used. 

 
The Contractor shall assure that clients receiving Older Americans Act services 
have the opportunity to make a voluntary donation towards the cost of service 
provided under this Agreement. The Contractor shall assure that the methods of 
receiving donations from individuals shall be handled in such a manner to ensure 
confidentiality. The Contractor shall not differentiate among individuals based on 
their ability, or inability, to make a donation.  

 
37. Public Information.  All notices, informational brochures, press releases, 

research reports, and similar public notices prepared and released by the 
Contractor for the services described in this Agreement shall include a statement 
indicating the funding source as awarded under this Agreement with the Lewis-
Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging.  Failure to comply with the requirements 
of this section may result in the termination or suspension of this Agreement 
and/or non-reimbursement for the costs of said brochures, advertising, etc. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 58



20 

 
38. Responsibility.  Each party to this Agreement shall be responsible for the 

negligence of its officers, employees, and agents in the performance of this 
Agreement. No party to this Agreement shall be responsible for the acts and/or 
omissions of entities or individuals not party to the Agreement. LMTAAA and the 
Contractor shall cooperate in the defense of tort lawsuits, when possible. Both 
parties agree and understand that this provision may not be feasible in all 
circumstances. LMTAAA and the Contractor agree to notify the attorneys of 
record in any tort lawsuit where both are parties if either LMTAAA or the 
Contractor enters into settlement negotiations. It is understood that the notice 
shall occur prior to any negotiations, or as soon as possible, and the notice may 
be either written or oral. 

 
39. Restrictions Against Lobbying.  The Contractor certifies to the best of its 

knowledge and belief that no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of a federal agency, a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal 
grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification 
of any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

 
If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have or will be paid for the 
purposes stated above, the Contractor must file a disclosure form in accordance 
with 45 CFR Section 93.110. 
 
The Contractor shall include a clause in all subcontracts restricting 
subcontractors from lobbying in accordance with this section and requiring 
subcontractors to certify and disclose accordingly.   

 
40. Same-Sex Marriage.  The Contractor shall recognize any same-sex marriage 

legally entered into in a U.S. jurisdiction that recognizes their marriage, including 
one of the 50 states, the District of Columbia or a U.S. Territory, or in a foreign 
country so long as that marriage would also be recognized by a U.S. jurisdiction. 
This applies regardless of whether or not the couple resides in a jurisdiction that 
recognizes same-sex marriage. However, this does not apply to registered 
domestic partnerships, civil unions or similar formal relationships recognized 
under the law of the jurisdiction of celebration as something other than a 
marriage. Accordingly, recipients must review and revise, as needed, any policies 
and procedures which interpret or apply Federal statutory or regulatory 
references to such terms as “marriage,” “spouse,” family,” “household member’” 
or similar references to familial relationships to reflect inclusion of same-sex 
spouse and marriages. Any similar familial terminology references in HHS 
statutes, regulations, or policy transmittals will be interpreted to include same-sex 
spouses and marriages legally entered into as described herein. United States v. 
Windsor, 133 S.Ct. 2675 (June 26, 2013); section 3 of the Defense of Marriage 
Act, codified at 1 USC §7. 

 
41. Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any court holds 

any provision of this Agreement, including any provision of any document 
incorporated by reference, invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 59



21 

provisions of this Agreement. 
 
42. State or Federal Audit Requests.  The Contractor is required to respond to 

State or Federal audit requests for records or documentation, within the 
timeframe provided by the requestor. The Contractor must provide all records 
requested to either State or Federal agency staff or their designees. 

 
43. Statement of Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and staff, and 

otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work, as 
set forth in the attached Statement of Work (Exhibit B). 

 
44. Subcontracting. 
 

a. The Contractor must obtain prior written approval from LMTAAA to 
subcontract any portion of the services provided within the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
b. Any subcontracts shall be in writing and the Contractor shall be responsible to 

ensure that all terms, conditions, assurances and certifications set forth in this 
Agreement are included in any and all client services subcontracts. 

 
c. Subcontractors are prohibited from further subcontracting for direct client 

services without prior written approval from LMTAAA. 
 

d. When the nature of the service the Subcontractor is to provide requires a 
certification, license or approval, the Contractor may only subcontract with 
such Subcontractors that have and agree to maintain the appropriate license, 
certification or accrediting requirements/standards. 

 
e. In any contract or subcontract awarded to or by the Contractor in which the 

authority to determine service recipient eligibility is delegated to the 
Contractor or to a Subcontractor, such contract or subcontract shall include a 
provision acceptable to LMTAAA that specifies how client eligibility will be 
determined and how service applicants and recipients will be informed of their 
right to a grievance procedure in case of denial or termination of a service, or 
failure to act upon a request for services with reasonable promptness. 

 
f. If LMTAAA, the Contractor, and a Subcontractor of the Contractor are found 

by a jury or trier of fact to be jointly and severally liable for damages arising 
from any act or omission from this Agreement, then LMTAAA shall be 
responsible for its proportionate share, and the Contractor shall be 
responsible for its proportionate share. Should the Subcontractor be unable to 
satisfy its joint and several liability, LMTAAA and the Contractor shall share in 
the Subcontractor’s unsatisfied proportionate share in direct proportion to the 
respective percentage of their fault as found by the jury or trier of fact. Nothing 
in this term shall be construed as creating a right or remedy of any kind or 
nature in any person or party other than LMTAAA and the Contractor. This 
term shall not apply in the event of a settlement by either LMTAAA or the 
Contractor. 

 
g. Any subcontract shall designate subcontractor as Contractor’s Business 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 60



22 

Associate, as defined by HIPAA, and shall include provision as required by 
HIPAA for Business Associate contract.  The Contractor shall ensure that all 
client records and other PHI in possession of subcontractor are returned to 
Contractor at the termination or expiration of the subcontract. 

 
45. Subrecipients.   
 

a. General.  If the Contractor is a Subrecipient of federal awards as defined by 2 
CFR Part 200 and this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 
 
(1) Maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received 

and expended and the federal programs under which they were received, 
by Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) title and number, 
award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name of the 
pass-through entity; 

 
(2) Maintain internal controls that provide reasonable assurance that the 

Contractor is managing federal awards in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could 
have a material effect on each of its federal programs; 

 
(3) Prepare appropriate financial statements, including a schedule of 

expenditures of federal awards; 
 

(4) Incorporate 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all 
agreements between the Contractor and its Subcontractor who are 
Subrecipients; 

 
(5) Comply with the applicable requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including any 

future amendments to 2 CFR Part 200, and any successor or replacement 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular or regulation; and 

 
(6) Comply with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968; 

Title VI of the Civil Right Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; Title IX of 
the Education Amendments of 1972; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975; 
and The Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 CFR 
Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, and G, and 28 CFR Part 35 and Part 39. (Go to 
www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr/ for additional information and access to the 
aforementioned Federal laws and regulations.) 

 
b. Single Audit Act Compliance.  If the Contractor is a Subrecipient and expends 

$750,000 or more in federal awards from all sources in any fiscal year, the 
Contractor shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-specific audit 
for the fiscal year. Upon completion of each audit, the Contractor shall: 
 
(1) Submit to LMTAAA the data collection form and reporting package 

specified in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, reports required by the program-
specific audit guide (if applicable), and a copy of any management letters 
issued by the auditor; 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 61

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr/


23 

(2) Follow-up and develop corrective action for all audit findings; in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, prepare a “Summary 
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings” reporting the status of all audit findings 
included in the prior audit’s schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

 
c. Overpayments.  If it is determined by LMTAAA, or during the course of the 

required audit, that the Contractor has been paid unallowable costs under the 
Agreement, LMTAAA may require the Contractor to reimburse LMTAAA in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
(1) For any identified overpayment involving a subcontract between the 

Contractor and a Tribe, LMTAAA agrees it will not seek reimbursement 
from the Contractor, if the identified overpayment was not due to any 
failure by the Contractor. 

 
46. Survivability.  The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, which by 

their sense and context, are intended to survive the expiration of the particular 
agreement shall survive. Surviving terms include, but are not limited to: 
Confidentiality, Disputes, Inspection, Maintenance of Records, Ownership of 
Material, Responsibility, Termination for Default, Termination Procedure, and 
Title to Property. 

 
47. Contract Renegotiation, Suspension, or Termination Due to Change in 

Funding.  If the funds LMTAAA relied upon to establish this Agreement are 
withdrawn, reduced or limited, or if additional or modified conditions are placed 
on such funding, after the effective date of this contract but prior to the normal 
completion of this Agreement:  

 
a. At LMTAAA’s discretion, the Agreement may be renegotiated under the 

revised funding conditions.  
 

b. At LMTAAA’s discretion, LMTAAA may give notice to the Contractor to 
suspend performance when LMTAAA determines that there is reasonable 
likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be resolved in a timeframe that 
would allow the Contractor’s performance to be resumed prior to the normal 
completion date of this contract.  

 
(1) During the period of suspension of performance, each party will inform the 

other of any conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for 
resumption of performance.  

 
(2) When LMTAAA determines that the funding insufficiency is resolved, it will 

give the Contractor written notice to resume performance. Upon the 
receipt of this notice, the Contractor will provide written notice to LMTAAA 
informing LMTAAAA whether it can resume performance and, if so, the 
date of resumption. For purposes of this sub-subsection, “written notice” 
may include email.  

 
(3) If the Contractor’s proposed resumption date is not acceptable to LMTAAA 

and an acceptable date cannot be negotiated, LMTAAA may terminate the 
contract by giving written notice to the Contractor. The parties agree that 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 62



24 

the Agreement will be terminated retroactive to the date of the notice of 
suspension. LMTAAA shall be liable only for payment in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement for services rendered prior to the retroactive 
date of termination.  

 
c. LMTAAA may immediately terminate this Agreement by providing written 

notice to the Contractor. The termination shall be effective on the date 
specified in the termination notice. LMTAAA shall be liable only for payment in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement for services rendered prior to the 
effective date of termination. No penalty shall accrue to LMTAAA in the event 
the termination option in this section is exercised. 

 
48. Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Agreement in 

whole or in part for convenience by giving a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days’ 
written notice addressed to the other party. 

 
49. Termination for Default.   
 

a. LMTAAA may terminate this Agreement for default, in whole or in part, by 
written notice to the Contractor, if LMTAAA has a reasonable basis to believe 
that the Contractor has: 

 
1) Failed to meet or maintain any requirement for contracting with LMTAAA; 

 
(2) Failed to perform, or perform adequately, under any provision of this 

Agreement; 
 

(3) Violated any law, regulation, rule, or ordinance applicable to this 
Agreement; and/or 

 
(4) Otherwise breached any provision or condition of this Agreement. 

 
b. Before LMTAAA may terminate this Agreement for default, LMTAAA shall 

provide the Contractor with written notice of the Contractor’s noncompliance 
with the Agreement and provide the Contractor a reasonable opportunity to 
correct the Contractor’s noncompliance. If the Contractor does not correct the 
Contractor’s noncompliance within the period of time specified in the written 
notice of noncompliance, LMTAAA may then terminate the Agreement. 
LMTAAA may terminate the Agreement for default without such written notice 
and without opportunity for correction if LMTAAA has a reasonable basis to 
believe that a client’s health or safety is in jeopardy. 

 
c. The Contractor may terminate this Agreement for default, in whole or in part, 

by written notice to LMTAAA, if the Contractor has a reasonable basis to 
believe that LMTAAA has: 

 
(1) Failed to meet or maintain any requirement for contracting with the 

Contractor; 
 
(2) Failed to perform under any provision of this Agreement; 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 63



25 

(3) Violated any law, regulation, rule, or ordinance applicable to this 
Agreement; and/or 

 
(4) Otherwise breached any provision or condition of this Agreement. 
 

d. Before the Contractor may terminate this Agreement for default, the 
Contractor shall provide LMTAAA with written notice of LMTAAA’s 
noncompliance with the Agreement and provide LMTAAA a reasonable 
opportunity to correct LMTAAA’s noncompliance. If LMTAAA does not correct 
LMTAAA’s noncompliance within the period of time specified in the written 
notice of noncompliance, the Contractor may then terminate the Agreement. 

 
50. Termination Procedure.  The following provisions apply in the event this 

Agreement is terminated: 
 

a. The Contractor shall cease to perform any services required by this 
Agreement as of the effective date of termination, and shall comply with all 
reasonable instructions contained in the notice of termination which are 
related to the transfer of clients, distribution of property, and termination of 
services. 

 
b. The Contractor shall promptly deliver to LMTAAA, all LMTAAA assets 

(property) in the Contractor’s possession, including any material created 
under this Agreement. Upon failure to return LMTAAA property within ten (10) 
working days of the Agreement termination, the contractor shall be charged 
with all reasonable costs of recovery, including transportation. The Contractor 
shall take reasonable steps to protect and preserve any property of LMTAAA 
that is in the possession of the Contractor pending return to LMTAAA. 

 
c. LMTAAA shall be liable for and shall pay for only those services authorized 

and provided through the effective date of termination. LMTAAA may pay an 
amount mutually agreed by the parties for partially completed work and 
services, if work products are useful to or usable by LMTAAA.   

 
d. If LMTAAA terminates this Agreement for default, LMTAAA may withhold a 

sum from the final payment to the Contractor that LMTAAA determines 
necessary to protect LMTAAA against loss or additional liability.  LMTAAA 
shall be entitled to all remedies available at law, in equity, or under this 
Agreement. If it is later determined the Contractor was not in default, or if the 
Contractor terminated this Agreement for default, the Contractor shall be 
entitled to all remedies available at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. 

 
51. Treatment of Client Property.  Unless otherwise provided in the applicable 

Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that any adult client receiving services 
from the Contractor under this Agreement has unrestricted access to the client’s 
personal property. The Contractor shall not interfere with any adult client’s 
ownership, possession, or use of the client’s property. The Contractor shall 
provide clients under age eighteen (18) with reasonable access to their personal 
property that is appropriate to the client’s age, development, and needs. Upon 
termination of completion of this Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly 
release to the client and/or the client’s guardian or custodian all of the client’s 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 64



26 

personal property. This section does not prohibit the Contractor from 
implementing such lawful and reasonable policies, procedures and practices as 
the Contractor deems necessary for safe, appropriate, and effective service 
delivery (for example, appropriately restricted clients’ access to, or possession or 
use of, lawful or unlawful weapons and drugs).   

 
52. Waiver.  Waiver of any breach of default on any occasion shall not be deemed to 

be a waiver of any subsequent breach or default. Any waiver shall not be 
construed to be a modification of the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
unless amended as set forth in the section entitled “Amendment”. Only LMTAAA 
has the authority to waive any term or condition of this Agreement on behalf of 
LMTAAA.    

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 65



27 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Data Security Requirements 
 
1. Definitions. The words and phrases listed below, as used in this Appendix, 

shall each have the following definitions: 
 
a. "AES" means the Advanced Encryption Standard, a specification of 

Federal Information Processing Standards Publications for the encryption 
of electronic data issued by the National Institute of Standards and 
Technology (http://nvlpubs.nist.gov/nistpubs/FIPS/NIST.FIPS.197.pdf). 

 
b. "Authorized Users(s)" means an individual or individuals with a business 

need to access DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential Information, and who has or 
have been authorized to do so. 

 
c. "Business Associate Agreement" means an agreement between LMTAAA 

and a contractor who is receiving Data covered under the Privacy and 
Security Rules of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996. The agreement establishes permitted and required uses and 
disclosures of protected health information (PHI) in accordance with 
HIPAA requirements and provides obligations for business associates to 
safeguard the information. 

 
d. "Category 4 Data" is data that is confidential and requires special handling 

due to statutes or regulations that require especially strict protection of the 
data and from which especially serious consequences may arise in the 
event of any compromise of such data. Data classified as Category 4 
includes but is not limited to data protected by: the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), Pub. L. 104-191 as amended 
by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act of 2009 (HITECH), 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164; the Family Educational 
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. §1232g; 34 CFR Part 99; 
Internal Revenue Service  Publication 1075 (https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-
pdf/p1075.pdf); Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration regulations on Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse 
Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2; and/or Criminal Justice Information 
Services, 28 CFR Part 20. 

 
e. "Cloud" means data storage on servers hosted by an entity other than the 

Contractor and on a network outside the control of the Contractor. 
Physical storage of data in the cloud typically spans multiple servers and 
often multiple locations. Cloud storage can be divided between consumer 
grade storage for personal files and enterprise grade for companies and 
governmental entities. Examples of consumer grade storage would 
include iTunes, Dropbox, Box.com, and many other entities. Enterprise 
cloud vendors include Microsoft Azure, Amazon Web Services, and 
Rackspace. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 66

http://nvlpubs.nist.gov/nistpubs/FIPS/NIST.FIPS.197.pdf)
http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/p1075.pdf)%3B
http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/p1075.pdf)%3B


28 

f. “CLC” means Community Living Connections, Washington State’s name 
for its No-Wrong-Door access network of Area Agencies on Aging and 
their state, regional and local partners. 

 
g. “CLC-GetCare” means a version of RTZ’s GetCare product modified to 

support Washington State’s Community Living Connections. It is used for 
managing programs funded by the Older Americans Act, CMS, state 
general fund, local resources, and federal grants, including Medicaid 
Alternative Care (MAC) and Tailored Supports for Older Adults (TSOA). It 
supports reporting for the National Aging Program Information System 
and Medicare Improvements for Providers Act. It also supports the CLC 
public website with a consumer portal and a resource directory. 

 
h. "Encrypt" means to encode Confidential Information into a format that can 

only be read by those possessing a "key"; a password, digital certificate or 
other mechanism available only to authorized users. Encryption must use 
a key length of at least 256 bits for symmetric keys, or 2048 bits for 
asymmetric keys. When a symmetric key is used, the Advanced 
Encryption Standard (AES) must be used if available. 

 
i. "FedRAMP" means the Federal Risk and Authorization Management 

Program (see www.fedramp.gov), which is an assessment and 
authorization process that federal government agencies have been 
directed to use to ensure security is in place when accessing Cloud 
computing products and services. 

 
j. “GetCare” is a secure cloud-based platform for client and program 

management. It is a product of RTZ Systems. 
 
k. "Hardened Password" means a string of at least eight characters 

containing at least three of the following four character classes: 
Uppercase alphabetic, lowercase alphabetic, numeral, and special 
characters such as an asterisk, ampersand, or exclamation point. 

 
l. "Mobile Device" means a computing device, typically smaller than a 

notebook, which runs a mobile operating system, such as iOS, Android, or 
Windows Phone. Mobile Devices include smart phones, most tablets, and 
other form factors. 

 
m. "Multi-factor Authentication" means controlling access to computers and 

other IT resources by requiring two or more pieces of evidence that the 
user is who they claim to be. These pieces of evidence consist of 
something the user knows, such as a password or PIN; something the 
user has such as a key card, smart card, or physical token; and 
something the user is, a biometric identifier such as a fingerprint, facial 
scan, or retinal scan. "PIN" means a personal identification number, a 
series of numbers which act as a password for a device. Since PINs are 
typically only four to six characters, PINs are usually used in conjunction 
with another factor of authentication, such as a fingerprint. 

 
n. "Portable Device" means any computing device with a small form factor, 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 67



29 

designed to be transported from place to place. Portable devices are 
primarily battery powered devices with base computing resources in the 
form of a processor, memory, storage, and network access. Examples 
include, but are not limited to, mobile phones, tablets, and laptops.  Mobile 
Device is a subset of Portable Device. 

 
o. "Portable Media" means any machine readable media that may routinely 

be stored or moved independently of computing devices. Examples 
include magnetic tapes, optical discs (CDs or DVDs), flash memory 
(thumb drive) devices, external hard drives, and internal hard drives that 
have been removed from a computing device. 

 
p. "Secure Area" means an area to which only authorized representatives of 

the entity possessing the Confidential Information have access, and 
access is controlled through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or 
comparable mechanism.  Secure Areas may include buildings, rooms or 
locked storage containers (such as a filing cabinet or desk drawer) within 
a room, as long as access to the Confidential Information is not available 
to unauthorized personnel. In otherwise Secure Areas, such as an office 
with restricted access, the Data must be secured in such a way as to 
prevent access by non-authorized staff such as janitorial or facility security 
staff, when authorized Contractor staff are not present to ensure that non-
authorized staff cannot access it. 

 
q. "Trusted Network" means a network operated and maintained by the 

Contractor, which includes security controls sufficient to protect DSHS 
Data on that network. Controls would include a firewall between any other 
networks, access control lists on networking devices such as routers and 
switches, and other such mechanisms which protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of the Data. 

 
r. "Unique User ID" means a string of characters that identifies a specific 

user and which, in conjunction with a password, passphrase or other 
mechanism, authenticates a user to an information system. 
 

2. Systems Access and Method of Access. The Contractor may request 
permission to access the following: 
 
a. Provider One payment system, or successor payment system, for payment 

data; and 
 

 

b. The Community Living Connections (CLC)/GetCare System in order to 
manage, record, and report service provision and utilization, demographic, 
resource directory, and consumer website information.   
 

3. Access and Disclosure Information. The Contractor shall not disclose the 
contents of any client records, files, papers and communications except as 
necessary for the administration of programs to provide services to clients as 
required by law. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 68



30 

a. The Contractor shall limit access to client data to staff whose duties 
specifically require access to such data in the performance of their assigned 
duties.  Contractor staff shall not access any individual client data for personal 
purposes.  Clients shall only be permitted to access their own data 

 
b. The Contractor shall ensure each employee with access to data systems 

signs the Contractor Agreement on Nondisclosure of Confidential Information 
form, provided by LMTAAA, to acknowledge the data access requirements 
prior to LMTAAA granting access.  Access will be given only to data 
necessary to the performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall retain 
the original Nondisclosure form on file. The Contractor shall have the form 
available for LMTAAA review upon request. 

 

The Contactor must provide an annual written reminder of the Nondisclosure 
requirements to all employees with access to data to remind them of the 
limitations, use or publishing of data.  The Contractor shall retain 
documentation of such reminder on file for monitoring purposes. 
 

c. The Contractor shall not use or disclose any information concerning any client 
for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the 
Contractor’s responsibilities under this Agreement except by prior written 
consent of the client, his/her attorney, parent or guardian. 
 

d. LMTAAA and the Contractor may disclose information to each other or to 
DSHS for purposes directly connected with the administration of 
DSHS/LMTAAA programs.  This includes, but is not limited to, determining 
eligibility, providing services, and participation in an audit.  The Contractor 
shall disclose information for research, statistical, monitoring and evaluation 
purposes conducted by appropriate federal agencies, DSHS and LMTAAA.  
LMTAAA must authorize in writing the disclosure of this information to any 
other party not identified in this section. 

 

e. The Contractor shall not link the data with personal data or individually 
identifiable data from any other source nor re-disclose the data unless 
specifically authorized in this Agreement or by the prior written consent of 
LMTAAA. 

 
f. The Contractor shall notify LMTAAA within five business days when a User 

leaves employment or otherwise no longer requires system access. Upon 
notification, the system Administrator will deactivate the User ID and terminate 
access to the applicable application(s).  
 

g. The Contractor shall ensure that only registered system Users access and 
use the systems in this Agreement, use only their own User ID and password 
to access the systems and do not allow employees who are not registered to 
borrow a User ID or password to access any systems. 

 

h. Access to systems may be continuously tracked and monitored. LMTAAA and 
DSHS reserve the right at any time to conduct audits of systems access and 
use, and to investigate possible violations of this Agreement and/or violations 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 69



31 

of federal and state laws and regulations governing access to protected health 
information. 

 

4. Dissemination to Staff. Prior to making information available to new staff and 
annually thereafter, the Contractor shall ensure that staff accessing the Personal 
Information or PHI under this Agreement are trained in HIPAA use and disclosure 
of PHI requirements and understand: 
 
a. Confidentiality of Client Data 

(1) Client data is confidential and is protected by various state and federal 
laws.  The basis for this protection is the individual’s right to privacy as 
outlined in the HIPAA Privacy Rule- 45 CFR 160 to 45 CFR 164. 

 
(2) Personal Information means demographic and financial information 

about a particular individual that is obtained through one or more 
sources (such as name, address, SSN, and phone numbers).  RCW 
42.56.210 lists the information that is exempted from public inspection 
and copying. 

 
b. Use of Client Data 

 
(1) Client data may be used only for purposes of these contracted services, 

directly related to providing services to the client or for the operation of 
aging and long-term care programs. 

 
(2) Any personal use of client information is strictly prohibited. 
 
(3) Access to data must be limited to those staff whose duties specifically 

require access to such data in the performance of their assigned duties. 
 
c. Disclosure of Information 

 
(1) Client information may be provided to the client, client’s authorized 

guardian, or a client-authorized 3rd party per WAC 388-01. 
 
(2) Client information may be disclosed to other individuals or agencies only 

for purposes of administering DSHS/LMTAAA programs. 
 
(3) Questions related to disclosure are to be directed to the LMTAAA 

Contracts Manager. 
 
(4) Any disclosure of information contrary to this section is unauthorized and 

is subject to penalties identified in law 
 

5. Security of Data. 
 

a. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions to secure against 
unauthorized physical and electronic access to data, which shall be protected 
in a manner that prevents unauthorized persons, including the general public, 
from retrieving data by means of computer, remote terminal, or other means. 
The Contractor shall take due care to ensure the Contractor and its 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 70



32 

subcontractors protect said data from unauthorized physical and electronic 
access.  The Contractor is authorized to store data on portable devices and 
media. The data will be stored on computers with security systems that 
require individual user IDs and hardened passwords.  Only persons who have 
signed the Contractor Agreement on Nondisclosure of Confidential 
Information form will be able to access the data that Washington State shares 
with LMTAAA and the Contractor under this Agreement. 
 

b. The Contractor shall ensure disks and/or documents generated in printed 
form from the electronic file are properly returned, destroyed or shredded 
when no longer needed so unauthorized individuals cannot access client 
information. Data destroyed shall include all copies of any data sets in 
possession after the data has been used for the purpose specified herein or 
within 30 days of the date of termination, and certify such destruction to 
LMTAAA. LMTAAA shall be responsible for destroying the returned 
documents to ensure confidentiality is maintained.  The Data provided by 
DSHS/LMTAAA will remain the property of DSHS/LMTAAA and will be 
promptly destroyed when the Contractor and its subcontractors have 
completed the work for which the information was required, as fully described 
herein. 

 
c. The Contractor shall protect information according to state and federal laws 

including the following incorporated by reference: 
 
(1) Privacy Act 1974 5 USC subsection 552a; 

 
(2) Chapter 40.14 RCW Preservation and Destruction of Public Records; 

 
(3) Chapter 74.04 RCW General Provisions – Administration; 

 
(4) Chapter 42.56.210 RCW Certain Personal & Other Records Exempt; 

 
(5) 45 CFR 205.50 provides for safeguarding information for the financial 

assistance programs and identifies limitations to disclosure of said 
information; and 
 

(6) Public Law 99-508 (18 USC section 2510et. Seq. Electronic 
Communications Privacy Act of 1986) Part A of Title IV of the Social 
Security Act authorizes disclosure of client information and provides for 
safeguards, which restrict the use or disclosure of information 
concerning applicants or recipients to purposes directly connected with 
administration of the program. 
 

6. Administrative Controls. The Contractor must have the following controls in 
place: 

 
a. A documented security policy governing the secure use of its computer 

network and systems, and which defines sanctions that may be applied to 
Contractor staff for violating that policy. 

 
b. If the Data shared under this agreement is classified as Category 4, the 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 71



33 

Contractor must be aware of and compliant with the applicable legal or 
regulatory requirements for that Category 4 Data. 

 
c. If Confidential Information shared under this agreement is classified as 

Category 4, the Contractor must have a documented risk assessment for 
the system(s) housing the Category 4 Data. 

 
7. Authorization, Authentication, and Access. In order to ensure that access 

to the Data is limited to authorized staff, the Contractor must: 
 

a. Have documented policies and procedures governing access to systems 
with the shared Data. 

 
b. Restrict access through administrative, physical, and technical controls to 

authorized staff. 
 

c. Ensure that user accounts are unique and that any given user account 
logon ID and password combination is known only to the one employee to 
whom that account is assigned. For purposes of non-repudiation, it must 
always be possible to determine which employee performed a given 
action on a system housing the Data based solely on the logon ID used to 
perform the action. 

 
d. Ensure that only authorized users are capable of accessing the Data. 

 
e. Ensure that an employee's access to the Data is removed immediately: 

 
(1) Upon suspected compromise of the user credentials. 

 
(2) When their employment, or the contract under which the Data is made 

available to them, is terminated. 
 

(3) When they no longer need access to the Data to fulfill the requirements 
of the contract. 

 
f. Have a process to periodically review and verify that only authorized users 

have access to systems containing DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential 
Information. 

 
g. When accessing the Data from within the Contractor's network (the Data 

stays within the Contractor's network at all times), enforce password and 
logon requirements for users within the Contractor's network, including: 

 
(1) A minimum length of 8 characters, and containing at least three of the 

following character classes: uppercase letters, lowercase letters, 
numerals, and special characters such as an asterisk, ampersand, or 
exclamation point. 
 

(2) That a password does not contain a user's name, logon ID, or any form 
of their full name. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 72



34 

(3) That a password does not consist of a single dictionary word. A 
password may be formed as a passphrase which consists of multiple 
dictionary words. 

 
(4) That passwords are significantly different from the previous four 

passwords. Passwords that increment by simply adding a number are 
not considered significantly different. 

 
h. When accessing Confidential Information from an external location (the 

Data will traverse the Internet or otherwise travel outside the Contractor's 
network), mitigate risk and enforce password and logon requirements for 
users by employing measures including: 
 
(1) Ensuring mitigations applied to the system don't allow end-user 

modification. 
 
(2) Not allowing the use of dial-up connections. 
 
(3) Using industry standard protocols and solutions for remote access. 

Examples would include RADIUS and Citrix. 
 
(4) Encrypting all remote access traffic from the external workstation to 

Trusted Network or to a component within the Trusted Network. The 
traffic must be encrypted at all times while traversing any network, 
including the Internet, which is not a Trusted Network. 

 
(5) Ensuring that the remote access system prompts for re-authentication 

or performs automated session termination after no more than 30 
minutes of inactivity. 

 
(6) Ensuring use of Multi-factor Authentication to connect from the external 

end point to the internal end point. 
 

i. Passwords or PIN codes may meet a lesser standard if used in 
conjunction with another authentication mechanism, such as a biometric 
(fingerprint, face recognition, iris scan) or token (software, hardware, 
smart card, etc.) in that case: 
 
(1) The PIN or password must be at least 5 letters or numbers when used 

in conjunction with at least one other authentication factor 
 

(2) Must not be comprised of all the same letter or number (11111, 22222, 
aaaaa, would not be acceptable) 
 

(3) Must not contain a "run" of three or more consecutive numbers (12398, 
98743 would not be acceptable) 

 
j. If the contract specifically allows for the storage of Confidential Information 

on a Mobile Device, passcodes used on the device must: 
 
(1) Be a minimum of six alphanumeric characters. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 73



35 

 
(2) Contain at least three unique character classes (upper case, lower 

case, letter, number). 
 

(3) Not contain more than a three consecutive character run. Passcodes 
consisting of 12345, or abcd12 would not be acceptable. 

 
k. Render the device unusable after a maximum of 10 failed logon attempts. 

 
8. Protection of Data. The Contractor agrees to store Data on one or more of 

the following media and protect the Data as described: 
 

a. Hard disk drives. For Data stored on local workstation hard disks, access 
to the Data will be restricted to Authorized User(s) by requiring logon to 
the local workstation using a Unique User ID and Hardened Password or 
other authentication mechanisms which provide equal or greater security, 
such as biometrics or smart cards. 

 
b. Network server disks. For Data stored on hard disks mounted on 

network servers and made available through shared folders, access to the 
Data will be restricted to Authorized Users through the use of access 
control lists which will grant access only after the Authorized User has 
authenticated to the network using a Unique User ID and Hardened 
Password or other authentication mechanisms which provide equal or 
greater security, such as biometrics or smart cards. Data on disks 
mounted to such servers must be located in an area which is accessible 
only to authorized personnel, with access controlled through use of a key, 
card key, combination lock, or comparable mechanism. 

 
For DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential Information stored on these disks, 
deleting unneeded Data is sufficient as long as the disks remain in a 
Secure Area and otherwise meet the requirements listed in the above 
paragraph. Destruction of the Data, as outlined below in Section 7 Data 
Disposition, may be deferred until the disks are retired, replaced, or 
otherwise taken out of the Secure Area. 

 
c. Optical discs (CDs or DVDs) in local workstation optical disc drives. 

Data provided by LMTAAA on optical discs which will be used in local 
workstation optical disc drives and which will not be transported out of a 
Secure Area. When not in use for the contracted purpose, such discs 
must be Stored in a Secure Area.  Workstations which access 
DSHS/LMTAAA Data on optical discs must be located in an area which is 
accessible only to authorized personnel, with access controlled through 
use of a key, card key, combination lock, or comparable mechanism. 

 
d. Optical discs (CDs or DVDs) in drives or jukeboxes attached to 

servers. Data provided by LMTAAA on optical discs which will be 
attached to network servers and which will not be transported out of a 
Secure Area. Access to Data on these discs will be restricted to 
Authorized Users through the use of access control lists which will grant 
access only after the Authorized User has authenticated to the network 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 74



36 

using a Unique User ID and Hardened Password or other authentication 
mechanisms which provide equal or greater security, such as biometrics 
or smart cards. Data on discs attached to such servers must be located in 
an area which is accessible only to authorized personnel, with access 
controlled through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or 
comparable mechanism. 

 
e. Paper documents. Any paper records must be protected by storing the 

records in a Secure Area which is only accessible to authorized 
personnel. When not in use, such records must be stored in a Secure 
Area. 

 
f. Remote Access. Access to and use of the Data over the State 

Governmental Network (SGN) or Secure Access Washington (SAW) will 
be controlled by DSHS staff who will issue authentication credentials (e.g. 
a Unique User ID and Hardened Password) to Authorized Users on 
Contractor's staff. Contractor will notify the LMTAAA Contracts Manager 
immediately whenever an Authorized User in possession of such 
credentials is terminated or otherwise leaves the employ of the Contractor, 
and whenever an Authorized User's duties change such that the 
Authorized User no longer requires access to perform work for this 
Contract. 

 
g. Data storage on portable devices or media. 

 
(1) Except where otherwise specified herein, DSHS/LMTAAA Data shall 

not be stored by the Contractor on portable devices or media unless 
specifically authorized within the terms and conditions of the Contract. 
If so authorized, the Data shall be given the following protections: 

 
(a) Encrypt the Data. 

 
(b) Control access to devices with a Unique User ID and Hardened 

Password or stronger authentication method such as a physical 
token or biometrics. 

 
(c) Manually lock devices whenever they are left unattended and set 

devices to lock automatically after a period of inactivity, if this 
feature is available. Maximum period of inactivity is 20 minutes. 

 
(d) Apply administrative and physical security controls lo Portable 

Devices and Portable Media by: 
 

i. Keeping them in a Secure Area when not in use, 
 

ii. Using check-in/check-out procedures when they are shared, and 
 

iii. Taking frequent inventories. 
 

(2) When being transported outside of a Secure Area, Portable Devices 
and Portable Media with DSHS Confidential Information must be under 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 75



37 

the physical control of Contractor staff with authorization to access the 
Data, even if the Data is encrypted. 

 
h. Data stored for backup purposes. 

 
(1) DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential Information may be stored on Portable 

Media as part of a Contractor's existing, documented backup process 
for business continuity or disaster recovery purposes. Such storage is 
authorized until such time as that media would be reused during the 
course of normal backup operations. If backup media is retired while 
DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential Information still exists upon it, such media 
will be destroyed at that time in accordance with the disposition 
requirements below in Section 7 Data Disposition. 

 
(2) Data may be stored on non-portable media (e.g. Storage Area Network 

drives, virtual media, etc.) as part of a Contractor's existing, 
documented backup process for business continuity or disaster 
recovery purposes. If so, such media will be protected as otherwise 
described in this exhibit. If this media is retired while DSHS/LMTAAA 
Confidential Information still exists upon it, the data will be destroyed at 
that time in accordance with the disposition requirements below in 
Section 7 Data Disposition. 

 
i. Cloud storage. DSHS/LMTAAA Confidential Information requires 

protections equal to or greater than those specified elsewhere within this 
exhibit. Cloud storage of Data is problematic as neither LMTAAA nor the 
Contractor has control of the environment in which the Data is stored. For 
this reason: 

 
(1) DSHS Data will not be stored in any consumer grade Cloud solution, 

unless all of the following conditions are met: 
 

(a) Contractor has written procedures in place governing use of the 
Cloud storage and Contractor attests in writing that all such 
procedures will be uniformly followed. 

 
(b) The Data will be Encrypted while within the Contractor network. 
 
(c) The Data will remain Encrypted during transmission to the Cloud. 
 
(d) The Data will remain Encrypted at all times while residing within the 

Cloud storage solution. 
 
(e) The Contractor will possess a decryption key for the Data, and the 

decryption key will be possessed only by the Contractor and/or 
DSHS/LMTAAA. 

 
(f) The Data will not be downloaded to non-authorized systems, 

meaning systems that are not on either the DSHS or Contractor 
networks. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 76



38 

(g) The Data will not be decrypted until downloaded onto a computer 
within the control of an Authorized User and within either the DSHS 
or Contractor's network. 

 
(2) Data will not be stored on an Enterprise Cloud storage solution unless 

either: 
 

(a) The Cloud storage provider is treated as any other Sub-Contractor, 
and agrees in writing to all of the requirements within this exhibit; or, 

 
(b) The Cloud storage solution used is FedRAMP certified. 

 
(3) If the Data includes Protected Health Information covered by the 

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), the Cloud 
provider must sign a Business Associate Agreement prior to Data 
being stored in their Cloud solution. 

 
9. System Protection. To prevent compromise of systems which contain 

DSHS/LMTAAA Data or through which that Data passes: 
 

a. Systems containing DSHS Data must have all security patches or hotfixes 
applied within three months of being made available. 

 
b. The Contractor will have a method of ensuring that the requisite patches 

and hotfixes have been applied within the required timeframes. 
 
c. Systems containing DSHS/LMTAAA Data shall have an Anti-Malware 

application, if available, installed. 
 
d. Anti-Malware software shall be kept up to date. The product, its anti-virus 

engine, and any malware database the system uses, will be no more than 
one update behind current. 
 

10. Data Segregation. 
 

a. DSHS/LMTAAA Data must be segregated or otherwise distinguishable 
from non-DSHS/LMTAAA data. This is to ensure that when no longer 
needed by the Contractor, all DSHS/LMTAAA Data can be identified for 
return or destruction. It also aids in determining whether DSHS/LMTAAA 
Data has or may have been compromised in the event of a security 
breach. As such, one or more of the following methods will be used for 
data segregation. 
 
(1) DSHS/LMTAAA Data will be kept on media (e.g. hard disk, optical disc, 

tape, etc.) which will contain no non-DSHS/LMTAAA Data; and/or 
 

(2) DSHS/LMTAAA Data will be stored in a logical container on electronic 
media, such as a partition or folder dedicated to DSHS/LMTAAA Data; 
and/or 
 

(3) DSHS/LMTAAA Data will be stored in a database which will contain no 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 77



39 

non- DSHS/LMTAAA data; and/or 
 

(4) DSHS/LMTAAA Data will be stored within a database and will be 
distinguishable from non- DSHS/LMTAAA data by the value of a 
specific field or fields within database records. 
 

(5) When stored as physical paper documents, DSHS/LMTAAA Data will 
be physically segregated from non-DSHS/LMTAAA data in a drawer, 
folder, or other container. 

 
b. When it is not feasible or practical to segregate DSHS/LMTAAA Data 

from non- DSHS/LMTAAA data, then both the DSHS/LMTAAA Data and 
the non- DSHS/LMTAAA data with which it is commingled must be 
protected as described in this Exhibit. 

 
11. Data Disposition. When the contracted work has been completed or when 

the Data is no longer needed, except as noted above in Section 4.b, Data 
shall be returned to LMTAAA or destroyed. Media on which Data may be 
stored and associated acceptable methods of destruction are as follows: 

 
  Data stored on: Will be destroyed by: 
Server or workstation hard disks, or 

 
Removable media (e.g. floppies, 
USB flash drives, portable hard 
disks) excluding optical discs 

Using a "wipe" utility which will 
overwrite the Data at least three (3) 
times using either random or single 
character data, or 

 
Degaussing sufficiently to ensure that 
the Data cannot be reconstructed, or 

 
Physically destroying the disk. 

Paper documents with sensitive or 
Confidential Information 

Recycling through a contracted firm, 
provided the contract with the recycler 
assures that the confidentiality of Data 
will be protected. 

Paper documents containing 
Confidential Information requiring 
special handling (e.g. protected 
health information) 

On-site shredding, pulping, or 
incineration 

Optical discs (e.g. CDs or DVDs) Incineration, shredding, or completely 
defacing the readable surface with a 
coarse abrasive 

Magnetic tape Degaussing, incinerating or crosscut 
shredding 

 
12. Notification of Compromise or Potential Compromise. The compromise or 

potential compromise of DSHS/LMTAAA shared Data must be reported to the 
LMTAAA Contact Person designated in the Agreement within one (1) 
business day of discovery. Contractor must also take actions to mitigate the 
risk of loss and comply with any notification or other requirements imposed by 
law or DSHS/LMTAAA. 

 
January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 78



40 

13. Data shared with Subcontractors. If DSHS/LMTAAA Data provided under 
this Agreement is to be shared with a subcontractor, the Agreement with the 
subcontractor must include all of the data security provisions within this 
Agreement and within any amendments, attachments, or exhibits within this 
Agreement. If the Contractor cannot protect the Data as articulated within this 
Agreement, then the contract with the Subcontractor must be submitted to the 
LMTAAA Contact Person specified for this Agreement for review and 
approval. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 79



 1 

      
 Agreement#:  18-1120-0041-06(3) 

       Contractor:  MTA 
       Service:  Transportation 

Effective Date: January 1, 2020 
 

 
EXHIBIT B -- STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
LEWIS-MASON-THURSTON AREA AGENCY ON AGING (LMTAAA) 

 
AND 

 
MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC BENEFIT AREA 

dba 
MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) 
 

THE PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT is to establish a Statement of Work for this 
Agreement between LMTAAA and the Contractor. 
 
 
1. Service Description 
 

The Contractor shall provide Transportation to individuals age 60 or older in 
Lewis, Mason and/or Thurston County.  The Contractor shall provide services in 
accordance with WAC 480-30 and 480-31, RCW 81, WAC 388-106-110, Title III 
of the Older Americans Act and Americans with Disabilities Act Titles II and III. 
 
The Contractor shall provide Transportation services designed to transport older 
persons to and from medical and health care services, social services, meal 
programs, senior centers, shopping and recreational activities so such service 
will be accessible to eligible individuals who have no other means of 
transportation or are unable to use transportation. 
 

2. Eligibility Criteria 
 

The Contractor shall provide Transportation services to persons age 60 and over 
who meet the following criteria: 
 
a. Need transportation to medical and health care services, social services, 

meal programs, senior centers, shopping and recreational activities; and 
b. Cannot manage their own transportation because: 

 They do not have a car; or 
 They cannot drive; or 
 They cannot afford to drive; and 
 They cannot use public transportation; or 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 80



 2 

 Public transportation is not available or accessible. 
 

3. Target Population 
 

The Contractor shall target Transportation services to older adults with the 
following characteristics: 
 

 Elders with low income; 
 Frail elders (75+) in need of support to age in place; 
 Elders any age who live alone and who lack an adequate social support 

network; 
 Elders any age who live in very remote rural settings; 
 Elders with impaired health (including chronic medical, dental or mental 

illness); 
 Elders of ethnic and/or cultural minorities, including individuals with 

limited-English proficiency. 
 

4. Trip Prioritization 
 
 The Contractor shall prioritize trips as follows: 

 Medically related trips 
-Physician or Physician Assistant 
-Physical/Occupational/Speech Therapy 
-Dentist 
-Mental/Behavioral Health 
-Pharmacy 

 Adult Day Care 
-Adult day care program 
-Respite care 

 Essential Errands 
-Shopping for food/household goods 
-Banking 
-Post office 

 Social Services 
-Social Security 
-Home and Community Services/Area Agency on Aging 
-DSHS 
-Community Service Office 

 Nutrition Programs 
-Congregate meal programs 

 
5. Transportation Drivers-Paid and Volunteer 
 
 The Contractor shall ensure and document that all paid and volunteer drivers: 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 81



 3 

 Have an appropriate and valid Washington State Driver’s license.  State 
law requires commercial driver’s license for those driving a vehicle with a 
capacity of 16 or more; 

 Have had no moving traffic violations and have not been involved in any 
at-fault accidents within the past three years; 

 Are physically capable of safely driving the program vehicles, with written 
verification from a physician or other creditable source; and 

 Pass a criminal history background check. 
 Individual volunteer drivers are required to carry the state mandatory 

minimum amounts of insurance for private vehicles.  
 
6. Driver Training Guidelines 
 
 The Contractor shall assure paid vehicle drivers are trained adequately and are 

able to safely use all associated equipment through a formal training plan.   
 New drivers should be fully briefed about the transportation program, 

reporting forms, vehicle operation and the geographic area in which they 
will operate their vehicles. 

 Within the first six months of employment drivers should successfully 
complete the National Red Cross course in first aid training, including 
training, including the use of cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) 
techniques. Other courses that provide equivalent training can be 
substituted with approval of the Area Agency on Aging - AAA.  Drivers on 
an annual basis should complete refresher courses. Any alternative 
policies and procedures regarding emergency situations and required 
training for drivers can be reviewed and approved by the area agency.  

 Within the first six months of employment drivers should complete a 
defensive driving course. 

 Within the first six months of employment drivers should be provided 
training that will assist them in better serving the targeted population group 
within the provider’s service area.  Passenger assistance training such as 
ADAPT or PAT could be given directly by the provider or through other 
training resources available within the community with approval of the 
AAA.  The targeted population they may be serving could include people 
with disabilities and people who have limited English proficiency 

 Drivers should be made aware of the changes in the transportation 
program, reporting forms and vehicle operation through regular 
dissemination of such information in a formal verifiable manner (i.e. email, 
bulletin boards, newsletters, safety meetings, etc.) 

 
 The Contractor shall assure training of volunteer drivers as follows; 

 Training of volunteer drivers should include orientation to the sponsoring 
agency and the purpose of the program, role of volunteers, right and 
responsibilities, reimbursement, reporting requirements and evaluation.  
On-going in-service training should be provided to volunteers as 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 82



 4 

opportunities arise and should be coordinated with other community 
programs to increase the volunteer’s knowledge of services available for 
older persons in the community. 

 Volunteer drivers should have defensive driving training and passenger 
assistance and sensitivity training within the first sixty days following the 
initial driving assignment.  First Aid and CPR training is optional, 
depending on the sponsoring agency’s policy on the issue. 

 
7. Driver Evaluation-Paid and Volunteer 
 
 The Contractor shall  

 Evaluate each driver’s performance on a semi-annual basis,  
  which would include on-board evaluation of actual practice and general  

knowledge of the job.  The results of these semi-annual evaluations 
should be documented. 

 At least annually, each driver should have all of their job application 
information updated so that any changes in their status, which affect their 
ability to perform as a driver, would be noted.  At the same time, their 
performance and job responsibilities should be reviewed. 

 Investigate any accident involving a driver’s agency-sponsored activities 
immediately.  A report of the accident should be placed in the driver’s 
personnel file. 

 
8. Maintenance Recommendations 
 
 The Contractor shall follow these maintenance recommendations; 

 Prevention-The transportation provider should develop and implement a 
preventive maintenance program that adequately addresses all of the 
maintenance needs of vehicles and related equipment, utilizing, at a 
minimum, the maintenance schedule provided by the vehicle 
manufacturer. 

 Documentation-There should be a system in place to document the time 
and circumstances of all maintenance services received by each vehicle 
and related equipment.  Vehicle servicing should be based upon the 
preventive maintenance schedule. 

 For profit and non-profit agency vehicles should meet ADA vehicle 
accessibility requirements and keep ADA equipment maintained. 

 Personally owned vehicles (POV) must be maintained under state law 
minimum requirements.  Volunteers are responsible for maintaining their 
own vehicles. 

 
9. Reporting Requirements 
 
 The Contractor shall complete a Participant Information Form (PIF) in its entirety  

(annually for every participant) and submit PIF’s for all new clients to Contracts 
Manager monthly. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 83



 5 

 
 

10. Referral to Information and Assistance/Case Management 
 
 The Contractor shall, subject to client consent, all clients who appear to meet the 

vulnerability criteria should be referred to the I&A component of the I&A/CM 
program screening to determine the need for case management. 

 
11. Contribution Policy 
 

The Contractor shall allow persons who receive services funded by Title III of the 
Older Americans Act a free and voluntary opportunity to contribute to the cost of 
services provided.  The Contractor must protect each person’s privacy with 
respect to his/her contribution, establish procedures to safeguard and account for 
all contributions made by users of the service and use all such contributions to 
expand the service for which the contribution was received. 
 
The Contractor shall develop a suggested contribution schedule.  If a schedule is 
developed, the provider must consider the income ranges of older persons in the 
community and the provider’s other sources of income.  No otherwise eligible 
person may be denied service because he/she will not or cannot contribute to the 
cost of the service. 
 

12. Service Levels 
 

The Contractor shall set as a goal for the current calendar year the following 
estimated services levels: 
 

 Proposed number of trips to be provided in 2020:  
1,550 trips. 

 Proposed number of miles to be provided in 2020:  
71,395 miles. 

 Proposed number of unduplicated clients to be served in 2020:  
101 unduplicated clients. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 84



 1 

Agreement#:  18-1120-0041-06(3) 
       Contractor:  MTA 
       Service:  Transportation 

Effective Date: January 1, 2020 
 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS – EXHIBIT C 
 

LEWIS-MASON-THURSTON AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
 

AND 
 

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC BENEFIT AREA 
dba 

 MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
 

THE PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT is to establish Special Terms and Conditions for 
this Agreement between LMTAAA and the Contractor. 
 
 
1. Purpose.  It is the purpose of this Agreement to provide Transportation Services, 

in compliance with Washington State Department of Social and Health Services, 
Aging and Long Term Support Administration (hereinafter referred to as "DSHS") 
service definitions, standards and/or guidelines and in accordance with the 
herein enumerated work plan, to individuals age sixty (60) years and above who 
are determined to be eligible for this service under the Washington State Senior 
Citizens Services Act, and/or provisions of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as 
amended. 

 
2. Period of Performance.  Subject to its other provisions, the period of 

performance of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2020 and be 
completed on December 31, 2020 unless terminated sooner according to 
provisions enumerated in the General Terms and Conditions.  

 
3. Service Area.  The geographic service area in which the Contractor shall provide 

the defined service is Mason County. 
 
4. Eligibility Determination.  Determination of client eligibility for service under this 

Agreement shall be determined by the Contractor according to the applicable 
laws and regulations of the Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act, 
and/or provisions of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended. Priority will 
be given to vulnerable, low-income, minority and limited-English speaking elderly 
and those individuals meeting target population criteria as outlined in program 
standards the Aging and Long Term Support Administration Policy and 
Procedures Manual for Area Agency on Aging Operations. The Contractor shall 
develop methods for locating and identifying the priority individuals. 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 85



 2 

 
5.  Consideration and Reimbursement. 
 

A. Maximum Consideration 
 

The maximum consideration for work performed under this Agreement shall 
not exceed Thirty-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Ten Dollars 
($38,910) from the provisions of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as 
amended and/or Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act. 
 
This award is subject to the availability of federal, state and local funds.  As 
such, the maximum consideration of this Agreement is subject to unilateral 
reduction by the COG should the anticipated level of federal, state or local 
funding not be made available. 

 
B. Basis for Reimbursement 
 

This is a Fee for Service sub-recipient contract. Payment shall be made on 
the basis of Fifty-seven point five cents ($.57.5) per mile delivered in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

C. Match Requirements 
 

The federal share of the total cost, including match, may not exceed eighty-
five percent (85%) of the total cost of this Agreement. The required non-
federal match is Six Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty-Seven ($6,867).  Local 
match may be met with cash and/or in-kind resources, identified in the budget 
and utilized in the performance of the service(s) described in this Agreement. 

 
D. Reimbursement Procedure 

 
(1) LMTAAA shall provide payment to the Contractor for costs of services 

performed hereunder as evidenced by proper invoice submitted by the 
Contractor to LMTAAA no later than the fifteenth day of each calendar 
month following the calendar month during which the services were 
performed. 

  
(2) LMTAAA agrees to make payment with warrants for services provided as 

approved by the LMTAAA within thirty (30) days following receipt of the 
Contractor's claim for reimbursement, except as otherwise provided in the 
General Terms and Conditions. 

 
(3) LMTAAA may withhold reimbursement from the Contractor if the terms of 

this Agreement are not met.  Reimbursement may be withheld for a time 
equal to the period of non-compliance. 

 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 86



 3 

(4) LMTAAA may reduce the Contractor's reimbursement by One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) for each failure to include the required listing of LMTAAA 
and funding source information on Contractor controlled public materials and 
messages. 

 
6. Budget.  The Contractor must provide a description of how the budgeted and 

actual costs of the service provided under this Agreement were calculated. This 
may be in the form of a formal written Cost Allocation Plan or it might be a simple 
worksheet that includes formulas that were used to allocate a percentage of shared 
costs to the activities of this Agreement. Allocations must be based on measurable 
and verifiable indicators such as units provided, FTEs disbursed, or square footage 
among others. This description must be submitted annually with the new budget 
and whenever allocation changes are made during the contract year. 

 
7. Reports. 
 

A. The LMTAAA requires programmatic reports be submitted by the fifteenth day 
of the month following the month service was provided. 

 
B. The Contractor shall submit revenue/expenditure reports by the last day of the 

month following the end of each calendar quarter. 
 

Revenue/expenditure reports shall conform to the following requirements: 
 
 (1) Revenue and Expenditures 

 
a. A complete record of all revenues earned from all sources and all 

expenditures incurred in the provision of services performed 
hereunder; 

b. All amounts of revenue and expenditure are traceable to source 
documents; 

c. All revenue and expenditures are allocated using the approved cost 
allocation plan and budget developed for the provision of services 
performed hereunder; 

d. Worksheets and source documents are readily available and 
reviewable. 

   
(2) Number of Service Units 

 
a. Traceable back to source documents; 
b. Source documents are readily available and reviewable. 

 
(3) Projections 

  
a. Reasonable and complete; 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 87



 4 

b. Worksheets and source documents are readily available and 
reviewable. 

 
8. Provisions of Service Delivery.  In addition to the Statement of Work and 

General Terms and Conditions, the Contractor agrees to the following:  
 
A. The Contractor shall provide advanced written notification to LMTAAA of all 

proposed changes in the administration of the program and/or staffing plan. 
Program and staffing plan changes must be reviewed and approved by 
LMTAAA prior to implementation. 

B. The Contractor shall provide written notification to LMTAAA when prioritization 
plans need to be implemented. Prioritization plans must be reviewed and 
approved by LMTAAA prior to implementation. 

C. The Contractor shall notify LMTAAA of any significant management problems 
or situations that may impact the provision of service. 

 
D. The Contractor shall conduct annual client satisfaction surveys and share the 

results with LMTAAA. Original responses to the client satisfaction surveys will 
be made available to LMTAAA upon request and/or monitoring visits. 

 
E. The Contractor shall provide substantially equal levels of service in all months 

within the period of performance of this Agreement. 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 88



Service Transportation Budget
Funding Source OAA IIIB/SCSA 2018-2021 RFP Attachment H

Total Budget $65,182 Total $99,191
Units of Service 67,050 less in-kind $32,725
Unit Rate (if applicable) $0.97 Contract unit rate: $0.580 less non-qualified trips $1,284

Contract budget $65,182
A B C D E F G

Description Total All F+G OAA/SCSA funds Project Income Other Cash Subtotal C+D+E In-Kind
TOTALS $99,191 $38,910 $2,000 $24,106 $65,016 $34,175

 
Salaries $46,665 $2,000 $11,315 $13,315
see staffing plan $13,315 $2,000 $11,315 $13,315
Volunteer Hours est @2,900 $33,350 $33,350
Benefits $8,196 $8,196 $8,196
FICA $1,019 $1,019 $1,019

Unemployment $0 $0

L&I $143 $143 $143

Retirement $1,712 $1,712 $1,712

  $5,322 $5,322 $5,322

Dental $0

Other (vision) $0

Office Supplies $200
 Office supplies, copying $200 $200
Operating Supplies $0
mail, gas $20 $20
Professional Services $0

Communications $0
phone, internet

Staff Travel $0

Other Travel $32,000 $28,750 $2,425 $31,175 $825
Other Travel- Additionally Awarded Funds $9,810
Advertising $1,450 $350 $1,100 $1,450
advertising printing, advertising

Operating Rentals $0
(name type of rental)

Insurance $0

Public Utilities $0

Repairs/Maintenance $0

Miscellaneous Expense $320
Volunteer Recognition, Postage $320 $320
Education/Training $150 $150 $150

Contract Services $400
Background & DMV checks $400 $400
Equipment Expense $0
(name type of expense)

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 89



Staffing Plan 2020 Budget

hr/wk hr/yr FTE Position
AAA Contract / 

OAA/SCSA Other (name source) (name source) (name source) Total F - J

40 21.45 Dispatch/Scheduler S 9,369 35,693 44,616.00   
8.4 week % 21% 80% 101%

36.40 mo fte 0.21 0.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.01
40 21.47 Accounting Assistant II S 893 40,192 44,657.60   

0.8 week % 2% 90% 92%
3.47 mo fte 0.02 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.92

32 31.54 Outreach/Transit Planner S 2,624 52,089 52,482.56   
1.6 week % 5.000% 99.25% 104%

8.67 mo fte 0.0500 0.9925 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04
40 41.23 Administrative Services Manager S 429 85,115 85,758.40   

0.2 week % 0.50% 99.25% 100%
0.87 mo fte 0.0050 0.9925 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00

Total Salaries $13,315 $213,089 $0 $0 $0 $227,515
Total FTE 0.29 3.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97

Retirement 5,738                         1,205                         Dispatch/Scheduler
5,743                         115                            Acctg Assistant II
6,749                         337                            Outreach/Transit Planner

11,029                       55                               Administrative Services Manager
21,799                       1,712                         

Medical/Dental/Vision/Life 18,899                       3,969                         Dispatch/Scheduler
14,638                       293                            Acctg Assistant II
19,280                       964                            Outreach/Transit Planner
19,269                       96                               Administrative Services Manager
72,086                       5,322                         

FICA 3,413                         717                            Dispatch/Scheduler
3,416                         68                               Acctg Assistant II
4,015                         201                            Outreach/Transit Planner
6,561                         33                               Administrative Services Manager

17,405                       1,019                         

L & I 416                            87                               Dispatch/Scheduler
416                            8                                 Acctg Assistant II
383                            19                               Outreach/Transit Planner
416                            2                                 Administrative Services Manager

4,806                         143                            

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 90



CONTRACT SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION 
 

Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging 
 
CONTRACTOR:           
 
SERVICE:             
 
This is to certify that: the following named person(s) are authorized by the above 
named Contractor to commit the Contractor to the terms and conditions of 
contracts written between itself and the Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on 
Aging; and their specimen signatures are genuine.    

 
1.           

Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 
 

2.           
Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 
 

3.           
Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 
 

4.           
Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 

 
 
Certified By:           

Contractor Signature  
(President, Chairman of Board or comparable official)  

 
            
 Title       Date 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 91



INVOICE SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION 
 

Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging 
 
CONTRACTOR:           
 
SERVICE:             
 
This is to certify that: the following named person(s) are authorized to sign 
requests for payment of services provided by the Contractor; and their 
specimen signatures are genuine. 

 
1.           

Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 

 
2.           

Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 

 
3.           

Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 
 
 
 

4.           
Name (typed or printed)    Title  
 
          
Specimen Signature 

 
 
 
Certified By:           

Contractor Signature  
(President, Chairman of Board or comparable official)  

 
            
 Title       Date 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 92



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Change Order #1 – Roundabout Project 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The work included in the change order is directly tied to work scoped in the original bid 
documents. The original bid documents show work being performed on the MTA Belfair 
park and ride site. The MTA Belfair park and ride site has a comprehensive approved 
grading permit for the full park and ride site. The original contract was scoped to 
construct a portion of the park and ride site to provide shared stormwater 
improvements for the roundabout and the park and ride. The additional work scoped in 
the change order was to develop the grading of the site and the other stormwater pond 
to ensure proper function of the shared stormwater pond and to ensure the park and 
ride site integrated with the frontage road improvements. The additional grading also 
helps to prevent erosion and sediment for the original scope of work. 
 
 
 
Summary: Information provided regarding Change Order #1 in an amount 
not to exceed $85,000. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to Exceed $85,000 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 93



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 94



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 95



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 96



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Salary Compensation and Wage Matrix 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
With the second draft of the 2020 Budget, the Non-represented Compensation and 
Philosophy Plan and the updated Non-represented Placement Schedule were included 
for review as part of the Budget Narrative.  When presenting the final budget for 
approval in December the actionable Salary Matrix item was omitted from the narrative. 
 
The Non-represented Placement Schedule was last updated in 2015.  Using the WSTA 
Salary Repository along with local area employers’ wage data, each non-represented 
position was reviewed.  It was discovered that a handful of positions were under-valued 
when comparing to other transit agencies or local employers. In fact, some positions 
were below the average low of some peers.  This information was reviewed with both 
the Board HR & Finance Committees. As a result, it was proposed that the scale receive 
a 5% increase.  The approved 2020 Budget included wage adjustments for the 
identified positions.  
 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the Salary Matrix and Compensation Philosophy for non-
represented employees. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Included in the 2020 Budget. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-02, to approve 
the Non-represented Placement Schedule. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 97



MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY
 NON-REPRESENTED PLACEMENT SCHEDULE 2020

 Job Classes / Job Titles Grade  Positions for Comparison 2019 Actual
IT Support 1 Avg Low Avg High 12/31/2019

Annual 30,160$     31,668$     31,668$      33,251$     33,251$     34,914$     34,914$       36,660$      
Hourly 14.5000$   15.2250$   15.2250$    15.9863$   15.9863$   16.7856$   16.7856$     17.6248$    

Proposed Annual 31,668$     33,251$     33,251$      34,914$     34,914$     36,660$     36,660$       38,493$      Entry- Data Analyst 34,462$        45,695$      20,800$      
Hourly 15.2250$   15.9863$   15.9863$    16.7856$   16.7856$   17.6248$   17.6248$     18.5061$    

Accounting Assistant 2
T-CC Facilities Technician Annual 36,546$     38,373$     38,373$      40,292$     40,292$     42,306$     42,306$       44,421$      Entry- Acctg Asst 38,813$        51,243$      

Hourly 17.5700$   18.4485$   18.4485$    19.3709$   19.3709$   20.3395$   20.3395$     21.3564$    Mid- Acctg Asst 43,490$        56,815$      43,680$      
Proposed Annual 38,373$     40,292$     40,292$      42,306$     42,306$     44,421$     44,421$       46,642$       Entry- Fac. Maint. Worker 37,881$        47,347$      33,738$      

Hourly 18.4485$   19.3709$   19.3709$    20.3395$   20.3395$   21.3564$   21.3564$     22.4243$    Mid-Fac. Maint. Worker 47,052$        60,129$      
T-CC Building Superintendent 3
Executive Assistant Annual 46,634$     48,965$     48,965$      51,414$     51,414$     53,984$     53,984$       56,683$       Mid- Clerk/Exec Asst 52,826$        70,171$      51,787$      

Hourly 22.4200$   23.5410$   23.5410$    24.7181$   24.7181$   25.9540$   25.9540$     27.2517$    Mid- Fac. Maint. Supv 65,646$        82,027$      
Proposed Annual 48,965$     51,414$     51,414$      53,984$     53,984$     56,683$     56,683$       59,518$      Senior- Fac. Maint. Worker 49,095$        67,824$      49,317$      

Hourly 23.5410$   24.7181$   24.7181$    25.9540$   25.9540$   27.2517$   27.2517$     28.6142$    
Staff Accountant 4
Outreach/Transit Planner Annual 48,984$     51,433$     51,433$      54,005$     54,005$     56,705$     56,705$       59,540$      
Lead Mechanic Hourly 23.5500$   24.7275$   24.7275$    25.9639$   25.9639$   27.2621$   27.2621$     28.6252$    

Proposed Annual 51,433$     54,005$     54,005$      56,705$     56,705$     59,540$     59,540$       62,517$      
Hourly 24.7275$   25.9639$   25.9639$    27.2621$   27.2621$   28.6252$   28.6252$     30.0564$    Mid-Mechanic 54,169$        65,378$      58,178$      

Ops/Safety Training Supervisor 5
Systems Administrator Annual 51,771$     54,359$     54,359$      57,077$     57,077$     59,931$     59,931$       62,927$      Mid- Dispatch Supv 56,444$        75,781$      58,285$      
Comm Center Supervisor Hourly 24.8897$   26.1342$   26.1342$    27.4409$   27.4409$   28.8129$   28.8129$     30.2536$    *Entry-Ops Supv 60,591$        78,514$      52,936$      

Proposed Annual 54,359$     57,077$     57,077$      59,931$     59,931$     62,927$     62,927$       66,074$      *Road Manager 49,258$        64,099$      51,771$      
 Hourly 26.1342$   27.4409$   27.4409$    28.8129$   28.8129$   30.2536$   30.2536$     31.7663$    Mid-Trainer/Supv 67,167$        89,550$      55,004$      
Assistant Ops Manager 6 Entry-Systems Admin 46,467$        58,074$      54,131$      

Accounting Supervisor Annual 59,543$     62,520$     62,520$      65,647$     65,647$     68,929$     68,929$       72,375$      Entry- Acctg Supv 49,025$        68,994$      59,594$      
 Hourly 28.6266$   30.0579$   30.0579$    31.5608$   31.5608$   33.1389$   33.1389$     34.7958$    Mid-Acctg Supv 69,633$        87,719$      

Proposed Annual 62,520$     65,647$     65,647$      68,929$     68,929$     72,375$     72,375$       75,994$      Mid-Ops Supv 61,330$        79,206$      66,056$      
 Hourly 30.0579$   31.5608$   31.5608$    33.1389$   33.1389$   34.7958$   34.7958$     36.5356$    
Admin. Services Manager 7
Maintenance Manager Annual 72,375$     75,994$     75,994$      79,794$     79,794$     83,783$     83,783$       87,973$       Mid- Finance Mgr. 71,673$        97,321$      79,397$      
Operations Manager Hourly 34.7958$   36.5356$   36.5356$    38.3624$   38.3624$   40.2805$   40.2805$     42.2945$    Mid-HR Mgr. 75,668$        98,656$      

Annual 75,994$     79,794$     79,794$      83,783$     83,783$     87,973$     87,973$       92,371$      Mid-Ops Mgr. 81,556$        109,994$    78,860$      
Hourly 36.5356$   38.3624$   38.3624$    40.2805$   40.2805$   42.2945$   42.2945$     44.4092$    Mid-Fleet & Fac. Mgr 75,441$        101,420$    81,886$      

General Manager 8
Annual 83,377$     87,546$     87,546$      91,923$     91,923$     96,519$     96,519$       101,345$    General Manager 86,601$        113,622$    100,740$    
Hourly 40.0851$   42.0894$   42.0894$    44.1938$   44.1938$   46.4035$   46.4035$     48.7237$    

Proposed Annual 87,546$     91,923$     91,923$      96,519$     96,519$     101,345$   101,345$     106,413$    
Hourly 42.0894$   44.1938$   44.1938$    46.4035$   46.4035$   48.7237$   48.7237$     51.1599$    

Range 1 Range 2 Range 3 Range 4  Repository 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 98



Resolution No. 2020-02 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING THE ATTACHED NON-REPRESENTED PLACEMENT 

SCHEDULE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board has received the Non-Represented 

Placement Schedule (also known as a wage and salary matrix) and its proposed annual and 
hourly salary range increases; and 

 WHEREAS, the salaries, as proposed, have been provided for in the 2020 Budget that 
was approved by the Board pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-30;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the attached Non-Represented Placement Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
is hereby approved. 
 

Adopted this 21st day of January, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  [Vacant], Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 99



Resolution No. 2020-02 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 100



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Capital Grant Agreement No. PTD0005 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
MTA has been awarded a Capital Grant Agreement (PTD0005) as a part of the 
Washington State Department of Transportation’s Discretionary Grant Program for the 
purchase of two (2) replacement heavy duty hybrid buses to replace two 40-foot diesel 
buses to support the commuter service in rural Mason County as described in Project A 
of the agreement. These hybrid buses will replace two of MTA’s worker driver buses 
that are beyond their useful life. 
 
The agreement has been reviewed by legal counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve Capital Grant Agreement No. PTD0005. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$296,538 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-03 that 
approves the Capital Grant Agreement PTD0005 and authorizes the General Manager to 
sign that Agreement. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 101



WSDOT Contact: Alan Soicher 360-333-8946

SoicheA@wsdot.wa.gov

Agreement Number Contractor:

Term of Project

Vendor #

CFDA #

DUNS

Service Area Contact:

Discretionary Grant Program
Capital Grant Agreement

PTD0005

July 1, 2019 through the useful life of 
the Project Equipment

Total Current Agreement 
Cost

1,482,690$                             

1,482,690$                             

296,538$                                

1,779,228$                             

-$                                       State Funds

Total Grant Funds

Contractor's Funds

911554133

832544217

Mason County Public 
 Transportation Benefit Area

 Mason Transit Authority
 790 E Johns Prairie

Shelton, WA 98584-1265

As defined in Scope of Work and 
Budget Danette Brannin 360-426-9434

20.526 (§5339)

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into by the Washington State Department of Transportation, hereinafter
“WSDOT,” and the Contractor identified above, hereinafter the “CONTRACTOR,” individually the
“PARTY” and collectively the “PARTIES.”

WHEREAS, the State of Washington in its Sessions Laws of 2019, Chapter 416 Section 220
authorizes funding for Public Transportation Programs and other special proviso funding as identified
in the budget through its 2019-2021 biennial appropriations to WSDOT; and

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has requested funds for the above shown project or program, which
has been selected by WSDOT for funding assistance.

Current Agreement Costs

Federal Funds

SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performances contained
herein, or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS
FOLLOWS:

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 1 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 102



Funding by Project

Project A:
UPIN # PTV1803

Service Area:
Scope of Work:

Funds Federal Award
Identification #

Current 
Percentage

Current Funds Projected 
Funds

Total Current 
and Projected 

Funds

FTA 5339 (b) TBD 83%  $         1,482,690  $         1,482,690 

Contractor's Funds N/A 17%  $            296,538  $            296,538 

Total Project Cost 100% 1,779,228$          -$                    1,779,228$          

Budget:

Two (2) Replacement Heavy-Duty Buses

Purchase two (2) heavy duty hybrid buses to replace two 40-foot diesel buses 
to support commuter service in rural Mason County, Washington.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for the 
Project in the 2019-2021 biennium.

Mason County

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 2 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 103



 

Section 1 
Purpose of Agreement 

A.  The purpose of this AGREEMENT is for WSDOT to provide funding to the CONTRACTOR for 
the acquisition and operation of equipment to be used in the provision of public transportation 
services that meet the needs of persons in the State of Washington.  
B. On projects where WSDOT is providing only state funds and the CONTRACTOR is using funds 
received directly from the federal government as their share or part thereof on the project, the 
CONTRACTOR must assume full responsibility for complying with all federal rules and regulations. 
If the CONTRACTOR is found in non-compliance with federal rules and regulations, the 
CONTRACTOR shall provide a written notification to WSDOT supplying details related to the non-
compliance. Both parties will analyze and determine the impact on the scope, schedule, and funding 
of the project. Remedies required up to and including return of funds will be identified to ensure the 
project’s scope of work is met as intended. 
 

Section 2 
Scope of Project 

The CONTRACTOR shall undertake and complete the Project(s) described and detailed in the 
“Scope of Work and Budget,” which is by this reference incorporated in this AGREEMENT and 
operate the Project Equipment within the area described in the caption space header titled “Service 
Area,” in accordance with the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. The caption space header 
titled “Service Area” and all caption space headers are by this reference incorporated in this 
AGREEMENT. 
 

Section 3 
General Compliance Assurance 

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all instructions as prescribed in WSDOT’s Consolidated 
Grants Program Guidebook, hereinafter referred to as “Guidebook”, and any amendments thereto, 
found at https://www.wsdot.wa.gov/transit/grants/manage, which by this reference is incorporated 
herein as if fully set forth in this AGREEMENT.  
The CONTRACTOR agrees that WSDOT, and/or any authorized WSDOT representative, shall 
have not only the right to monitor the compliance of the CONTRACTOR with respect to the 
provisions of this AGREEMENT but also have the right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to 
any matter arising under this AGREEMENT. 
 

Section 4 
Term of Agreement 

The Project period shall begin on the date shown in the caption space header titled “Term of 
Agreement” and shall continue through the useful life of the Project Equipment regardless of the 
date of signature and execution of this AGREEMENT, unless terminated as provided herein.  
WSDOT has defined the useful life of vehicle Project Equipment in the Vehicle Disposition Schedule 
in the Guidebook, and any amendments thereto. Non-vehicle Project Equipment’s useful life will be 
determined by WSDOT taking into consideration the manufacturer’s recommended lifecycle and 
the CONTRACTOR’s previous experience with the asset, if any. 
 

Section 5 
Contractor’s Share of Project Costs 

A. The total Project cost shall not exceed the amounts detailed in the “Funding by Project” table.  
The CONTRACTOR agrees to expend eligible funds, together with any “Contractor Funds” 
allocated for the Project, in an amount sufficient to complete the Project.  The CONTRACTOR 
further agrees that there shall be no reduction in the amount specified as the “Contractor Funds” 
unless there is a concurrent proportional reduction in the “State Funds” and/or “Federal Funds” 
identified in the “Funding by Project” table, or WSDOT pre-approves the reduction in writing. If at 
any time the CONTRACTOR becomes aware that the cost which it expects to incur in the 
performance of this AGREEMENT will exceed or be less than the amount identified as “Total Project 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 3 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 104



 

Cost” the CONTRACTOR shall notify WSDOT in writing within thirty (30) business days of making 
that determination. Nothing in Section 5(A), shall preclude the requirements specified in Section 
6(C) for payments at the end of the biennium.  
B. Minimum Match: The CONTRACTOR is required to provide a minimum match of funds for the 
Project as identified in the “Funding by Project” table reflected in the Contractor Funds. Any 
reduction in match will result in a proportional reduction in grant funds.  
 

Section 6 
Reimbursement and Payment 

A.  State and/ or federal funds shall be used to reimburse the CONTRACTOR for allowable 
expenses incurred in completing the Project as described in “Scope of Work and Budget.”  
Allowable Project expenses shall be determined by WSDOT as described in the Guidebook.  In no 
event shall the total amount reimbursed by WSDOT exceed “State Funds” and/or “Federal Funds” 
identified in the caption space header titled “Project Costs,” above. 
B.  Payment will be made by WSDOT on a reimbursable basis for actual net Project costs incurred 
within the timeframe in the caption space titled “Term of Agreement.”  Such costs to be reimbursed 
shall be calculated as described in the Guidebook.  WSDOT shall make no payments for costs 
incurred prior to the beginning or after the end date of the “Term of the Agreement” as set forth in 
the caption space header above.  The CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice detailing and 
supporting the costs incurred. If approved by WSDOT, said invoices shall be paid by WSDOT within 
thirty (30) days of submission to WSDOT. Payment is subject to the submission to and approval by 
WSDOT of appropriate invoices, reports, and financial summaries. Any financial summaries 
submitted to WSDOT must include a record of the actual costs. 
C.  The CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice for completed work in the same state fiscal period, 
as defined in RCW 43.88, starting on July 1 and ending on June 30 the following year within the 
timeframe set forth in the caption space header of this AGREEMENT entitled “Term of Agreement” 
during which the work was performed.  Reimbursement requests must be received by July 15 of 
each state fiscal period. If the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide an invoice by this date, the 
CONTRACTOR shall provide an estimate of the charges to be billed so WSDOT may accrue the 
expenditures in the proper fiscal period. Any subsequent reimbursement request submitted will be 
limited to the amount accrued as set forth in this section. Any payment request received after the 
timeframe prescribed above will not be eligible for reimbursement. 
D.  For vehicle purchases, the Project Equipment titles shall designate WSDOT as the legal owner 
and the CONTRACTOR as the registered owner through the project period. Subject to the 
CONTRACTOR’s compliance with all terms of this AGREEMENT, WSDOT will release the interest 
of ownership of the Project Equipment to the CONTRACTOR in writing thirty (30) days from the end 
of the useful life of the Project Equipment, as defined in the Guidebook. 
 

Section 7 
Purchases 

The CONTRACTOR shall make purchases of any Project Equipment pursuant to this AGREEMENT 
through procurement procedures approved in advance in writing by WSDOT and consistent with 
the following Government Orders provision:  In case any lawful government authority shall issue 
any order with respect to the Project or Project Equipment, or any part thereof, or the PARTIES 
hereto or either of them, the CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with WSDOT in carrying out such 
order and will arrange its operation and business so as to enable WSDOT to comply with the terms 
of the order. 
 

Section 8 
Inspection Upon Delivery 

The CONTRACTOR shall inspect Project Equipment purchased pursuant to this AGREEMENT at 
the time of delivery to the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR has 15 calendar days from delivery 
to either accept or reject the Project Equipment. If rejected, the CONTRACTOR shall provide a 
written notice specifying the Project Equipment deficiencies to its vendor and WSDOT, allowing the 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 4 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 105



 

vendor a reasonable amount of time to cure the deficiencies or defect.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of Project Equipment, the CONTRACTOR agrees that it has fully inspected the Project 
Equipment and accepts it as suitable for the purpose under this AGREEMENT, as being in good 
condition and state of good repair and that the CONTRACTOR is satisfied with the Project 
Equipment and that the Project Equipment complies with all regulations, rules, and laws. Payment 
to the vendor must occur within thirty days of the Project Equipment acceptance. 
 

Section 9 
Miscellaneous Charges and Conditions 

The CONTRACTOR shall pay and be solely responsible for all storage charges, parking charges, 
late fees, and fines, as well as any fees (including vehicle registration, license, safety and emission 
control inspection fees), and taxes, except applicable state sales or use tax, which may be imposed 
with respect to the Project Equipment by a duly constituted governmental authority as the result of 
the CONTRACTOR’s use or intended use of the Project Equipment. Required visual and road test 
inspection fees on vehicles for acceptance and software licensing use fees are eligible for 
reimbursement.  All replacements, repairs, or substitutions of parts or Project Equipment shall be 
at the cost and expense of the CONTRACTOR. 
 

Section 10 
Assignments and Subcontracts 

A.  Unless otherwise authorized in advance and in writing by WSDOT, the CONTRACTOR shall 
not assign any Project Equipment under this AGREEMENT or execute any contract, amendment, 
or change order thereto pertaining to the Project Equipment, or obligate itself in any manner with 
any third party with respect to its rights and responsibilities under this AGREEMENT or lease or 
lend the Project Equipment or any part thereof to be used by anyone not under the 
CONTRACTOR’s direct supervision. 
B.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to include Sections 10 through 23, and Section 29 of this 
AGREEMENT in each subcontract and in all contracts it enters into for the employment of any 
individuals, procurement of any incidental goods or supplies, or the performance of any work to be 
accomplished under this AGREEMENT.  It is further agreed that those clauses shall not be modified 
in any such subcontract, except to identify the subcontractor or other person or entity that will be 
subject to its provisions.  In addition, the following provision shall be included in any advertisement 
or invitation to bid for any procurement by the CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT: 

Statement of Financial Assistance: 
“This AGREEMENT is subject to the appropriations of the State of Washington.” 

 
Section 11 

Reports and Use of Project Equipment 
A. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the Project Equipment shall be used for the provision of 
transportation service within the area described in the caption space header titled “Service Area,” 
for the Project Equipment’s useful life as set forth in Section 4 – Term of Agreement of this 
AGREEMENT.  The CONTRACTOR further agrees that it will not use or permit the use of the 
Project Equipment in a negligent manner or in violation of any law, or so as to avoid any insurance 
covering the same, or permit the Project Equipment to become subject to any lien, charge, or 
encumbrance. Should the CONTRACTOR unreasonably delay or fail to use the Project Equipment 
during the useful life of the Project Equipment, the CONTRACTOR agrees that it may be required 
to refund up to the entire amount of the state share expended on the Project.  The CONTRACTOR 
shall immediately notify WSDOT when any Project Equipment is withdrawn from Project use or 
when Project Equipment is used in a manner substantially different from that identified in “Scope of 
Work and Budget.”  If the Project Equipment is permanently removed from transportation service, 
the CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately contact WSDOT for instructions regarding the disposal 
of the Project Equipment.  For vehicle purchases only, the CONTRACTOR further understands that 
the Project Equipment shall be used to provide passenger service levels as described below: 

1. A minimum of 100 passenger, revenue service miles per vehicle per week: or  

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 5 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 106



 

2. A minimum of 100 one-way passenger trips per vehicle per week.  
B. Reports.  The CONTRACTOR shall prepare any required quarterly reports regarding services 
provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT and other related information as prescribed in the 
Guidebook, or as requested by WSDOT. The CONTRACTOR shall keep satisfactory written 
records with regard to the use of Project Equipment and shall submit the following reports in a 
format and at such times as prescribed by WSDOT until the useful life of the Project Equipment 
expires: 

1. Reports describing the current usage of Project Equipment include, but are not limited to: 
a) Project Passenger Trips Provided 
b) Project Service Hours Provided 
c) Project Revenue Service Miles Provided 
d) Asset Management Plan 
e) Vehicle or Equipment Inventory 

2. In the event any portion of the Project Equipment sustains disabling damage as defined in 
the Guidebook, and/or triggers drug and alcohol testing, the CONTRACTOR shall notify WSDOT 
immediately after the occasion of the damage, including the circumstances thereof. 

3. The CONTRACTOR shall collect and submit to WSDOT, at such time as WSDOT may 
require, such financial statements, data, records, contracts, and other documents related to the 
Project as may be deemed necessary by WSDOT. 
C. If the project is receiving Transit Coordination or Regional Mobility grant funds, in addition to 
the requirements from subsection A, the CONTRACTOR shall submit a mutually agreeable 
Performance Measurement Plan to WSDOT. 
D. Remedies for Misuse or Noncompliance.  The CONTRACTOR shall not use any Project 
Equipment in a manner different from that described in “Scope of Work and Budget”, and the 
“Service Area” identified in the AGREEMENT header of this AGREEMENT. If WSDOT determines 
that Project Equipment has been used in a manner different from that described in “Scope of Work 
and Budget” and/or the “Service Area” identified in the caption space header above, WSDOT may 
direct the CONTRACTOR to dispose of the Project Equipment acquired by the CONTRACTOR. 
WSDOT may also withhold payments should it determine that the CONTRACTOR has failed to 
comply with any provision of this AGREEMENT.   

 
Section 12 

Maintenance of Project Equipment 
The CONTRACTOR shall make all necessary repairs and reasonably maintain the Project 
Equipment to assure it remains in good and operational condition for the useful life of the Project 
Equipment.  All service, materials, and repairs in connection with the use and operation of the 
Project Equipment during its useful life shall be at the CONTRACTOR’s expense. CONTRACTORS 
who are transit agencies must also have a Transit Asset Management Plan certified by WSDOT. 
All other CONTRACTORS must have a WSDOT-approved written Vehicle Maintenance Plan or 
submit one to WSDOT for approval by October 1, 2019, or prior to the receipt of their first grant-
funded vehicle.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to, at a minimum, service the Project Equipment and 
replace parts at intervals recommended in the manual provided by the manufacturer of the Project 
Equipment, or sooner if needed.  The CONTRACTOR shall take the Project Equipment to an 
appropriate service and repair facility for any service and repair under the manufacturer’s warranty. 
WSDOT shall not be liable for repairs.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain records of all maintenance 
and parts replacement performed on the Project Equipment in accordance with Section 19, Audits, 
Inspection, and Retention of Records. The CONTRACTOR shall provide copies of such records to 
WSDOT, upon request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 6 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 107



 

Section 13 
No Obligation by the State Government 

No contract between the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall create any obligation or 
liability for WSDOT with regard to this AGREEMENT without WSDOT’s specific written consent, 
notwithstanding its concurrence in, or approval of, the award of any contract or subcontract or the 
solicitations thereof.  
 

Section 14 
Personal Liability of Public Officers 

No officer or employee of WSDOT shall be personally liable for any acts or failure to act in 
connection with this AGREEMENT, it being understood that in such matters they are acting solely 
as agents of WSDOT.  
 

Section 15 
Ethics  

A.  Relationships with Employees and Officers of WSDOT.  The CONTRACTOR shall not 
extend any loan, gratuity or gift of money in any form whatsoever to any employee or officer of 
WSDOT, nor shall CONTRACTOR rent or purchase any equipment and materials from any 
employee or officer of WSDOT. 
B.  Employment of Former WSDOT Employees.  The CONTRACTOR hereby warrants that it 
shall not engage on a full-time, part-time, or other basis during the period of this AGREEMENT, any 
professional or technical personnel who are, or have been, at any time during the period of this 
AGREEMENT, in the employ of WSDOT without written consent of WSDOT. 
 

Section 16 
Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

The CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by all applicable state and federal laws and regulations 
including but not limited to, those concerning employment, equal opportunity employment, 
nondiscrimination assurances, project record keeping necessary to evidence compliance with such 
federal and state laws and regulations, and retention of all such records.  The CONTRACTOR will 
adhere to all of the nondiscrimination provisions in chapter 49.60 RCW. Except when a federal 
statute or regulation preempts state or local law, no provision of the AGREEMENT shall require the 
CONTRACTOR to observe or enforce compliance with any provision, perform any other act, or do 
any other thing in contravention of state or local law. If any provision or compliance with any 
provision of this AGREEMENT violate state or local law, or would require the CONTRACTOR to 
violate state or local law, the CONTRACTOR agrees to notify WSDOT immediately in writing.  
Should this occur, WSDOT and the CONTRACTOR agree to make appropriate arrangements to 
proceed with or, if necessary, expeditiously, terminate the AGREEMENT. 
 

Section 17 
Environmental Requirements 

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of chapter 43.21C RCW 
“State Environmental Policy Act” (SEPA).  
 

Section 18 
Accounting Records  

A.  Project Accounts.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to establish and maintain for the Project(s) 
either a separate set of accounts or separate accounts within the framework of an established 
accounting system that can be identified with the Project(s). The CONTRACTOR agrees that all 
checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents pertaining 
in whole or in part to the Project(s) shall be clearly identified, readily accessible and available to 
WSDOT upon request, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate from documents not pertaining to 
the Project(s). 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 7 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 108



 

B.  Documentation of Project Costs and Program Income.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to 
support all allowable costs charged to the Project(s), including any approved services contributed 
by the CONTRACTOR or others, with properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, 
or vouchers describing in detail the nature and propriety of the charges.  The CONTRACTOR also 
agrees to maintain accurate records of all program income derived from implementing the 
Project(s). 
 

Section 19 
Audits, Inspection, and Retention of Records 

A.  Submission of Proceedings, Contracts, Agreements, and Other Documents.  During the 
term of the Project and for six (6) years thereafter, the CONTRACTOR agrees to retain intact and 
to provide any data, documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting materials relating to the 
Project(s) as WSDOT may require.  Project closeout does not alter these recording and record-
keeping requirements.  Should an audit, enforcement, or litigation process be commenced, but not 
completed, during the aforementioned six-year period then the CONTRACTOR’s obligations 
hereunder shall be extended until the conclusion of that pending audit, enforcement, or litigation 
process. 
B.  General Audit Requirements.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any other audits required 
by WSDOT at CONTRACTOR’s expense.  Project closeout will not alter the CONTRACTOR’s audit 
responsibilities. 
C. Inspection.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to permit WSDOT and the State Auditor, or their 
authorized representatives, to inspect all Project work materials, payrolls, and other data, and to 
audit the books, records, and accounts of the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors pertaining to 
the Project(s). The CONTRACTOR agrees to require each third party to permit WSDOT, and the 
State Auditor or their duly authorized representatives, to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and 
other data and records involving that third party contract, and to audit the books, records, and 
accounts involving that third party contract as it affects the Project(s). 
 

Section 20 
Labor Provisions 

Overtime Requirements.  No CONTRACTOR or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 
Project work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require 
or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such 
work to work in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic 
receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek.  CONTRACTOR will comply with Title 
49 RCW, Labor Regulations.  
 

Section 21 
Liens on Project Equipment 

WSDOT shall be listed as the legal owner on titles and hold titles for all vehicles the CONTRACTOR 
acquires using federal funds through WSDOT’s grant program. WSDOT will have legal ownership 
to any non-vehicle Project Equipment the CONTRACTOR acquires or modifies using the “Federal 
and/or State Funds” identified in the “Current Agreement Costs” table. When the Contractor 
acquires vehicles using state funds provided through WSDOT’s grant program, WSDOT may within 
its discretion, allow the CONTRACTOR to be listed as the legal owner and hold title.  In all cases, 
WSDOT will maintain a copy of titles for all funded vehicles under this agreement and oversight 
responsibility on those vehicles through their useful life. The CONTRACTOR accepts WSDOT’s 
legal ownership of the Project Equipment during its useful life  as set forth in this Section and agrees 
that it shall not use the Project Equipment as collateral, nor shall the CONTRACTOR encumber the 
Project Equipment in any way. The CONTRACTOR shall follow the terms stated in Section 10A 
regarding use and disposal of all Project Equipment.  For non-vehicle Project Equipment, WSDOT’s 
lien shall equal the proportional Federal and/or State funded share, as identified in this 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 8 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 109



 

AGREEMENT, of the disposable value of the Project Equipment. Satisfaction of WSDOT’s lien may 
be satisfied only by proper disposal of the Project Equipment in a manner determined by WSDOT 

 
Section 22 

Loss or Damage to Project Equipment 
A. The CONTRACTOR, at its own expense, shall cover any loss, theft, damage, or destruction of 
the Project Equipment using either of the following methods: 

1. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain comprehensive and collision insurance for vehicles and 
property insurance for non-vehicle equipment adequate to cover the value of the Project Equipment; 
the CONTRACTOR shall supply a copy of the Certificate of Insurance specifying such coverage to 
WSDOT with the first request for reimbursement, and supply proof of renewal, annually thereafter; 
or 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide a written certificate of self-insurance to WSDOT with the 
first request for reimbursement, annually thereafter.  The CONTRACTOR will cover from its own 
resources the costs of repairing or replacing any Project Equipment, if it is stolen, damaged, or 
destroyed in any manner. 
B. If the damage to the Project Equipment does not result in a total loss, payments for damage 
shall be paid directly to the CONTRACTOR.  The CONTRACTOR shall, within thirty (30) days, 
either: 

1. Devote all of the insurance proceeds received to repair the Project Equipment and place it 
back in service, and the CONTRACTOR shall, at its own expense, pay any portion of the cost of 
repair which is not covered by insurance; or 

2. In the event the CONTRACTOR certified to self- insurance, devote all funds necessary to 
repair the Project Equipment and place it back into service. 
C. If the Project Equipment is a total loss, either by theft or damage, the insurance proceeds or 
equivalent shall be paid directly to WSDOT.  The CONTRACTOR shall within sixty (60) days of 
loss, theft, or damage, notify WSDOT that it either: 

1. Intends to replace the lost Project Equipment; or 
2. Does not intend to replace the lost Project Equipment. 

D. If WSDOT determines that the total loss occurred under circumstances in which the 
CONTRACTOR fulfilled its obligations under this AGREEMENT then WSDOT will either pay, or 
rebate, to the CONTRACTOR its proportionate share of such proceeds paid to WSDOT. 
E. Coverage, if obtained or provided by the CONTRACTOR in compliance with this section, shall 
not be deemed as having relieved the CONTRACTOR of any liability in excess of such coverage 
as required by the limitation of liability section of this AGREEMENT, or otherwise. 

 
Section 23 

Changed Conditions Affecting Performance 
The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to immediately notify WSDOT of any change in conditions or 
law, or of any other event, which may affect its ability to perform the Project(s) in accordance with 
the provisions of this AGREEMENT. 
 

Section 24 
Coordination of Special Needs Transportation 

It is the policy of WSDOT to actively support coordination of special needs transportation in the 
state.  As a condition of assistance, the CONTRACTOR is required to participate in local 
coordinated planning as led by CONTRACTOR’s relevant Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) and/or Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO).  Persons with special 
transportation needs means those persons, including their personal attendants, who because of 
physical or mental disability, income status, or age are unable to transport themselves or 
purchase transportation. 
Regional Mobility Grant funded projects are explicitly excluded from the provisions of Section 24 – 
Coordination of Special Needs Transportation.   

 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 9 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 110



 

Section 25 
Disputes 

A.  Disputes.  Disputes, arising in the performance of this AGREEMENT, which are not resolved 
by agreement of the PARTIES, shall be decided in writing by the WSDOT Public Transportation 
Division Assistant Director or designee. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten 
(10) days from the date of CONTRACTOR’s receipt of WSDOT’s written decision, the 
CONTRACTOR mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Director of the Public 
Transportation Division or the Director’s designee. The CONTRACTOR’s appeal shall be decided 
in writing by the Director of the Public Transportation Division within thirty (30) days of receipt of the 
appeal by the Director of the Public Transportation Division or the Director’s designee. The decision 
shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR shall abide by the decision. 
B. Performance During Dispute.  Unless otherwise directed by WSDOT, CONTRACTOR shall 
continue performance under this AGREEMENT while matters in dispute are being resolved. 
C.  Claims for Damages.  Should either PARTY to this AGREEMENT suffer injury or damage to 
person, property, or right because of any act or omission of the other PARTY or any of that PARTY’s 
employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall 
be made in writing to such other PARTY within thirty (30) days after the first observance of such 
injury or damage. 
D.  Rights and Remedies.  All remedies provided in this AGREEMENT are distinct and cumulative 
to any other right or remedy under this document or afforded by law or equity, and may be exercised 
independently, concurrently, or successively and shall not be construed to be a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies of the PARTIES hereto. No action or failure to act by the 
WSDOT or CONTRACTOR shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under 
this AGREEMENT, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or 
acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 
Section 26 

Termination 
A. Termination for Convenience.  WSDOT and/or the CONTRACTOR may suspend or terminate 
this AGREEMENT, in whole or in part, and all or any part of the financial assistance provided herein, 
at any time by written notice to the other PARTY.  WSDOT and the CONTRACTOR shall agree 
upon the AGREEMENT termination provisions including but not limited to the settlement terms, 
conditions, and in the case of partial termination the portion to be terminated. Written notification 
must set forth the reasons for such termination, the effective date, and in case of a partial 
termination the portion to be terminated. However if, in the case of partial termination, WSDOT 
determines that the remaining portion of the award will not accomplish the purposes for which the 
award was made, WSDOT may terminate the award in its entirety. PARTIES may terminate this 
AGREEMENT for convenience for reasons including, but not limited to, the following: 

1.  The requisite funding becomes unavailable through failure of appropriation or otherwise; 
2.  WSDOT determines, in its sole discretion, that the continuation of the Project(s) would not 

produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds; 
3.  The CONTRACTOR is prevented from proceeding with the Project(s) as a direct result of an 

Executive Order of the President with respect to the prosecution of war or in the interest of national 
defense; or an Executive Order of the President or Governor of the State with respect to the 
preservation of energy resources; 

4.  The CONTRACTOR is prevented from proceeding with the Project(s) by reason of a 
temporary preliminary, special, or permanent restraining order or injunction of a court of competent 
jurisdiction where the issuance of such order or injunction is primarily caused by the acts or 
omissions of persons or agencies other than the CONTRACTOR; or 

5.  The State Government determines that the purposes of the statute authorizing the Project(s) 
would not be adequately served by the continuation of financial assistance for the Project(s); 

6.  In the case of termination for convenience under subsections A.1-5 above, WSDOT shall 
reimburse the CONTRACTOR for all costs payable under this AGREEMENT that the 
CONTRACTOR properly incurred prior to termination.  The CONTRACTOR shall promptly submit 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 10 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 111



 

its claim for reimbursement to WSDOT.  If the CONTRACTOR has any property in its possession 
belonging to WSDOT, the CONTRACTOR will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner 
WSDOT directs. 
B.  Termination for Default.  WSDOT may suspend or terminate this AGREEMENT for default, in 
whole or in part, and all or any part of the financial assistance provided herein, at any time by written 
notice to the CONTRACTOR, if the CONTRACTOR materially breaches or fails to perform any of 
the requirements of this AGREEMENT, including: 

1.  Takes any action pertaining to this AGREEMENT without the approval of WSDOT, which 
under the procedures of this AGREEMENT would have required the approval of WSDOT; 

2.  Jeopardizes its ability to perform pursuant to this AGREEMENT, United States of America 
laws, Washington state laws, or local governmental laws under which the CONTRACTOR operates; 

3.  Abuses or misuses the Project Equipment, including, but not limited to: 
a) Failure to maintain the Project Equipment according to the manufacturer’s standards; 
b) Failure to repair damages or replace defective or broken parts in a timely manner;  
c) Failure to take any action which could affect the ability of the Project Equipment to 

perform its designated function or takes any action which could shorten its useful life 
for Project use or otherwise; or 

d) Failure to make reasonable and appropriate use of the Project real property, facilities, 
or equipment. 

4.  Fails to make reasonable progress on the Project(s) or other violation of this AGREEMENT 
that endangers substantial performance of the Project(s); or   

5.  Fails to perform in the manner called for in this AGREEMENT or fails, to comply with, or is 
in violation of, any provision of this AGREEMENT.  WSDOT shall serve a notice of termination on 
the CONTRACTOR setting forth the manner in which the CONTRACTOR is in default hereunder.   
If it is later determined by WSDOT that the CONTRACTOR had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the 
CONTRACTOR, such as a strike, fire or flood, WSDOT may:  (a) allow the CONTRACTOR to 
continue work after setting up a new delivery of performance schedule, or (b) treat the termination 
as a termination for convenience. 
C.  WSDOT, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the 
CONTRACTOR ten (10) business days, or such longer period as determined by WSDOT, in which 
to cure the defect.  In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is 
permitted and other appropriate conditions.  If the CONTRACTOR fails to remedy to WSDOT's 
satisfaction the breach or default within the timeframe and under the conditions set forth in the 
notice of termination, WSDOT shall have the right to terminate this AGREEMENT without any 
further obligation to CONTRACTOR.  Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate 
to preclude WSDOT from also pursuing all available remedies against CONTRACTOR and its 
sureties for said breach or default. 
D.  In the event that WSDOT elects to waive its remedies for any breach by CONTRACTOR of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, such waiver by WSDOT shall not limit WSDOT's 
remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this 
AGREEMENT. 
E. If this AGREEMENT is terminated, whether for convenience or for default, before the specified 
end date set forth in the caption header, “Term of Agreement”, WSDOT and the CONTRACTOR 
shall execute an amendment to this AGREEMENT identifying  the termination date and the reason 
for termination. 
 

Section 27 
Forbearance by WSDOT Not a Waiver 

Any forbearance by WSDOT in exercising any right or remedy hereunder, or otherwise afforded by 
applicable law, shall not be a waiver of or preclude the exercise of any such right or remedy.  

 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 11 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 112



 

Section 28 
Lack of Waiver 

In no event shall any WSDOT payment of grant funds to the CONTRACTOR constitute or be 
construed as a waiver by WSDOT of any CONTRACTOR breach, or default.  Such payment shall 
in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to WSDOT with respect to any breach 
or default. 
 

Section 29 
Limitation of Liability 

A.  The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless WSDOT, its agents, employees, and 
officers and process and defend at its own expense any and all claims, demands, suits at law or 
equity, actions, penalties, losses, damages, or costs (hereinafter referred to collectively as “claims”), 
of whatsoever kind or nature brought against WSDOT arising out of, in connection with or incident 
to the execution of this AGREEMENT and/or the CONTRACTOR’s performance or failure to 
perform any aspect of this AGREEMENT. This indemnity provision applies to all claims against 
WSDOT, its agents, employees and officers arising out of, in connection with or incident to the 
negligent acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, officers and 
subcontractors. Provided, however, that nothing herein shall require the CONTRACTOR to 
indemnify and hold harmless or defend the WSDOT, its agents, employees or officers to the extent 
that claims are caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the WSDOT, its agents, employees or 
officers; and provided further that if such claims result from the concurrent negligence of (a) the 
CONTRACTOR its employees,  agents, officers or contractors and (b) the STATE, its employees 
or authorized agents, or involves those actions covered by RCW 4.24.115, the indemnity provisions 
provided herein shall be valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the PARTY, 
its employees, officers,  authorized agents, and/or contractors. The indemnification and hold 
harmless provision shall survive termination of this AGREEMENT. 
B.  The CONTRACTOR shall be deemed an independent contractor for all purposes, and the 
employees of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and the employees thereof, shall not in any 
manner be deemed to be the employees of WSDOT. 
C.  The CONTRACTOR specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by 
CONTRACTOR’s employees and/or subcontractors and solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification and defense, the CONTRACTOR specifically waives any immunity under the State 
Industrial Insurance Law, Title 51 Revised Code of Washington. 
D.  In the event either the CONTRACTOR or WSDOT incurs attorney’s fees, costs or other legal 
expenses to enforce the provisions of this section of this AGREEMENT against the other PARTY, 
all such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by the prevailing PARTY.  
 

Section 30 
Agreement Modifications 

Either PARTY may request changes to this AGREEMENT.   Any changes to the terms of this 
AGREEMENT must be mutually agreed upon and incorporated by written amendment to this 
AGREEMENT. Such written amendment to this AGREEMENT shall not be binding or valid unless 
signed by the persons authorized to bind from each of the PARTIES. Provided, however, that 
changes to the federal award identification number, DUNS, project title, federal ID number, CFDA 
number, milestones, UPIN the contact person of either PARTY, or dollar amount changes that do 
not affect the project total cost, will not require a written amendment, but will be approved and 
documented by WSDOT through an administrative revision. WSDOT shall notify the 
CONTRACTOR of the revision in writing.  
 

Section 31 
WSDOT Advice 

The CONTRACTOR bears complete responsibility for the administration and success of the 
Project(s) as defined by this AGREEMENT and any amendments thereto. If the CONTRACTOR 
solicits advice from WSDOT on problems that may arise, the offering of WSDOT advice shall not 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 12 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 113



 

shift the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR for the correct administration and success of the 
Project, and WSDOT shall not be held liable for offering advice to the CONTRACTOR. 
 

Section 32 
Venue and Process 

In the event that either PARTY deems it necessary to institute legal action or proceedings to enforce 
any right or obligation under this AGREEMENT, the PARTIES hereto agree that any such action 
shall be initiated in the Superior Court of the State of Washington situated in Thurston County. The 
PARTIES agree that the laws of the State of Washington shall apply. 
 

Section 33 
Subrogation 

A.  Prior to Subrogation.  WSDOT may require the CONTRACTOR to take such action as may be 
necessary or appropriate to preserve the CONTRACTOR’s right to recover damages from any 
person or organization alleged to be legally responsible for injury to the Project Equipment or other 
property in which WSDOT has a financial interest. 
B.  Subrogation.  WSDOT may require the CONTRACTOR to assign to WSDOT all right of 
recovery against any person or organization for loss, to the extent of WSDOT’s loss. Upon 
assignment, the CONTRACTOR shall execute, deliver, and do whatever else is necessary to 
secure WSDOT’s rights. The CONTRACTOR shall do nothing after any loss to prejudice the rights 
of WSDOT. 
C.  Duties of the CONTRACTOR.  If WSDOT has exercised its right of subrogation, the 
CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with WSDOT and, upon WSDOT’s request, assist in the 
prosecution of suits and enforce any right against any person or organization who may be liable to 
WSDOT due to damage of Project Equipment. The CONTRACTOR shall attend hearings and trials 
as requested by WSDOT, assist in securing and giving evidence as requested by WSDOT, and 
obtain the attendance of witnesses as requested by WSDOT. 
 

Section 34 
Counterparts 

This AGREEMENT may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed to be an original having identical legal effect. The CONTRACTOR does hereby ratify 
and adopt all statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements and their 
supporting materials contained and/or mentioned herein, and does hereby accept WSDOT’s grant 
and agrees to all of the terms and conditions thereof. 
 

Section 35 
Complete Agreement 

This document contains all covenants, stipulations, and provisions agreed upon by WSDOT. No 
agent or representative of WSDOT has authority to make, and WSDOT shall not be bound by or be 
liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein or made by 
written amendment hereto. 
 

Section 36 
Severability 

If any covenant or provision of this AGREEMENT shall be adjudged void, such adjudication shall 
not affect the validity or obligation of performance of any other covenant or provision, or any part 
thereof, which in itself is valid if such remainder conforms to the terms and requirements of 
applicable law and the intent of this AGREEMENT. No controversy concerning any covenant or 
provision shall delay the performance of any other covenant or provision except as herein allowed. 

 
 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 13 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 114



 

Section 37 
Execution 

This AGREEMENT is executed by the Director, Public Transportation Division, State of 
Washington, Department of Transportation or the Director’s designee, not as an individual incurring 
personal obligation and liability, but solely by, for and on behalf of the State of Washington, 
Department of Transportation, in the capacity as Director, Public Transportation and Rail Division, 
or as a designee. 
 

Section 38 
Order of Precedence 

Any conflict or inconsistency in this AGREEMENT and its attachments will be resolved by giving 
documents precedence in the following order: 

1. Federal Law 
2. Exhibit I, Federal Provisions, if applicable 
3. State law 
4. This AGREEMENT 

 
Section 39 

Agreement Close Out 
The CONTRACTOR shall notify WSDOT if the AGREEMENT is completed prior to the end date 
set forth in the caption header, “Term of Agreement” by written notification and in its capital 
Quarterly Progress Report, as referenced in the Guidebook, in which the project is completed. 
WSDOT will prepare an amendment to modify the AGREEMENT to reflect the actual amount 
spent and the project completion date. WSDOT will send a close out letter to the CONTRACTOR. 

 
Section 40 

Binding Agreement 
The undersigned acknowledge that they are authorized to execute this AGREEMENT and bind their 
respective agency(ies) and or entity(ies) to the obligations set forth herein. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 
signed last below.  
 

 
 

WASHINGTON STATE  
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 CONTRACTOR 

Brian Lagerberg, Director 
Public Transportation Division  

 Authorized Representative 

   
  Title 
   

  Print Name 
   

Date  Date 
   
   

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 14 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 115



 

EXHIBIT I 
Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference Annual List of 

Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and Cooperative Agreements 
("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit Administration Master Agreement 

("Master Agreement") 
 
 
Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any, must 
comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances 
available at https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/certifications-and-
assurances/fiscal-year-2019-annual-list-certification-0. The Certifications and Assurances, 
including as they may be changed during the term of this AGREEMENT, are by this reference 
incorporated herein. 
 
Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master 
Agreement. This Master Agreement is incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement. 
Said Master Agreement is available at https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-
resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements. Without limiting the foregoing, the 
following are some requirements/clauses applicable to transactions covered by this AGREEMENT 
 
1. Changes to Federal Requirements - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA 
regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or 
by reference in the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or 
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply 
shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 
 
2. Civil Rights  

(1) Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, 
and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national 
origin, sex, age, or disability.  In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable 
Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.  
(2) Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity 
requirements apply to the underlying contract: 

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment 
opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 
"Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order 
No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 
11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment 
Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, 
executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect 
construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project.  The Contractor 
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, 
national origin, sex, or age.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship.  In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 15 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 116



 

(b) Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §§ 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective 
employees for reason of age.  In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any 
implementing requirements FTA may issue. 
(c) Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with 
the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations 
to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities.  In 
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA 
may issue. 

(3) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed 
in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to 
identify the affected parties. 

3. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises - The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and USDOT’s official interpretations (i.e., Questions & Answers) 
apply to this Contract. As such, the requirements of this Contract are to make affirmative efforts to 
solicit DBEs, provide information on who submitted a Bid or quote and to report DBE participation. 
No preference will be included in the evaluation of Bids/Proposals, no minimum level of DBE 
participation shall be required as a Condition of Award and Bids/Proposals may not be rejected or 
considered non-responsive on that basis. 
4. ADA Access - The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR FTA C 4710.1 as 
applicable to this contract. Equal access and the opportunity should be given to individuals with 
disabilities to fully participate in or benefit from the goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages, 
or accommodations. 
5. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions 
include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly 
set forth in the preceding contract provisions.  All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set 
forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to the contrary 
herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict 
with other provisions contained in this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to 
perform any act, or refuse to comply with any (name of grantee) requests which would cause (name 
of grantee) to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions. 
6. General Procurement Requirements - The CONTRACTOR shall comply with third-party 
procurement requirements of 49 USC chapter 53 and other applicable Federal laws in effect now 
or as subsequently enacted; with the United States Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) third-
party procurement regulations of 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 C.F.R. part 1201and other applicable 
Federal regulations pertaining to third-party procurements and subsequent amendments thereto. 
The CONTRACTOR shall also comply with the provisions of FTA Circular 4220.1F, “Third Party 
Contracting Guidance,” March 18, 2013, and any later revision thereto, except to the extent FTA 
determines otherwise in writing, which by this reference are incorporated herein; and any reference 
therein to “Grantee” shall mean CONTRACTOR.  
7.  Full and Open Competition - In accordance with 49 USC § 5325(a), the CONTRACTOR agrees 
to conduct all procurement transactions in a manner that provides full and open competition as 
determined by FTA. 
8. Buy America - The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with 49 USC § 5323(j), with FTA 
regulations, “Buy America Requirements,” 49 CFR Part 661, and any later amendments thereto. 
9.  Bus Testing - The CONTRACTOR [Manufacturer] agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. A 5323(c) 
and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 665. 

Mason Transit Authority 
PTD0005

Page 16 of 16January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 117



Resolution No. 2020-03 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING THE CAPITAL GRANT AGREEMENT PTD0005 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board has received notification of the 
award of funding assistance through Washington State Department of Transportation’s 
Consolidated Grant Program to purchase two (2) heavy duty hybrid buses to replace two 
40-foot diesel buses to support commuter service in rural Mason County; and 

WHEREAS PTD0005 sets forth the requirements and guidance for management of 
funding assistance relating to capital projects;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it approves the Capital Grant Agreement PTD005 with the Washington State 
Department of Transportation for $1,482,690, which requires a local match of $296,538; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTA Board authorizes the General Manager to 
sign the Agreement. 

 
Adopted this 21st day of January, 2020. 

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  [Vacant], Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 118



Resolution No. 2020-03 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
______________________________  
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 119



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:    Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The MTA Bylaw changes that were approved in 2019 provided for appointing a citizen 
adviser to the Board with the term to be January-December of each year, unless 
extended by motion of the MTA Board. 
 
MTA has advertised for this position on its website, MTA’s social media platforms 
(Twitter and Facebook) and in the Journal. During the advertising campaign, MTA 
received two applications – one by MTA’s current citizen adviser to the Board, 
John Piety, and another from Thomas Farmer. Both applications are attached for 
consideration by the Board.   
 
 
 
Summary:  Appoint Citizen Adviser for 2020. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
0 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board appoints citizen [_____________] to 
serve as the non-voting citizen adviser to the Board with the term being January-
December, 2020.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 120



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 121



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 122



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 123



January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 124



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building permit plans are in progress for the Belfair park and ride. Building 
Permit Plans were submitted 1/8/20 and are currently being reviewed. Plans were also 
submitted to Belfair Water District for review 1/3/20. 
 
Site permits are all approved for current construction. The SEPA determination was 
made on 4/12/19.  
 
WSDOT Submittal Timeline 

• 10/18/18 – SCJ submitted the Roundabout Plan for Approval (PFA) to WSDOT.* 
• 11/08/18 – WSDOT provided first round comments on the PFA package. 
• 11/27/18 – SCJ re-submitted the PFA package with comments addressed. 
• 11/30/18 – WSDOT provided additional comments on the PFA package. 
• 12/14/18 – SCJ re-submitted the PFA package with comments addressed. 
• 01/14/19 – WSDOT indicated there were no further comments on the PFA was 

ready for signature. 
• 01/24/19 – WSDOT came back with additional design comments. 
• 01/28/19 – SCJ met with WSDOT to address design comments in person. 
• 01/31/19 – SCJ re-submitted PFA package based on WSDOT’s direction. 
• 02/04/19 – WSDOT provided different design direction than the meeting 

consensus. 
• 02/06/19 – SCJ re-submitted to WSDOT with revised design changes. 
• 04/03/19 – WSDOT officially approves PFA package. 
• 04/08/19 – SCJ submits Full Package Submittal (FPS) to WSDOT.** 
• 05/07/19 – WSDOT provides partial comments on FPS package. 
• 06/12/19 – WSDOT provides remaining comments on FPS package. 
• 07/26/19 – SCJ submits FPS 2 to WSDOT with revised design changes. 
• 08/13/19 – WSDOT provides comments on FPS 2 package. 
• 09/06/19 – SCJ submits FPS 3 to WSDOT with revised design changes. 
• 09/20/19 – Received comments from WSDOT 
• 10/3/19 – Met with WSDOT regarding ROW acquisition and Utility Relocation 
• 11/7/19 –WSDOT package resubmitted. (Anticipated final review) 
• 11/18/19 – WSDOT approved plans. Waiting on release of Construction 

Agreement until land is transitioned to MTA. 
• 12/11/19 – MTA recorded transition of land from Overton to MTA. WSDOT 

required a title report to complete the transaction on their end. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 125



• 1/6/20 – Construction Agreement Approval. 
 

*WSDOT Plan for Approval – The Plan for Approval package is the process where 
WSDOT evaluates the design of the roundabout and how it will perform (car speeds 
through the roundabout, pedestrian access, truck turning movements, sight distance). 
 
**WSDOT Full Package Submittal – The Full Package Submittal includes the full plan set 
(roadway design, stormwater, pavement markings, illumination, etc), the project 
specifications, and the Hydraulics report. The Full Package Submittal is submitted after 
PFA approval. 
 
Log Yard Road/SR 3 Roundabout Project: This project was advertised on 8/29/19. Bids 
will be opened on 9/20/19. The final items that need to be completed before 
construction can start are: 

• WSDOT Construction Agreement – With transition of land to MTA this should be 
streamlined. Target 11/18/19 

• Mason County Grading Permit – Approved 10/7/19 
• Right of Way Dedication – Changed based on transition to MTA from Overton. 
• NPDES – Construction Stormwater Permit – Approved 10/24/19 
• Construction 

o ACI started clearing on 11/11/19. 
o The WSDOT Construction Agreement was approved 1/6/20 and the Log 

Yard Road Construction Project is ready  
 
Belfair Park and Ride Project Advertisement: The project team is aiming to advertise the 
Belfair park and ride construction project 2/12/20. This date will allow incorporating of 
Mason County permit comments as an addendum. Anticipated bid open date would be 
3/7. 
 
Pear Orchard Construction: This project is pending further contamination investigation 
by the city. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are ready for Pickering 
Road and Cole Road.  
 
Other progress: SCJ sent Shelton Matlock park and ride plans to Parsons/Scarsella. 
Scarsella is evaluating the plans to begin to coordinate agreements with MTA and 
implementation. 
 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 126



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 127



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board January 21, 2020 
 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 128



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
/2

1/
20

20
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board January 21, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
 
Park & Ride Development:  

• Please see enclosed Park and Ride Update for information. 
• Work continues on the roundabout. The Construction Agreement has been signed by WSDOT so work 

on SR3 will commence.  
T-CC Parking Lot:  Per the City Administrator, 13 bids were received and the lowest bidder was R.W. Scott 
Construction, Inc. The bid was $308,641.12. The grant from the Department of Ecology will cover $257,125 
and MTA’s share will be $51,516. We have the funds plus extra encumbered in reserves. 
WSTIP: Attended Monthly Executive Committee meeting and Board Retreat. For 2020, I will be serving as the 
Vice President of the Pool as mentioned last month. As such, my duties will increase some by chairing two 
committees (Governance and Elections) in addition to chairing the Emerging Risk and Opportunity Committee I 
chaired last year.  
EDC: Attended monthly EDC Board Meeting. The meeting was very encouraging to hear the support for Shelton 
School District by the Ridge Motorsports. Signs the community is invested and growing.  
External Activities: 

• Attended EDC Leadership Breakfast meeting. 
• Attended Legislature Send-off Breakfast. 
• Participated in the Financial Bite of Reality Fair at Shelton High School.  

Internal Activities: 
• Usual meetings with the Executive Team. Miscellaneous meetings with staff. 
• Prepared for and met with Employee Engagement Committee. 
• Met with Driver Shop Stewards. 
• Continued work on space planning of Operations area at the T-CC. 
• Edited Strategic Plan for Board approval. 
• Met with each of my direct reports for pre-evaluation check in. 
• Preparing for All-Staff meeting to be held February 9, 2020. 
• Procurement training from Finance staff. 
• Working through contract compliance with our bus technology vendor. 
• Working with Tracy and Josh on file management and structure of our network. 
• Assess Belfair office conditions. Marshall and I have a meeting setup with the landlord on January 29, 

2020. 
• Met with managers to discuss the MTA Sick Leave Policy and suggest edits to send to the Policy 

Committee. Shop Stewards will have opportunity to review prior to submitting the policy to the Policy 
Committee. 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 

We have determined it will be necessary to cancel our contract with the vendor for the bus technology project 
due to failure of the vendor to meet any project deadlines over the past two years.  

Statistics from Clerk of the Board:  

The MTA Authority Board made 94 motions of which 42 involved motions to approve resolutions. Of the 42 
resolutions that were approved: 

o 24 of the resolutions were to either update or approve new policies; 
o 14 of the resolutions were to approve GM to sign agreements; and 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 129



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
1/

21
/2

02
0 

 

o The four remaining resolutions were for approving miscellaneous items such as surplusing 
vehicles, etc. 

Most of the motions that were not involving resolution approval related to consent agenda items, short-term 
items and pass changes. 

Other interesting items: The bylaws were amended in January, 2019. 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
HR Support   

• Participated in conversations with managers for the management of accrued time off, including the 
consistent application of L & I’s definition for the qualifying reason when pertaining to sick leave. 

• Participated in Safety Committee meeting.  Presented to attendees how the recommendations from 
L & I were incorporated into the Health & Safety Manual. 

• Hosted a Wellness Committee meeting.  This meeting served as a launch point in developing a robust 
program that hopefully will result in MTA receiving AWC’s Well City designation that will foster 
engagement and improve the health and wellness of our team. 

• Participated in Employee Engagement Committee meeting. 
• Negotiated with Paylocity to receive better (bundled) pricing.  As a result, we will receive additional 

modules for learning management and performance review management for no additional dollars.  
These products will bring great efficiency to the annual performance review process and provide a 
platform to easily assign and track training for all staff.  

• Researching a fresh approach for harassment training to be provided at the annual All-Staff meeting. 
• Launched the nomination process for the Employee of the Year Award outlined in the recently updated 

Employee Recognition Policy.  The nominees and winner will be recognized at the All-Staff meeting 
Recruiting 

• Recruiting for back-up Worker Drivers.  Provided onboarding for the first of a couple of new hires 
needed to cover upcoming relocations & retirements. 

Administrative Functions 
• Developed a Procurement Checklist that aligns with the Procurement Policy. Updated the procedures 

document to include links to resources to assist purchasers in complying with the many necessary 
requirements when purchasing goods and services. 

• Reviewed ridership data to provide statistical information as part of this board packet. 
Training. 

• Marshall, Christina and I attended offsite prevailing wage training provided by L & I. 
• Provided training to purchasers throughout the agency for updated procurement procedures.  

Attendees were alerted to the need for utilizing DBE vendors in their solicitations and to provide 
documentation as such. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
T-CC Facility: 

• Conference Room: About 150 people utilized the conference room for various functions in December. 
We hosted several MTA sponsored events (training, monthly board meeting, and our MTA benefits fair) 
as well as our monthly F.E.S.S. sponsored “Consider the Children” classes (23 students). NW Life 
Centers service attracted 40 participants this month and the A.R.C. of the Peninsula’s program 
“Healthy Relationships” is winding down for the winter and hosted 7 participants for their bi-weekly get 
togethers. Fantasia Twirlers used our conference room during the parade to keep their members warm 
and dry before and after the festivities. Over 50 participants enjoyed the warmth of the conference 
room during the parade.  

• Kitchen: Our new kitchen user “Tamales Dona Mary” continues to cook at the T-CC and make delicious 
tamales, empanadas, mole, various other Spanish favorites, and several traditional beverages. Maria 
has now opened her own tamale stand on Mountain View and will begin to use our kitchen five days a 
week beginning in late January. Our regular kitchen vendor “Wild and Woodsy“ also used the kitchen 
at the T-CC to prepare for the OCCU Christmas party. Total numbers for the kitchen/dining room in 
December was 36 people. 

• Operations: Supported Matt C., Trina G., Joseph H., and John M., with OPs issues. Coordinated with 
Operations ticket office employees for lunch and shift coverages. Successfully scheduled and covered 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 130



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
/2

1/
20

20
  

all shifts with Operations staff for upcoming holiday season and Christmas Parade. Continuing 
discussions with LeeAnn M. and Marshall K. regarding “Pre-vailing wage.’ We had a meeting on 
January 8, 2020 regarding same. 

Projects/Purchases 
• Continuing procurement education with Marshall, LeeAnn, and Christina. 
• Purchased carpet shampooer for T-CC. 
• Coordinated with Toys for Tots on Christmas tree delivery, decorations, toy delivery, and distribution. 
• Working with Raul Soto on the planning for 2020 Toys for Tots in Mason County program. 

Maintenance 
Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 

• Met with WSTA to continue planning the Spring Maintenance meeting and forum held in Vancouver 
March 31-April 2. 

• Scheduling the shop hoist inspections with a local vendor. 
• Monitoring weather conditions for possible snow and ice events that may impact service for our 

customers and staff. 

Vehicle Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 
• Mini Cutaway: Performed the pre-delivery inspection and expect delivery by the end of the month. 
• Hybrid Buses: Traveled to Gillig plant located at Livermore, CA and performed the pre-delivery 

inspection. We expect delivery by the end of the month. 
• Cutaways (9): We have completed factory specification confirmation and expect delivery by the middle 

of May. 
• Attended the Awarding Agency Prevailing Wage class in Tumwater on January 17, 2020. 

 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• Driver Evaluations:  Operation Supervisors conducted 40 driver evaluations.  Semi-annual driver 

evaluations are a recommended best practice from WSTIP.  
• Holiday Magic Parade:  The Operations team provided exceptional service during the Holiday Magic 

Parade and tree lighting ceremony.  We provided two special runs for North Mason High School and 
Pioneer School to ensure all school kids arrived at the tree lighting ceremony on time.  We provided 
one “Ride Transit” bus in the Holiday Magic Parade and moved our T-CC operations from the T-CC to 
Cedar Street without missing a beat for our riders! 

• 2019-2020 Inclement Weather Plan:  The plan was completed and distributed to everyone on 
Paylocity, we added a few items/lessons learned from the Snowmagedden of 2019.  We also have 
created an MTA Employee Alert text that we test out to be able to inform staff of office closures due to 
weather events. 

• Service Review Committee:  SRC finished creating the changes to our system that will go into effect on 
February 3, 2020, public hearings followed by the Community Conversations meetings were held on 
December 11 at the T-CC and December 12 at the library in Belfair.  

• Operations Supervisors:  Conducted 19 ride recovers and performed 26 driver assists. 
• Operations Office at the T-CC:  Operations helped create a plan for a new operations office at the T-CC 

and a larger driver break area. 
• Outreach presentations:  During the month of December, Kathy conducted outreach events 

at:  Shelton Holiday Parade and travel training for Oakland Bay Junior High School.  Kathy attended the 
following meetings:  Moving Mason Forward and the monthly TIP CAP meeting. 

• Training:  Trina & Lisa trained 7 individuals in CPR/AED/FA and 1 individual in Defensive Driving for 
vanpool drivers.  We had NAMI (National Alliance on Mental Illness), to conduct a 90-minute training 
session at our January 5, 2020 Operations training & meeting.  Matt conducted driver refresher 
training in bus 650 for one driver.  Emergency preparedness training:  maintenance staff trained the 
Operations Supervisors on Emergency Shut-Off procedures for:  the fuel island, electric, water, and 
natural gas. 

• Vanpool: Usage rate for December 2019 was 80%; 8 of 10 vans were in use.   

  

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 131



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
1/

21
/2

02
0 

 

 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 132



2020 Work Items Completed as 
of 1/17/2020

Quarterly Driver traing and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review 

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts

Review 5-year sustainabililty plan 

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout

Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles

Improve communications through established methods

Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation

Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight

Prepare a policy review schedule

First Wellness Committee meeting held 1/16.

Meeting held 1/9 and one scheduled week of 1/27. 

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

Progress

Operations had a meeting on 1/5/2020 and had training from NAMI. Refresher training for first quarter is 
being scheduled.

This continues to be a struggle and we are currently looking at options to terminate.

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

In process of moving Ops to T-CC. Working on procurement.

Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village.

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Working on the worker-driver bus graphic design.

New DAR hours coming to February 3, 2020 service changes. Monitoring will take place throughout 2020.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

Have begun first step in network reorganization by moving files that have not been opened for the past two 
years. Tracy will begin reviewing files to determine next action. Next step is to create a file structure.

Zipper route time has been expanded.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020
January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 133



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 3 – Informational 
Subject:    Operational Reports 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    January 21, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion/Informational Purposes: 
 
The 2019 Operations Statistics report highlights performance of costs per passenger 
trips, miles and hours with direct operational project expenses allocated by miles 
traveled for each major operational category. The rolling 12-month numbers represents 
the full year for 2019 compared to the previous rolling 12-month 2018 period. 
 
Items of note:   

• There was an increase of 77 riders between 2018 & 2019.  Had it not been for 
the snow events of February 2019, ridership would have likely experienced an 
increase of approximately 19,000 riders.  Ridership during this event was on 
average short by this amount compared to other months. 

• Direct Project Expenses in 2019 were slightly less than 2018.  Mostly due to the 
driver shortage that we experienced in addition to diligent cost management in 
2019 in the anticipation of I-976. 

• The replacement of Route 9 with the Zipper has a wonderful impact on Fixed 
Route (in county) performance.  The Route 9 averaged 622 passengers a 
quarter, the Zipper is now averaging over 6,000 rides per quarter.  We expect to 
see a greater increase to this service as we increase frequency beginning in 
February. 

• Demand Response utilization is improving with a slight increase in 2019 
compared to the past few years experiencing a decline. 

 
 
Also included is Total Ridership data charted for years 2016-2019. The illustration 
reflects an improving ridership outlook. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 134



 2019 vs. 2018  Operations Statistics

Fixed Route (in county) Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 42,371 47,812 184,653 177,783 3.9%
Total Vehicle Miles 39,760 41,445 161,318 160,795 0.3%
Total Vehicle Hours 3,385 3,427 12,781 13,731 -6.9%
Direct Project Expenses 232,780$                       252,634$                       917,335$                       842,769$                       8.8%
Trips/Mile 1.07 1.15 1.14 1.11 3.5%
Cost/Trip 5.49$                              5.28$                             4.97$                              4.74$                              4.8%
Miles Per Hour 11.75 12.10 12.62 11.71 7.8%
Cost/Mile 5.85$                              6.10$                             5.69$                              5.24$                              8.5%
Trips/Hour 12.52 13.95 14.45 12.95 11.6%
Cost/Hour 68.77$                            73.73$                           71.78$                            61.38$                            16.9%

Fixed Route (out of county) Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 33,573 34,444 137,730 141,243 -2.5%
Total Vehicle Miles 98,940 99,327 391,873 393,631 -0.4%
Total Vehicle Hours 4,675 4,529 17,910 18,389 -2.6%
Direct Project Expenses 627,538$                       605,463$                       2,173,301$                    2,220,450$                    -2.1%
Trips/Mile 0.34 0.35 0.35 0.36 -2.0%
Cost/Trip 18.69$                            17.58$                           15.78$                            15.72$                            0.4%
Miles Per Hour 21.16 21.93 21.88 21.41 2.2%
Cost/Mile 6.34$                              6.10$                             5.55$                              5.64$                              -1.7%
Trips/Hour 7.18 7.61 7.69 7.68 0.1%
Cost/Hour 134.23$                         133.70$                         121.35$                         120.75$                         0.5%

Demand Response Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 9,857 10,668 42,438 42,370 0.2%
Total Vehicle Miles 70,119 79,575 302,877 304,356 -0.5%
Total Vehicle Hours 5,343 6,323 23,022 22,926 0.4%
Direct Project Expenses 438,148$                       485,061$                       1,672,013$                    1,694,440$                    -1.3%
Trips/Mile 0.14 0.13 0.14 0.14 0.6%
Cost/Trip 44.45$                            45.47$                           39.40$                            39.99$                            -1.5%
Miles Per Hour 13.12 12.58 13.16 13.28 -0.9%
Cost/Mile 6.25$                              6.10$                             5.52$                              5.57$                              -0.8%
Trips/Hour 1.85 1.69 1.84 1.85 -0.3%
Cost/Hour 82.01$                            76.71$                           72.63$                            73.91$                            -1.7%

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 135



Worker Driver Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 10,376 10,883 45,688 46,992 -2.8%
Total Vehicle Miles 13,898 13,968 60,042 60,073 -0.1%
Total Vehicle Hours 575 575 2,461 2,477 -0.6%
Direct Project Expenses 52,899$                         51,749$                         194,909$                       209,118$                       -6.8%
Trips/Mile 0.75 0.78 0.76 0.78 -2.7%
Cost/Trip 5.10$                              4.76$                             4.27$                              4.45$                              -4.1%
Miles Per Hour 24.18 24.28 24.40 24.26 0.6%
Cost/Mile 3.81$                              3.70$                             3.25$                              3.48$                              -6.7%
Trips/Hour 18.05 18.92 18.56 18.98 -2.2%
Cost/Hour 92.05$                            89.95$                           79.19$                            84.44$                            -6.2%

Express Routes Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 6,675 6,221 25,024 27,068 -7.6%
Total Vehicle Miles 23,789 23,948 96,208 85,974 11.9%
Total Vehicle Hours 1,070 933 3,847 4,002 -3.9%
Direct Project Expenses 155,016$                       145,979$                       558,479$                       570,174$                       -2.1%
Trips/Mile 0.28 0.26 0.26 0.31 -17.4%
Cost/Trip 23.22$                            23.47$                           22.32$                            21.06$                            5.9%
Miles Per Hour 22.22 25.66 25.01 21.48 16.4%
Cost/Mile 6.52$                              6.10$                             5.80$                              6.63$                              -12.5%
Trips/Hour 6.24 6.66 6.51 6.76 -3.8%
Cost/Hour 144.82$                         156.39$                         145.19$                         142.49$                         1.9%

Total Service Oct-Dec 2018 Oct-Dec 2019 Rolling 12 Months Rolling Prev. 12 mos. Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 102,852 110,028 435,533 435,456 0.0%
Total Vehicle Miles 246,506 258,263 1,012,318 1,014,856 -0.3%
Total Vehicle Hours 15,048 15,787 60,020 61,525 -2.4%
Direct Project Expenses 1,506,382$                    1,540,885$                   5,516,037$                    5,536,951$                    -0.4%
Trips/Mile 0.42 0.43 0.43 0.43 0.3%
Cost/Trip 14.65$                            14.00$                           12.67$                            12.72$                            -0.4%
Miles Per Hour 16.38 16.36 16.87 16.50 2.3%
Cost/Mile 6.11$                              5.97$                             5.45$                              5.46$                              -0.1%
Trips/Hour 6.84 6.97 7.26 7.08 2.5%
Cost/Hour 100.11$                         97.61$                           91.90$                            90.00$                            2.1%

*Direct Project Expenses include only those costs to support Operations, Dispatch, Worker Drivers, Drivers, Maintenance, & Belfair, not including administrative costs.  Costs are 
allocated by % of miles for each service type. *Total Service does not include Vanpool, Volunteer Driver, Squaxin, Radich or T-CC. January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 136



23000

26000

29000

32000

35000

38000

41000

44000

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Total Ridership
2019

2018

2017

2016

January 21, 2020 Regular Mtg 137


	ADP394F.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	December 17, 2019
	December 17, 2019
	NEW BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

	ADP45A.tmp
	INTRODUCTION
	LEADERSHIP
	Mason Transit Authority Board:
	Non-voting Authority Board:
	Mason Transit Authority Executive Management Team:

	WHO WE ARE
	WHAT WE DO
	CORE VALUES
	STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK
	VISION, MISSION, GUIDING PRINCIPLES and TEAM CULTURE
	LONG-RANGE STRATEGIC VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
	WORK PLAN
	KEY ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES
	MONITORING, EVALUATION AND PLANNING
	MOVING FORWARD

	ADP9B80.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:
	We have determined it will be necessary to cancel our contract with the vendor for the bus technology project due to failure of the vendor to meet any project deadlines over the past two years.
	We have determined it will be necessary to cancel our contract with the vendor for the bus technology project due to failure of the vendor to meet any project deadlines over the past two years.
	Statistics from Clerk of the Board:
	Statistics from Clerk of the Board:

	TEAM UPDATES
	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	ADPF710.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:
	We have determined it will be necessary to cancel our contract with the vendor for the bus technology project due to failure of the vendor to meet any project deadlines over the past two years.
	We have determined it will be necessary to cancel our contract with the vendor for the bus technology project due to failure of the vendor to meet any project deadlines over the past two years.
	Statistics from Clerk of the Board:
	Statistics from Clerk of the Board:

	TEAM UPDATES
	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2020.pdf
	2020

	Info Report Item 3 - Operations Statistics (updated).pdf
	2020.1.16 Operations Stats
	2020.1.16 Total Ridership Stats Charted




